
DocuSign Envelope ID: 3C519D9B-F3C1-4262-A14F-34B7E6BCB27D

Lori A. Weiver

Commissioner

Kaija S. Fox
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9544 1-800-S52-3345 Ext 9544

Fax:603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 ww>v.dlihs.nh.gov

August 30, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Granite United Way
(VC#160015), Manchester, New Hampshire, to continue providing substance use
disorder information and call referral services through the use of 2-1-1 NH. statewide, by
increasing the price limitation by $1,010,000 from $2,308,155 to $3,318,155 and by extending
the completion date from September 29. 2023 to September 29, 2024, effective September
29, 2023 upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on Octot>er 31, 2018, item
#17, as amended on May 6, 2020, item #36, and amended on March 24, 2021, item #17, and
amended on October 13, 2021, item #32, and most recently amended on November 22, 2022,
item #26.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES,
SOR GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2019 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Svc
92057040

$186,262 $0 $186,262

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Svc
92057040

$441,695 $0 $441,695

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Svc
92057040

$121,600 $0 $121,600

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Svc
92057047

$121,600 $0 $121,600

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Svc
92057048

$317,333 $0 $317,333
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2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Svc
92057048

$158,666 $0 $158,666

2022 074-500585

Grants for

Pub Asst and

Rel

92057048

$357,000 $0 $357,000

2023 074-500585

Grants for

Pub Asst and

Rel

92057048

$119,000 $0 $119,000

2023 074-500589
Welfare

Assistance
92057059

$363,749 $0 $363,749

2024 074-500589
Welfare

Assistance
92057059

$121,250

•  1

$0 $121,250

2024 074-500589
Welfare

Assistance
92057062

$0 $757,500 $757,500

2025 074-500589
Welfare

Assistance
92057062

$0 $252,500 $252,500

Subtotal $2,308,155 $1,010,000 $3,318,155

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is seeking to extend the contract
beyond the completion date and there are no renewal options available. Granite United Way was
selected as the sole source Contractor given it is the only operator of the 2-1-1 NH number;
therefore there are no known viable alternatives to the services provided by the Contractor.

The purpose of this request is to continue enhancing and increasing substance use
disorder information and referral services through 2-1-1 NH, the telephonic service that provides
confidential information about substance use disorder support services, and referrals for
individuals and their families. The Contractor administers the 2-1-1 NH system, which is the
number advertised throughout NH for individuals or family members to call to connect with the
NH Doonvay system for access to substance use services. The additional funding will be utilized
on coordination efforts between the Department. Rapid Response, the Doorways. 911, and
ServiceLink; along with developing comprehensive training plans for 211 and Doonway After
Hours to build capacity and competencies on topics around the substance use and mental health
continuum.

Approximately 9.500 individuals will be served from September 29. 2023 to September
29. 2024.

Individuals calling 2-1-1 NH seeking information about substance use disorder service
access are referred to the Doorways and other resources in their community. After business hours
and on weekends, callers are directly connected to an on-call clinician associated with Doorways
services.

The Department will continue to monitor these services through the review of data reports,
periodic surveys, and other data as requested by the Department.
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Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, individuals seeking help for
substance use disorders will not have a centralized phone number to call to initiate access to
information, and connections to services, which could result in delays in accessing needed care.

Area served; Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds; Assistance Listing Number 93.788, FAIN TBD.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

The Deparimenl of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communilieB and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301

Fax: 603-271-1516 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/doit

Denis Goulet

Commissioner

September 5, 2023

Lori Weaver, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire
95 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Weaver:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DoIT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into a contract amendment with Granite United Way, as
described below and referenced as DoIT No. 2019-053E.

\

The purpose of this request is to provide continued substance use disorder information and call
referral services through the use of 2-1 -1 NH statewide.

The Total Price Limitation will increase by SI,010,000, foraNew Total Price Limitation of
$3,318,155, effective upon Governor and Council approval through September 29, 2024.

A copy of this letter must accompany the Department of Health and Human Services' submission
to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Goulet

DG/jd
DoIT#2019-053E

cc: Mike Williams, IT Manager

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #5

This Amendment to the Call Center (211) contract Is by and between the State of New Hampshire.
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Granite United Way ("the
Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on October 31, 2018 (Item #17), and as subsequently amended on May 6. 2020 (Item #36), as amended
on March 24, 2021 (Item #17), as amended on October 13, 2021 (Item #32), and as most recently amended
on November 22, 2022 (Item #26), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and In consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services: and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 29, 2024

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$3,318,155

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit A - Amendment #5,
Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

4. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1., to
read:

1. This Agreement is funding by 100% Federal funds. State Opioid Response (SOR), as awarded
on 08/09/2021, 09/19/2021 and 09/23/22, by the U.S. DHHS Substance Abuse and Mental
Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), Assistance Listing Number (ALN) 93.788, FAIN
H79TI083326 and H79TI085759; State Opioid Response (SOR), ALN 93.788, FAIN TBD,
anticipated to be effective 9/30/2023 pending receipt of the Notice of Funding Award from
SAMHSA.

5. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3, to
read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit B-1 Budget through Exhibit B-11 - Amendment #5, SOR III Budget.

6. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 5,
Subsection 5.1, Paragraph 5.1.3, Subparagraph 5.1.3.1., to add Parts 5.1.3.1.9 through 5.1.3.1.11,
as follows:

5.1.3.1.9. Promotional'items including, but not limited to, clothing and commemorative items
with added logos for distribution to clients and the community, including but not limited
to, pens, mugs/cups, folders/folios, lanyards, and conference bags. See 45 CFR
75.421(e)(3)

5.1.3.1.10. Direct payments to individuals to enter treatment or continue to participate in
prevention or treatment services. See 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b

Granite United Way A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials

SS-2019-BDAS-04-CALLC-01-A05 Page 1 of4 Date ̂ /30/2023
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5.1.3.1.11. Sterile needles or syringes for the hypodermic injection of any illegal drug.

7. Add Exhibit B-10 - Amendment #5, SOR III Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

8. Add Exhibit B-11 - Amendment #5, SOR III Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

pt
Granite United Way /\.S-1.2 Contractor Initials ^

SS-2019-BDAS-04-CALLC-01-A05 Page 2 of 4 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect.. This Amendment shall .be effective September 29, 2023, upon Governor and
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

8/30/2023

Date

DocuSlgtitd by:

Name; fox

Title: Director

Granite United Way

8/30/2023

Date

—OocuSigrwd by:

pAiridL tWh

Title. President

Granite United Way

SS-2019-BDAS-04-CALLC-01 -AOS

A-S-1.2

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-Do^Siflncc] bjn

8/30/2023

Date Name: cuarino
.  Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Granite United Way A-S-1.2

fiS.?Ol9-BDAS-04-CALLC-01-A05 Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Call Center (211)

Exhibit A - Amendment #5

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services

they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful

access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective

date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New

Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the

Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.3. - For the purposes of this contract, Granite United Way shall be identified as a

subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall provide substance use information and referral services through

2-1-1 NH, statewide. Call Center services must include, but are not limited to;

2.1.1. Ensuring all calls received are answered by a qualified, properly trained
Information and Referral Specialist, in accordance with Subsection 2.7.

2.1.2. Providing confidential and multilingual services twenty-four (24) hours per day
seven (7) days per week.

2.1.3. Identifying information and service needs related to the caller's substance use or
the substance use of a family member, significant other, friend, or concerned

party.

2.1.4. Assessing callers' additional needs and providing appropriate resources based
on eligibility including, but not limited to:

Housing.

2.1.4.1. Mental health services.

2.1.4.2. Social supports.

2.1.5. Contacting emergency services as needed depending on the nature of the call or

crisis, include, but nOt limited to:

2.1.5.1. A determination is made that the caller is in imminent danger
of harming them self or someone else. The Contractor must
directly connect the caller to 911 Emergency Services.

2.1.6. Assisting callers who are seeking referral information to appropriate prevention,
treatment, recovery services and other resources in the individual's servi^g^ea.

ft
Granile United Way Exhibit A • Amendment #5 Contractor Initials,

8/30/2023
SS-2019-BDA$-04-CALLC-A01 Page 1 of 7 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Call Center (211)

Exhibit A - Amendment #5

<0

2.1.7. Transferring callers who have a non-emergency need, and are seeking
assistance with accessing substance use services directly to The Doorways as
appropriate, as follows;

2.1.7.1. Calls shall be transferred directly to The Doonvays during the
hours of 8:00 am an 5:00 pm, EST; and

2.1.7.2. Calls shall be transferred directly to After Hours during the
hours of 5:00 pm and 8:00 am EST, weekends, and holidays.

2.2. The Contractor shall develop clear and concise descriptions of the various statewide

resources available to callers for 2-1-1 NH staff and the After Hours vendor, and clearly
identify the role and responsibilities of each.

2.3. The Contractor shall revise protocols and procedures to incorporate basic screening
questions that best meet the presenting needs of callers, which includes but is not
limited to:

2.3.T. Determining the level of crisis (if any).

2.3.2. Developing appropriate flow charts and descriptions for . the different
situations/crises that callers may present, and

2.3.3. Utilize technology and automated processes whenever possible to integrate
questions and steps into systems and workflows.

2.4. The Contractor shall work with community partners to determine process and system
improvements including, but not limited to:

2.4.1. Transferring The Doorways and Rapid Response callers to 2-1-1 NH to receive
assistance addressing Social Determinants of Health needs.

2.4.2. Determining appropriate screening questions that ensure callers are transferred
to the correct resources, at the right time.

2.4.3. Ensuring resource databases are coordinated, accessible, and updated quarterly,
and

2.4.4. • Promoting connections back to 2-1-1 NH to assist with basic information and

referral when possible.

2.4.5. The Contractor shall conduct ongoing outreach to prevention treatment and
recovery supports and health and human service providers to ensure real-time

accuracy of resources, and update databases as appropriate.

2.5. The Contractor shall coordinate social marketing campaigns with existing networks to
promote 2-1-1 NH, including but not limited to:

2.5.1. Regional Public Health Networks (RPHNs).

2.5:2. Recovery Community Organizations.

2:5.3. The Doorways.

ft
Granite United Way Exhibit A - Amendment #5 Contractor Initials

"8/30/2023
SS-2019-BDAS.04-CALLC-A01 Page 2 of 7 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
.  Call Center (211)

Exhibit A - Amendment #5

2.6. The Contractor shall participate in all quality compliance, monitoring, and improvement
activities requested by the Department which will include, but Is not limited to:

2.6.1. Demonstrated compliance with guidelines from the Alliance of Information and
Referral Systems (AIRS) for quality control and evaluation.

2.6.2. Electronic and In-person call record reviews.

2.6.3. Site visits.

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure staff participate in training and technical assistance

activities as requested by the Department.

2.8. The Contractor shall lead coordination, collaboration, and process improvement efforts
among NH helpline partners that serve individuals with substance use and mental
health concerns, including, but not limited to:

2.8.1. The Department.

2.8.2. Rapid Response.

2.8.3. The Doorways.

2.8.4. 911.

2.8.5. ServiceLink. .

2.9. The Contractor shall determine opportunities to expand 2-1-1 NH services to pilot
enhanced information and referral resource coordination services for The Doorway

individuals.

2.10. The Contractor shall identify the current capacity, resources available, and operational
procedures required to provide enhanced information and referral services to partners
in the community, including but not limited to 2-1-1 NH, and The Doorways.

2.11. The Contractor shall work with partners and agencies to increase inclusion of
resources and programs, specifically focusing on:

2.11.1. Smaller programs;

2.11.2. Communities not currently represented and historically underserved populations;
and/or

2.11.3. Those at disproportionate risk of overdose.

2.12. The Contractor shall develop a comprehensive training plan/program for 2-1-1 NH and
After Hours to build capacity and competencies on topics Including, but not limited to:

2.12.1. Understanding Substance Use Disorder (SUD). Mental Health, and Impact Of
Stigma.

2.12.2. Language Matters: Using Compassionate, Person-First, Non-Stigmatizing
Language.

ft
Granite United Way Exhibit A - Amendment #5 Contractor initials

8/30/2023
SS-2019-BDAS-04-CALLC-A01 Page 3 of 7 Date
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'  New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Call Center (211)

Exhibit A - Amendment #5

2.12.3. Navigating Crisis Situations/De-Escalation.

2.12.4. Diversity, Equity, Inclusioh.

2.12.5. Compassion Fatigue.

2.12.6. AIRS Certification For Staff.

2.12.7. Recovery Coach Training.

2.12.6. Resource Database Training.

2.12.9. Navigating State Systems of Support.

2.12.10.Understanding and Documenting Unmet Needs.

2.12.11.Closed Loop Referral System.

2.13. The Contractor must interface with the Department's online access point provider's

solution to maintain interoperability between the statewide 2-1-1 and the Department's

information and closed loop referral solution to support participants interacting directly
or indirectly with the access point. The integration must allow for transfer of information,

and data as necessary to facilitate referrals to network providers for ongoing services.

3. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards

3.1. The Contractor shall establish formal information sharing and referral agreements with
the Doorways in compliance with all applicable confidentiality laws, including 42 CFR
Part 2 in order to receive payments for services funded with SOR resources.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure all referrals of individuals to the Doonways are:

3.2.1. Completed and documented in the individual's file; and

3.2.2. Available to the Department as requested and as needed for payment of invoices
for services provided through SOR-funded initiatives.

3.3. The Contractor shall ensure individuals receiving services, rendered from SOR funds,

have a documented history or current diagnoses of Opioid Use Disorder or Stimulant

Use Disorders (OUD/StimUD) or are at risk for such.

3.4. The Contractor shall coordinate completion of Government Performance Results Act

(GPRA) initial interview and associated follow-ups at six (6) months arid discharge for

individuals referenced previously.

3.4.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed plan within thirty (30) days of contract

effective date for ensuring GPRA completion for all individuals receiving SOR
funding.

3.5. The Contractor shall ensure that SOR grant funds are not used to purchase, prescribe,
or provide cannabis or for "providing treatment using cannabis. The Contractor shall
ensure: •

3.5.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of OUD/StimUD. (—
ft

Granite United Way Exhibit A - Amendment #5 Contractor Initials

8/30/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Call Center (211)

Exhibit A - Amendment #5

3.5.2. Grant funds are not provided to any individual who or organization that provides

or permits cannabis use for the purposes of treating substance use or mental
health disorders.

3.5.3. This cannabis restriction applies to all subcontracts and Memorandums of
Understanding that receive SOR funding.

3.6. The Contractor shall ensure Naloxone kits are available to individuals, utilizing SOR
funding.

3:7. If the Contractor intends to distribute test strips, the Contractor shall provide a test strip

utilization plan to the Department for approval prior to implementation. The Contractor

shall ensure the utilization plan includes, but is not limited to:

3.7.1. Internal policies for the distribution of test strips;

3.7.2. Distribution methods and frequency; and

3.7.3. Other key data as requested by the Department.

3.8. The Contractor shall provide services as referenced in Section 2.1. to eligible
individuals who: . . "

3.8.1. Receive MOUD services from other providers, including the individual's primary

care provider;

3.8.2. Have co-occurring mental health disorders; or

3.8.3.. Are on medications and are taking those medications as prescribed regardless of
the class of medication.

3.9. The Contractor shall ensure individuals who refuse to consent to information sharing

with the Doorways do not receive services utilizing SOR funding.

3.10. The Contractor shall ensure individuals who rescind consent to information sharing

with the Doorways do not receive any additional services utilizing SOR funding.

3.11. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department and other SOR funded

Contractors, as requested and directed by the Department, to improve GPRA
collection.

3.12. " The Contractor shall comply with all appropriate Department, State of NH, Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), and other Federal

terms, conditions, and requirements, and as amended, and shall collaborate with the

Department to understand the aforesaid.

4. Staffing

4.1. The Contractor shall submit a staffrng and recruitment plan to the Department within

(7) seven business days of the effective date of this contract amendment.

4.2. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of one (1) full-time staff person to update the
Contractor's resource database, containing substance use services and othefTJ^an

Granite United Way Exhibit A - Amendment #5 Contractor Initials
8/30/2023

SS-2019-BDAS-04-CALLC-A01 Page 5 of 7 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Call Center (211)

Exhibit A- Amendment #5

and social services that aid individuals in achieving and maintaining recovery, on a
weekly basis.

5. Reporting

5.1. The Contractor shall, by the fifteenth {IS"") working day of each month, and in a format
approved by the Department, report program data to the Department that must include,
but is not limited to;

5.1.1. Number of phone calls received relative to substance use, including the average
number of calls each month.

5.1.2: Nature of each phone call.

5.1.3. Number of callers referred to Doorways.

5.1.4. . Number of callers directly transferred to Doorways.

5.1.5. Number of callers referred to non-Doorway services.

5.1.6. Number of callers referred to non-SUD services.

5.1.7. Average amount of time before a call is answered.

5.1.8. Percentage of total callers who hang up before reaching an Information and
Referral Specialist.

5.1.9. Average amount of time an Information and Referral Specialist engages with a
caller, including hold time.

5.1.10. Caller types (self, concerned party, and/or professional).

5.1.11. Caller demographics and information when available including, but not limited to:

5.1.11.1. Substance of concern.

5.1.11.2. Housing.

5.1.11.3. Criminal Justice.

5.1.11.4. Employment.

5.1.12. Caller location.

5.1.13. Emergency/Imminent Risk Involvement/Level of Urgency.

5.1.14. Services sought.

5.1.15. Outcome of each call including, but not limited to:

5.1.15.1. Referrals to The Doorway for services and clinical evaluation.

5.1.15.2. Information and resources provided during the call.

5.2. The Contractor shall prepare and submit ad hoc data reports, respond to periodic
surveys, and other data collection requests as deemed necessary by the Department
and/or SAMHSA. /—"s

ft
Granite United Way Exhibit A - Amendment #5 Contractorlnilials,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Call Center (211)

Exhibit A - Amendment #5

6. Performance Measures

6.1. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to enhance contract

management, improve results and adjust program delivery and policy based on
successful outcomes.

Granite United Way

S$-2019-BDAS-04-CALLC-A01

Exhibit A - Amendment #5

Page 7 of 7

Contractor initials

ft

Date
8/30/2023
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Exhibit B-10 Amendment #5, SOR III Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Granite United Way - 211

Budget Request for: Call Center (211)

Budget Period FY24 (September 30, 2023 - June 30, 2024)

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)5.7% of total amendment budget

Line Item

'f

Program Cost -
Funded by DHHS

Program Cost -
Contractor Share/

Match

1. Salary & Wages $402,292 $0

2. Fringe Benefits $120,688 $0-

3. Consultants $15,000 $0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment
costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and Appendix IV to 2
CFR 200. $100 $0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0 $0

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0 $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0 $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0 $0

5.(e) Supplies^ Office $3,555 $0

6. Travel $1,916 $0

7. Software $3,000 $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications $60,000 $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $10,000 $0

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) $0 $0

Other (please specify) $80,000 $0

Other (please specify) $20,000 $0,

Other (please specify) $0 $0

Other (please specify) $0 $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $100 $0

Total Direct Costs ■  $716,651 $0

Total Indirect Costs $40,849 $0

total $757,500 $0

SS-2019-BDAS-04-CALLC-01-A05

Contractor;

r~OS
pr

Date:
8/30/2023
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Exhibit B-11 Amendment #5, SOR 111 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Granite United Way - 211

Budget Request for: Call Center (211)

Budget Period FY25 (July 1, 2024 - September 29, 2024)
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)5.7% of total amendment budget

r

Line Item
Program Cost -
Funded by DHHS

Program Cost -
Contractor Share/

Match

1. Salary & Wages $134,097 $0

2. Fringe Benefits $40,229 $0

3. Consultants $5,000 $0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. $100 $0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0 $0

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0 $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0 $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0 $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $667 $0

6. Travel $639 $0

7. Software $1,105 $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications $20,880 $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $2,733 $0

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) $0 $0

Other (please specify) $26,667 $0

Other (please specify) $6,667 $0'

Other (please specify) $0 $0

Other (please specify) $0 $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $100 $0

Total Direct Costs $238,883 $0

Total Indirect Costs $13,616 1 $0
'

total ■ $252,500 | $0

Contractor:

-OS

ft

SS-2019-BDAS-04-CALLC-01-A05 Date:
8/30/2023
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretarj' of Stale of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that GRANITE UNITED WAY is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on March 30, 1927. 1 further certify that all

fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 65650

Certificate Number: 0006205201

Urn

O

d

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 13th day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Sccrelar)' of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Charles Lloyd, hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected Secretary of the Board of Granite United Way.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called and held on
September 24, 2020, at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Patrick Tufts, President & CEO, is duly authorized on behalf of Granite United Way to enter into
contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is
authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, which may in his judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 08/16/2023
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Charles Lloyd
Title: Board Chair



ACORcf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/OD/YYYY)

1/9/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ie8) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A sUtemerit on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PRODUCER

THE ROWLEY AGENCY INC.

45 Constitution Avenue

P.O. Box 511

Concord NH 03302-0511

Alyssa Woods

(603)224-2562 SU.N.k

infwMS' «>'oods0 rowleyagency . com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC •

INSURER A Hanover Ins - Bedford

INSURED

Granite United Hay

22 Concord Street

Floor 2

Manchester NH 03101

INSURER B

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE iOSD. msL POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EPF
(MWDOATYY)

POLICY EXP

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILH-Y

OCCURCLAIMS-MAOEB
EACH OCCURRENCE
DaMaCE TO rented
PREMISES (Ea occurencel

tl!V900337109 X/1/2023 1/1/2024 MED EXP (Any one p4f»on)

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

□POUCY
□ PRO

JECT LOC

GENERAL AGGREGATE

OTHER:

PRODUCTS ■ COMP/OPAGG

Pro'*Miori*l UabUitY

1,000,000

100,000

10,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
fEa actidenit 1,000,000

ANY AUTO
ALL OVWEO
AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Per peraon)

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS

eHV900337109 1/1/2023 1/1/2024 BODILY INJURY (Per acddant)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
IPer acddenti

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 1,000,000

AGGREGATE 1,000,000

RETENTION S URV9003210-09 1/1/2022 1/1/2023
OTH
ERWORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
0FFICERAIEM8ER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
It yes, descrioe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

H N/A

3A Statee; HH, VT

HHVe996802-10

PER
STATUTE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 500,000

1/1/2023 1/1/2024 E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 500.000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT 500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Ramarks Schedule, may be attached If more space is required)
Covering operationa of the named insured during the policy period.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

State of NH
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Department of Health and Human
129 Pleasant Street AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
Concord, NH 03301

1
C Holman, CPCU, CIC/C

ACORD 25 (2014/01)
<9014011

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Uriited
Way

Granite United Way

LIVE UNITED

MISSION STATEMENT

Granite United Way's mission Is to improve the quality of people's lives by bringing together the caring
power of communities.

Granite United Way
.VlerinadCeiity

4>Soith ViinStnet

Cau>:il.Nil (QOI

5a3.224.2SSS

'SMiTkvr!

22Cok«k d'Kt
SUnch<!t<r. Nil 03)01

m€25.6939 "

North 'DountiY

f^.DaGU -

littletor Nil 03S61
503.444.1555

IkirtllOT RitDII

Sfi-Ujiii StiMi

Diiiii.KII 05S;0
SC0732.3M3

^Vcll«-
jlldrdir/tiivt
'i*i.lebctor.t<H 03784

503.m.W99

Central Rej or

'>33Seilh UjinSl.

La:«nie.Hir 03246
503.737.ll2r

WxleViltate
258lltthUndS:ted

Pymxith.MIC32M
m53$.3;20

.Camll Courl/thitid
44eAMi'.eMtn. Iliihwey -

rjRraorth. Nil 038BS '

5'33.J23.B139
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

FINANCIAL REPORT

JUNE 30, 2022
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NATHAN WECHSLER & COMPANY
PROFESS IONAL ASSOCIATION

Certified Public Accountants & Business Advisors

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Granite United Way
Manchester, New Hampshire 03101

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Granite United Way, which comprise the statement of
financial position as of June 30, 2022 and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Granite United Way as of June 30, 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Granite United Way and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion. ' .

Respoitsibilities of Managementfor the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Granite United Way's ability
to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are issued.

Page 1
%
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Auditor's Respotisibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statenients

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstaternent resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence
the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

•  Exercise-professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due

to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Granite United Way's internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are. conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Granite United Way's ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-
related matters that we identified during the audit.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Granite United Way's June 30, 2021 financial statements, and we
expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated
November 18, 2021. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2021 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial
statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters

Other Injbiviation

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200,
Unijbnn Aduiinistrntive Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance) and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records

Page 2
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used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Govemmeut Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 22,
2022 on our consideration of Granite United Way's internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of Granite United Way's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Governnient Auditing Standards in
considering Granite United Way's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Other Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The supplementary schedules of community impact awards to qualified partner agencies and emerging
opportunity grants are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such infohnation
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Concord, New Hampshire
November 22, 2022

Page 3
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

2022 2021

Without

Donor/Time

Restrictions

With

Donor/Time

Restrictions Total Total

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Prepaid and reimbursable expenses
Investn^ents

Accounts and rent receivable

Contributions and grants receivable, net
of allowance for uncollectible contributions

2022 $465,181; 2021 $400,365

$  892,271

78,779

951,443

36,884

$  2,803,207 $

2,055,943

3,695,478 $

78,779

951,443

36,884

.  2,055,943

921,103

31,049

444,066

76,730

2,902,143

Total current assets 1,959,377 4,859,150 6,818,527 4,375,091

OTHER ASSETS

Property and equipment, net
Investments - endowment

Beneficial interest in assets held by others

1,182,928

11,747 223,395

2,667,867

1,182,928

235,142

2,667,867

1,152,668

260,731

2,171,078

Total other assets 1,194,675 2,891,262 4,085,937 3,584,477

Total assets $  3,154,052 $  7,750,412 $ 10,904,464 $ 7,959,568

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current maturities of long-term debt
Allocations payable to partner agencies
Donor-designations payable
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Funds held for others

$  15,016

32,602

468,473

435,762

199,767

12,142

$  - $

414,434

15,016 $

32,602

882,907

435,762

199,767

12,142

14,311

584,224

687,182

186,263

9,669

Total current liabilities 1,163,762 414,434 1,578,196 1,481,649

LONG-TERM DEBT, less current maturities 157,251 157,251 172,347

Total liabilities 1,321,013 414,434 1,735,447 1,653,996

COMMITMENTS (See Notes)

NET ASSETS:

Without donor/ time restrictions

With donor/ time restrictions (Note 9)

1,833,039

7,335,978

1,833,039

7,335,978

572,573

5,732,999

Total net assets 1,833,039 7,335,978 9,169,017 6,305,572

Total liabilities and net assets $  3,154,052 $  7,750,412 $ 10,904,464 $ 7,959,568

See Notes to Finnndnl Statements. Page 4
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

2022 2021

Without

Donor/Time

Restrictions

With

Donor/Time

Restrictions Total Total

Support and revenues:
Campaign revenue:
Total contributions pledged $
Restricted contributions pledged
Less donor designations

Less provision for uncollectible pledges
Add prior years' excess provision for uncollectible
pledges taken into income in current year

- $

20,432

6,599,672 $

1,878,594

(1,544,281)

(280,293)

6,599,672 $

1,878,594

(1,544,281)
(280,293)

20,432

5,627,124

1,593,987

(1,258,841)

(232,967)

114,020

Net campaign revenue
Support:
Grant revenue

Sponsors and program revenue
Contributed non-financial assets

20,432

34,299

6,653,692

9,489,106

141,950

436,767

6,674,124

9,489,106

141,950

471,066

5,843,323

4,832,836

158,554

35,356

Total support 54,731 16,721,515 16,776,246 10,870,069

Other revenue:.

Rental income

Administrative fees

Miscellaneous income

98,131

64,677

3,591

,  - 98,131

64,677

3,591

96,913

47,863

15,092

Total support and revenues 221,130 16,721,515 16,942,645 11,029,937

Net assets released from restrictions:

For satisfaction of time restrictions

For satisfaction of program restrictions

4,898,245

10,688,210 ■

(4,898,245)

(10,688,210)

- -

15,807,585 1,135,060 16,942,645 11,029,937

Expenses:
Program services
Support services:
Management and general
Fundraising

13,659,882

539,397

440,247

- 13,659,882

539,397

440,247

10,269,155

461,753

588,728

Total expenses 14,639,526 14,639,526 11,319,636

Increase (decrease) in net assets

before non-operating activities 1,168,059 1,135,060 2,303,119 (289,699)

Non-operating activities:
Change In value of beneficial interest in trusts,
net of fees 2022 $15,185; 2021 $12,131

Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments
Paycheck Protection Program Loan Forgiveness
Inherent contribution, Seacoast Region (Note 1)
Investment income, net

(57,958)

150,365

(368,827)

(28,031)

861,057

3,720

(368,827)

(85,989)

861,057

154,085

489,357

10,899

772,500

.  134,200

Total non-operating activities 92,407 467,919 560,326 1,406,956

Net increase in net assets 1,260,466 1,602,979 2,863,445 ■ 1,117,257

Net assets, beginning of year. 572,573 5,732,999 6,305,572 . 5,188,315

Net assets, end ofyear $ 1,833,039 $ 7,335,978 $ 9,169,017 $ 6,305,572

See Notes to Fimncial Statements. Page 5



DoeuSIgn Em«top* D: }CS1«)«B^SC1-42U-A14F-MB7ES8CB27D

GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
Year ended June 30, 2022 with comparative totals for the year ended June 30,2021

Grants and

awards

Salaries,
employee

benefits

and taxes

Program servkes
NH Camps COVID testing
Community impact grants
Publk Health Network

211 New Hampshire
Ukraine Relief Fund

■Recovery Friendly Workplace
Department of Justice
Whole Village Family Resource Center
PreKhool Development
ARPA - Support for Grieving Children
Work Unit^ Program
Volunteer Income Tax AssistarKe
Literacy
Home for All
Leader in Me
CARES ACT - Recovery Friendly Workplace
COVTD-19 Relief Fund
CA RES ACT - Bask Needs
CARES ACT - Empower Youth
Fuel Our Families
Other program servkes

folitl pngmm snviers

Supporting Servkes
Maiugement artd general
Fui>draising

Totflf supporting servicts

Total fiinclional fxpenses

OccupaiKy

Technology
and

telephone
expenses subscriptions

2022

United Way
Worldwide

dues and
other Campaign,

dues and communkatiorts

2021

and printing

3,356,914 S
1,378,246

4,105

684,834

117,500
250,000

28,015
300

166,445
5,986359

51363 S

516337
609385
35359

358362
37360

156305
78393
8316

122,926
94,435

24,415

1,477331
337Z089

366390
277317
644,707

1431

8Z71

1513.66

- $

830
222358

U423

7Z482131.139

- S

14,679
1,945

6,975

63

39,112
248389

34,464
26,097

366,985

29379
2Z625

7Z482

16314
13505

63774

58,667
60,561 53504 29,019

Supplies,
Conferences, office

ProfessiotuI travel expenses. Depreciation
services and and staff insurance. and

subcontractors development and other amortization Total ToUl

- S - S - $ - S 3,408377 $
. . 1378346 1395359

434301 15357 264,288 1364308 1,091,134
. 2.168 270,962 1,107318 Z075,486
. . . 720393 -

. 12.269 205,999 583,605 152350
462305 39,153 538318 209329

72372 159 91315 31397 447383 345309

69,669 15,433 57,407 338,700 •
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 3C519D9B-F3C1-4262-A14F.34B7E6BCB27D

GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

•

2022 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from donors $  9,611,551 $ 7,633,270

Cash received from grantors 9,038,682 4,019,420

Administrative fees ^  64,677 47,863

Other cash received 141,568 64,007

Cash received from trusts 156,821 92,470

Designations paid (1,245,598) (1,551,848)

Cash received for funds Keld for others 2,473 2,464

Cash paid to agencies (1,298,739) (3,394,198)

Cash paid to partners and vendors .  (12,992,806) (7,150,154)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 3,478,629 (236,706)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment (113,314) (41,305)

Purchases of investments (576,549) -

Proceeds from sale of investments - 7,228

Net cash used in investing activities (689,863) (34,077)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayments of long-term debt (14,391) (13,417)

Net increase (decrease) in cash 2,774,375 (284,200)

Cash/beginning of year 921,103 1,205,303

Cash, end of year .$ 3,695,478 $ 921,103

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash payments for:
$  8,071 $ 9,599Interest expense

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON CASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Inherent contribution of investments $  861,057 $ -

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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DocuSign Envelope ID; 3C519D9B-F3C1-4262-A14F-3487E6BCB27D

GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notel. Nature of Activities

Granite United Way is the result of several New Hampshire United Ways merging together to create a single,
efficient organization that covers most of New Hampshire and Windsor County, Vermont. Granite United
Way improves lives by mobilizing the caring power of their communities. More than fundraisers, Granite
United Way is a partner in change, working with a broad range of people and organizations to identify and
resolve pressing community issues. Granite United Way works closely with volunteer leadership to invest
donor dollars to help the community leam, earn and be healthy. By focusing on these investment initiatives.
Granite United Way is helping people in new and strategic ways.

Granite United Way conducts annual campaigns in the fall of each year to support hundreds of local
programs, primarily in the subsequent year, while the State Employee Charitable Campaign, managed by
Granite United Way, is conducted in May and June. Campaign contributions are used to support local health
and human services programs, collaborations and to pay Granite United Way's operating expenses. Donors
may designate their pledges to support a region of Granite United Way, a Community Impact area, other
United Ways or to any health and human service organization having 501(c)(3) tax-exempt status. Amounts
pledged to other United Ways or agencies are included in the total contributions pledged revenue and as
designations expense. The related amounts receivable and payable are reported as an asset and liability in
the statement of financial position. The net campaign results are reflected as with donor restrictions in the
accompanying statement of activities and changes in net assets, as the amounts are to be collected in the
following year. Prior year campaign results are reflected as net assets released from restrictions in the current
year statement of activities and changes in net assets.

Granite United Way invests in the community through three different vehicles:

June 30, - 2022 2021
Community Impact Awards to partner agencies $ 1,378,246 $ 1,395,459
Donor designated gifts to Health and Human Service agencies 1,544,281 1,258,841
Granite United Way Program services 12,281,636 8,873,696

Total $ 15,204,163 $ 11,527,996

During the current year, the United Way on the Seacoast of NH was merged into the Granite United Way
from United Way of Massachusetts Bay and Merrimack Valley. This resulted in a one-time inherent
contribution of $861,057, which was comprised of New Hampshire Charitable Fund agency endowment
funds. No other assets or liabilities were assumed as part of this transaction.

Notel. Summary of Siguificant Accounting Policies

Basis of accounting: The financial statements of Granite United Way (the "United Way") have been
prepared on the accrual basis. Under the accrual basis, revenues and gains are recognized when earned
and expenses and losses are recognized when incurred. The significant accounting policies followed are
described below to enhance the usefulness of the financial statements to the reader.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 3C519D9B-F3C1-4262-A14F-34B7E6BCB27D

GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions; The United Way prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial
statements. Those estimates' and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenue and expenses. Accordingly, actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents: For purposes of reporting cash flows, the United Way considers all highly liquid
debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The United Way
had no cash equivalents at June 30, 2022 and 2021.

Net assets: The United Way reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to
two categories of net assets: net assets with donor restrictions and net assets without donor restrictions.
Descriptions of these net asset categories are as follows:

Net assets without donor/ time restrictions: Net assets vdthout donor restrictions are available for use

at the discretion of the Board of Directors and/or management for general operating purposes.
From time to time the Board of Directors designates a portion of these net assets for specific
purposes which makes them unavailable for use at management's discretion. For example, the
Board has designated a portion of net assets without donor restrictions as a quasi-endowment (an
amount to be treated by management as if it were part of the donor restricted endowment) for the
purpose of securing the United Way's long-term financial viability.

The United Way has board designated net assets of $11,747 and $13,026 for endowment at June 30,
2022 and 2021, respectively.

Net assets with donor/time restiictious: Net assets with donor restrictions consist of assets whose use is

limited by donor-imposed, time and/or purpose restrictions.

The United Way reports gifts of cash and other assets as revenue with donor restrictions if they are
received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, the
net assets are reclassified as net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions.

Some net assets with- donor restrictions include a situation that assets provided be maintained
permanently (perpetual in nature) while permitting the United Way to expend the income
generated by the assets in accordance with the provisions of additional donor imposed stipulations
or a Board approved spending policy.

Contributions receivable: Campaign pledge contributions are generally paid within one year. The United
Way provides an allowance for uncollectible pledges at the time campaign results are recorded. Provisions
for uncollectible pledges have been recorded in the amount of $280,293 and $232,967 for the campaign
periods ended June 30,2022 and 2021, respectively. The provision for uncollectible pledges was calculated at
4.5% of the total pledges for both of the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.
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DocuSign Envelope ID; 3C519D9B-F3C1-4262-A14F-34B7E6BCB27D

GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investments: The United Way's investments in marketable equity securities and all debt securities are
reported at their fair value based upon quoted market prices in the accompanying statement of financial
position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the changes in net assets in the accompanying
statement of activities. The United Way's investments do not have a significant concentration of credit risk
within any Industry, geographic location, or specific location.

Revenue recognition - Contributions: The United Way recognizes contributions received and made,
including unconditional promises to give, as revenue in the period received or made. Contributions
received are reported as either revenues without donor restrictions or revenues with donor restrictions.
Contributions with donor restrictions that are used for the purposes specified by the donor in the same
year as the contribution is received are recognized as revenues with donor restrictions and are reclassified
as net assets released from restrictions in the same year. Promises to contribute that stipulate conditions to
be met before the contribution is made are not recorded until the conditions are met. There were no

conditional promises to give as of June 30, 2022.
1

Functional allocation of expenses: The statement of functional expenses present expenses by function and
natural classification. Expenses directly attributable to a specific functional area of the United Way are
reported as expenses of those functional areas. A portion of general and administrative costs that benefit
multiple functional areas (indirect costs) have been allocated across programs and other supporting services
based on estimates of time and effort.

Property and equipment: Property and equipment are carried at cost if purchased and fair value if
contributed. Maintenance, repairs, and minor renewals are expensed as incurred, and major renewals and
betterments are capitalized. The United Way capitalizes additions of, property and equipment in excess of
$2,500.' . ■

Depreciation of property and equipment is computed using the straight-line method over the following
useful lives:

Years

Building and building improvements . 5-31V2
Leasehold improvements 15
Furniture and equipment 3-10

Operating measure: The United Way has presented the statement of activities and changes in net assets
based on an intermediate measure of operations. The measure of operations includes all revenues and
expenses that are an integral part of the United Way's programs and supporting activities and net assets
released from restrictions to support operating activities. Non-operating activities are limited to resources
outside of those program and services and are comprised of investment return, the changes in fair value of
the beneficial interest in trusts, and gains and losses on sales and dispositions of assets.

Concentrations of credit risk: Financial instruments which potentially subject the United Way to
concentrations of credit risk, consist primarily of contributions receivable, substantially all of which are from
individuals, businesses, or not-for-profit organizations. Concentrations of credit risk are limited due to the
large number of donors comprising the United Way's donor base. As a result, at June 30, 2022, the United
Way does not consider itself to have any significant concentrations of credit risk with respect to contributions
receivable.

Page 10



DocuSign Envelope ID; 3C519D9B-F3C1-4262-A14F-34B7E6BCB27D

GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In addition, the United Way maintains cash accounts with several financial institutions insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At June 30, 2022, there was approximately $3,375,000
included in cash in excess of federally insured limits.

Income taxes: The United Way is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The United Way is also exempt from state income taxes by virtue of its ongoing exemption
from federal income taxes. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been recorded in the
accompanying financial statements.

The United Way has adopted the provisions of FASB ASC 740 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes.
Accordingly, management has evaluated the United Way's tax positions and concluded the United Way had
maintained its tax-exempt status, does not have any significant unrelated business income and had taken no
uncertain tax positions that require adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements.

With few exceptions, the United Way is rio longer subject to income tax examinations by the U.S. Federal or
State tax authorities for tax years before 2019.

Change in accounting principle: In September 2020, the FASB issued. Accounting Standards Update (ASU
2020-07), Not-for-profit Entities (Topic 958): Piesentatiou and Disclosures by Not-Jbr-Profit Entities for Contributed
Nonfinancial Assets. This standard is intended to clarify the presentation and disclosure of contributed
nonfinandal assets, including land, buildings, and other items.

Recent accounting pronoimcement: In February 2016, the FASB issued. Lenses, Topic 842 (ASU 2016-02).
Under ASU 2016-02, at the commencement of a long-term lease, lessees will recognize a liability equivalent to
the discounted payments due under the lease agreement, as well as an offsetting right-of-use asset. This
standard will be effective for the Organization for the year ended June 30, 2023. Management is currently
evaluating the impact this will have on its financial statements.

Note 3. Fair Value Measurements

The Fair Value Measurements Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC 820-10)
establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value.

The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to measurements involving significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

•  Level 1 - inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets for identical assets at the
measurement date. The types of assets carried at Level 1 fair value generally are securities listed in
active markets. The United Way has valued their investments listed on national exchanges at the
last sales price as of the day. of valuation.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 3C519D9B-F3C1-4262-A14F-34B7E6BCB27D

GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,

•  Level 2 - inputs are based'upon quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted
prices.for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active, and model-based valuation
techniques for which all significant assumptions are observable in the market or can be
•corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

•  Level 3 - inputs are generally unobservable and typically reflect management's estimates of
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. The fair values are
therefore determined using model-based techniques that include option-pricing models, discounted
cash flow models, and similar techniques.

Financial assets carried at fair value on a recurring basis consist of the following at June 30, 2022:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Money market funds $  16,765 $ 153,577 $ -

Mutual funds:

Domestic equity 70,678 - -

Fixed income 234,586 - -

Fixed income funds 677,216 - -

Corporate bonds - 156,984 -

Beneficial interest in assets held by others - - 2,667,867

Total $  999,245 $ 310,561 $ 2,667,867

Financial assets carried at fair value on a recurring basis cortsist of the following at June 30,2021:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Money market funds $  113,295 $ 33,689 $ -

Mutual funds:

Domestic equity 100,093 - -

Fixed income 274,798 -
-

Fixed income funds 150,923 8,476 -

Corporate bonds - 45,882 -

Beneficial interest in assets held by others - - 2,171,078

Total $  639,109 $ 88,047 $ 2,171,078

All assets have been valued using a market approach, except for the beneficial interest in assets held by
others, and have been consistently applied. The market approach uses prices and other relevant
informabon generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets. Prices may be
indicated by pricing guides, sales transactions, market trades, or other sources.

The beneficial interest in assets held by others is valued using the income approach. The value is
determined by calculating the present value of future distributions expected to be received, which
approximates the value of the trustis assets at June 30, 2022 and 2021.

GAAP requires disclosure of an estimate of fair value for certain financial instruments. The United Way's
significant financial instruments include cash and other short-term assets and liabilities. For these financial
instruments, carrying values approximate fair value.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, at cost, at June 30, 2022 2021

Land, buildings and building improvements .  $ 1,440,636 $ 1,440,636

Leasehold improvements 5,061 5,060

Furniture and equipment 484,117 370,804

Total property and equipment 1,929,814 1,816,500

Less accumulated depreciation (746,886) (663,832)

Total property and equipment, net $  1,182,928 $ 1,152,668

Note 5. Endowment Funds Held by 'Others

Agency endowed funds: The United Way is a beneficiary of various agency endowment funds at The New
Hampshire Charitable Foundation. Pursuant to the terms of the resolution establishing these funds, property
contributed to The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation is held as separate funds designated for the
benefit of the United Way.

In accordance with its spending policy, the Foundation may make distributions from the funds to the United
Way. The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation's charitable distribution rate is currently 4% of the fund's
average market value of the trailing 20 calendar quarters.

The estimated value of the future distributions from the funds is included in these financial statements as

required by FASB ASC 958-605, however, aU property in the fund was contributed to The New Hampshire
Charitable Foundation to be held and administered for the benefit of the United Way.

The United Way received $123,241 and $86,884 from the agency endowed funds during the years ended June
30,2022 and 2021, respectively.

Designated funds: The United Way is also a beneficiary of eight designated funds at The New Hampshire
Charitable Foundation. Pursuant to the terms of the resolution establishing these funds, property
contributed to The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation is held as a separate fund designated for the
benefit of the United Way. In accordance with its spending policy, the Foundation makes distributions from
the funds to the United Way. The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation's charitable distribution rate is
currently 4% of the fund's average market value of the trailing 20 calendar quarters.

These funds are not included in these financial statements, since although all propert)' in these funds was
contributed to The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation to be held and administered for the benefit of the
United Way, the New Hampshire Charitable Foundation may redirect funds to another organization.

The United Way received $33,580 and $5,586 from the designated funds during the years ended June 30,2022
and 2021, respectively. The market value of these fund's assets amounted to. approximately $801,000 and
$139,000 at June 30,2022 and 2021, respectively.

Page 13



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3C519D9B-F3C1-4262-A14F-34B7E6BCB27D

GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 6. Long-term Debt -

LoriR-term debt at June 30, 2022 2021
Mortgage financed with a local bank. Interest rate at the 5-year

Federal Home Loan Classic Advance Rate plus 2.5% (4.11% at
June 30, 2022). Due in monthly installments of principal and
interest of $1,908 through December, 2031. Collateralized by
the United Way's building located in Plymouth, NH. $ 172,267 $ - 186,658

Less portion payable within one year 15,016 14,311
Total long-term debt $ lS7j51_$ 172,347

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt at June 30, 2022 were as follows:

Year Ending Time 30,
2023 $ 15,016

2024 15,756

2025 16,532

2026 17,347
2027 18,202

Thereafter ^ 89,414
Total $ 172,267

The mortgage note contains a financial coven^t for debt service coverage, which is tested annually based on
the year-end financial statements.

The United Way has a revolving line-of-credit with Citizen's Bank with a maximum borrowing limit of
$250,000. The line-of-credit is subject to annual review and renewal. The line-of-credit agreement bears
interest equal to the Wall Street Journal prime rate plus 0.25% (5% as of June 30, 2022) and is secured by all
assets of the United Way. At June 30, 2022, there were no amounts outstanding on this line-of-credit
agreement.

Note 7. Fimds Held for Others

The United Way held funds for others for the following projects:

June 30, 2022 2021

Work United Loan Default Program 6,471 4,555

Concord Multicultural Festival 4,286 3,729

Get Moving Manchester 1,140 1,140

Better Together Lakes Region 245 245

Total $  12,142 $ 9,669
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 8. Endowment Funds

The United Wa/s endowment consists of nine individual funds established for youth programs. Whole
Village Resource Center, and general operating support. Itis endowment includes both donor-restricted
endowment funds and funds designated by the Board of Directors to function as endowments. As required
by GAAP, net assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board of
Directors to function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions.

Intei'pretntion of Relevant Law: The United Way is subject to an enacted version of the Uniform Prudent
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) and, thus, classifies amounts in its donor-restricted
endowment funds as net assets with donor restrictions because those net assets are time restricted until the

Board of Directors appropriates such amounts for expenditures. Most of those net assets are also subject to
purpose restrictions that must be met before reclassifying those net assets to net assets without donor
restrictions. The Board of Directors of the United Way has interpreted UPMIFA as not requiring the
maintenance of purchasing power of the original gift amount contributed to an endowment fund unless a
donor stipulates the contrary.

As a result of this interpretation, when reviewing its donor-restricted endowment funds, the United Way
considers a fund to be underwater if the fair value.of the fund is less than the sum of (a) the original value of
initial and subsequent gift amounts donated to the fund and (b) any accumulations to the fund that are
required to be maintained in perpetuity in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift
instrument.

The United Way has interpreted UPMIFA to permit spending from underwater funds in accordance with the
prudent measures required under the law.

Additionally, in accordance with UPMIFA, the United Way considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: (1) the duration and
preservation of the fund, (2) the purposes of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund, (3)
general economic conditions, (4) the possible effect of inflation and deflation, (5) the expected total return
from income and the appreciation of investments, (6) other resources of the organization, and (7) the
investment policies of the United Way.

Underwater Endowment Funds: From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-
restricted endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor or UPMIFA requires the United Way to
retain as a fund of perpetual duration. The United Way did not have any funds with deficiencies of this
nature as of June 30> 2022 and 2021.

Investment Return Objectives, Risk Parameters and Strategies: The United Way has adopted investment policies,
approved by the Board of Directors, for endowment assets for the long-terrh. The United Way seeks to
achieve an after-cost total real rate of retum, including investment income as well as capital appreciation,
which exceeds the annual distribution with acceptable level of risk. Investment risk is measured in terms of
the total endowment fund; investment assets and allocations between asset classes and strategies are
managed to not expose the fund to unacceptable level of risk.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Spending Poliaj: The United Way does not currently have a spending policy for distributions each year as
they strive to operate within a budget of their current Campaign's income. To date there have been no
distributions from the endowment fund.

Endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of June 30, 2022 is as follows:

Board-designated endowment

Donor-restricted endowment funds:

Original donor-restricted gift amount
and amounts required to be maintained
in perpetuity by donor
Accumulated investment gair\s

Totnl funds

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions

$  11,747 $ - $

142,652

80,743

$ 11,747 $ 223,395 $

Changes in the endowment net assets as of June 30, 2022 are as follows::

Endowment net assets, June 30, 2021

Investment return, net

Endowment net assets, June 30, 2022

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions

$  13,026 $ 247,705 $

(U279)

11,747 $

(24,310)

223,395 $

Total

11,747

142,652

80,743

235,142

Total

260,731

(25,589)

235,142
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GRANITE UNITED WAY
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Note 9. Net Assets with Donor Resfricfiotis

Net assets with donor restrictions are restricted for the following purposes or periods:

[une 30, 2022 2021

Subject to expenditure for specified time period:
Contributior\s receivable related to campaigns $  1,927,694 $ 2,055,226

Designations payable to other agencies and United Ways (414,434) (261,946)

1,513,260 1,793,280

Subject to expenditure for specified purpose:
Public Health Network services 395,399 574,736

Manchester Proud 677,582 505,095

Preschool Development 1,155,066 -

Mark Stebbins Community Center 231,392 -

Leader in Me 193,988 150,092

Youth Enrichment Partnership - 112,750

Literacy Program 28,871 97,198

Ukraine Relief Funds 98,809 -

Work United 62,854 74,255

Other programs ■  87,495 6,810

2,931,456 1,520,936

Endowments subject to the United Way's spending
policy and appropriation:
Investments in perpetuity (gift values of $142,652),
which once appropriated, is expendable to support:
General Operations 88,269 97,875

Youth Programs 26,922 29,852

Whole Village Resource Center 108,204 119,978

223,395 247,705

Beneficial interest in assets held by others:
Agency endowed funds at the New Hampshire
Charitable Foundation 2,667,867 2,171,078

Total net assets with donor restrictions $ ' 7,335,978 $ 5,732,999
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 10. Liquidity and Availability of Resources

The United Way's financial assets available within one year of the statement of financial position date for
general expenditure are as follows:

June 30, 2022 2021

Cash $  3,695,478 $ 921,103

Investments 1,186,585 704,797

Contributions receivable, net 2,055,943 2,902,143

Beneficial interest in trust 2,667,867 2,171,078

Accounts and rent receivable 36,884 76,730

Total financial assets available within one year 9,642,757 6,775,851

Less amounts unavailable for general expenditures within
one year, due to:
Restricted by donors with time or purpose restrictions (338,791) (396,233)

Subject to appropriation and satisfaction or donor restrictions (223,395) (247,705)

Agency endowed funds at the NH Charitable Foundation (2,667,867) (2,171,078)

Total amounts unavailable for general expenditure
within one year (3,230,053) (2,815,016)

Amounts unavailable to management without Board's approval:
Board designated endowment (11,747) (13,026)

Total financial assets available to management
for general expenditure within one year $  6,400,957 $ 3,947,809

Liquidity Manngement

The United Way maintains a policy of structuring its financial assets to be available as its general
expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due. To help manage unanticipated liquidity needs the
United Way has committed a line of credit of $250,000, which it could draw upon. Additionally, the United
Way has board designated net assets without donor restrictions that, while the United Way does not intend
to spend these for purposes other than those identified, the amounts could, be made available for current
operations, if necessary.

Note 11. Pension Fund

The United Way spoiisors a tax-deferred annuit)' plan qualified under Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue
Code, whereby electing employees contribute a portion of their salaries to the plan. For the years ended June
30, 2022 and 2021, the United Way contributed $115,852 and $109,028, respectively to employees
participating in the plan.
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Note 12. Lease Commitments

During a prior year, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a four year term
commencing September 1, 2017 through August 31, 2021 for an office space in Concord, New Harhpshire.
The lease required monthly payments of $3,647 through August 31, 2021.. During the current year, the
United Way renewed the lease for two additional terms ending on August 31, 2023. The lease required
monthly payments of $3,756 through August 31, 2022 and requires monthly payments of $3,869 through
August 31, 2023.

During the current year, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a four year term
commencing on January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2025 for additional office space in Concord, New
Hampshire. The lease required monthly payments of $1,496 through December 31, 2022, increasing 3% in
each year thereafter. , -

During a prior year, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a five year term
commencing July 15, 2016 through June 30, 2021 for an office space in Manchester, New Hampshire. The
lease required monthly payments of $6,082 through June 30, 2021.

During the current year, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a five year term
commencing July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2026 for an office space in Manchester, New Hampshire. The
lease required monthly payments of $6,082 through June 30,2022.

During a prior year, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a five year term
commencing on September 1, 2018 through August 31, 2023 for an office space in Lebanon, New Hampshire.
The lease requires monthly payments of $1,638 through August 31, 2022. The rent will increase each year
depending on the consumer price index. The lease requires payments for common costs.

During the prior year, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a two year term
commencing on January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2022 for an office space in Berlin, New Hampshire.
The lease requires monthly payments of $191 and $187 through December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

During the current year, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a five year term
commencing on April 1, 2022 through March 31, 2027 for an office space in Portsmouth, New Hampshire.
The lease requires monthly payments of $4,400 through March 31,2023.

Total rent expense for these leases amounted to approximately $161,900 and $162,500 for the years ended
June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

I

The United Way leases multiple copier machines under the terms of operating lease agreements. The
monthly lease payments amount to approximately $1,600. The lease expense amounted to approximately
$19,700 for these leases for the year ended June 30, 2022.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The United Way's future minimum lease commitments are as follows:

Year ending Tune 30, Total
2023 . V ■ $ 196,357

2024 129,550

2025 120,789

2026 111,603

2027 42,240

Total $ 600,539

Note 13. Commitments

In Plymouth, the United Way rents space in a building, which they own and occupy to twelve non-affiliated,
non-profit organizations. The monthly lease payments range from $125 to $1,995 per month. For the years
ended June 30,2022 and 2021, the rental income amounted to $98,131 and $96,913, respectively.

Note 14. Contributed Nonfinancial Assets

For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, contributed nonfinancial assets recognized within the statement
of activities and changes in net assets included:

June 30, ^ 2022 2021
Day of Caring $ 1,074 $
Prizes 225 1,000

Services 9,000 9,875

Office Space 24,000 24,000
Ukraine Relief 436,767

Rental - 284

Supplies 197
Total $ 471,066 $ 35,356 .

The Organization recognized contributed nonfinancial assets within revenue. Unless othervN'ise noted,
contributed nonfinancial assets did not have donor-imposed restrictions.

Contributed services are recognized when the services received would typically need to be purchased if they
had not been provided by donation or require specialized skills and are provided by individuals possessing
those skills. A substantial number of volunteers have donated significant amounts of their time in United
Way's program services; however, the value of this contributed time is not reflected in the accompanying
financial statements since the volunteers' time does not meet the criteria for recognition.

Contributed Day of Caring contributions are restricted for use during Day of Caring. The estimated fair
value is based on market rates for the items provided.

Contributed prizes are restricted to certain events. The estimated fair values are based on the value of the
prizes.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Contributed services consist of audit services- provided. The estimated fair value is based on the market
value of the services provided.

Contributed office space consists of office space for the 211 New Hampshire program. The estimated fair
value is based on rent of similar spaces.

Contributed Ukraine Relief consists of medical and other supplies sent to Ukraine. The estimated fair value
is based on the cost of goods if purchased.

Contributed rental consists of ATV rentals. The estimated fair value is based on the rental rate.

Contributed supplies consist of general supplies. The estimated fair value is based on the cost of the goods if
purchased.

Note 15. Payment to Affiliated Organizations and Related Party

The United Way pays dues to United Way Worldwide. The United Way's dues paid to this affiliated
organization aggregated $96,466 and $154,044 for the years ended June 30,2022 and 2021, respectively.

Note 16. COVID -19 and the Paycheck Protection Program Loan

In April 2020, the United Way received $772,500 in funds from the federal Paycheck Protection Program
(PPP). The PPP is a loan designed to provide a direct incentive for small businesses to keep their workers on
the payroll. SBA will forgive loans if all employees are kept on the payroll for the specified period of time
and the money is used for payroll, rent, mortgage interest, or utilities.

During the year ended June 30, 2021, the United Way received forgiveness for the PPP loan. The forgiveness
is recognized in the statement of activities and changes in net assets as nonoperating income.

Note 17. Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to confirm to the current year presentation.
Such reclassifications have had no effect on changes in net assets as previously reported.

Note 18. Subsequent Events

The United Way has evaluated subsequent events through November 22, 2022, the date which the financial
statements were available to be issued and have not evaluated subsequent events after that date. There were
no subsequent events that would require disclosure in financial statements for the year ended June 30,
2022.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED

PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

MERRIMACK COUNTY REGION

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Blueberry Express, Day Care Center
Concord Coalition to End Homelessness

Concord Family YMCA
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
Girls Inc. of New Hampshire
Merrimack Valley Day Care
New Hampshire Harm Reduction
Second Start

The Friends Program:
Foster Grandparents
Emergency Housing

The Pittsfield Youth Workshop
Tiny Twisters Child Care Center
Waypoint

Community
Impact

Awards

25,000

20,000

12,500

22,500

3,850

37,500

10,000

10,150

16,000

25,000

25,000

7,500

5,000

$ 220,000

Emerging
Opportunity

Grants

City of Concord
Concord Police Department
Franklin Police Department
Upreach Therapeutic Riding.Center

$ 4,434

1,139

2,013

15,660

23,246
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,  GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIHED

PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

NORTH COUNTRY REGION

Year Ended June 30^ 2022

>  Community
Impact

Awards

Believe in Books $ 1,998

Boys and Girls Club of the North Country 10,000
Copper Cannon Camp 6,000
Disability Rights Center 2,500
Epilepsy.Foundation 500
Grafton County Senior Citizens: -
ServiceLink 4,750

RSVP 5,090

Senior Nutrition and Transportation 5,625
Greenpath Financial Wellness 500
NH Legal Assistance 5,000
Northern Human Services 2,250

The Family Resource Center 4,263
Tri-County Community Action Program:
Support Center at Burch House 4,262
Tyler Biain House 5,262

Waypoint Parenting Transitional Living Program 5,000
$  63,000
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED

PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

UPPER VALLEY REGION

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Community

Impact

Awards

Child Care Center in Norwich

Copper Cannon Camp
Creative Lives

Cover Home Repair
Dismas of Vermont

Disability Rights Center - NH
Girls Inc. of New Hampshire
Global Campuses Foundation
Good Neighbor Health Care
Grafton County Senior Citizens Council
Headrest

HIV/HCV Resource Center
Mascoma Community Healthcare
Mt. Ascutney Hospital and Health Center
Safeline

Second Wind Foundation

Southeastern Vermont Community Action

10,000

1,000

7,000

10,000

2,500

2,500

3,750

4,500

2,650

3,750

3,500

10,000

20,000

1,500

3,000

5,500

14,000
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED

PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

UPPER VALLEY REGION (CONTINUED)
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Community

Impact

Awards

(Continued)

Springfield Family Center $ 2,500
Springfield Supported Housing Program 5,000
The Fanaily Place 20,000
The Mayhew Program 2,500
The Special Needs Support Center 4,000
TLC Family Resource Center 5,500
Tri-Valley Transit 500
Twin Pines Housing Trust 2,850
Upper Valley Habitat for Hurhanity: 3,750
Food Services 12,500

Shelter Services 6,750

Upper Valley Trails Alliance - 1,000
Visions for Creative Housing Solutions 7,500
Visiting Nurse and Hospice for Vermont and NH 15,000
Waypoint 7,500
VVest Central Behavioral Health 7,500

Willing Hands Enterprises 5,000
Windham & Windsor Housing Trust 4,500
Immigration Legal Services Program "4,000
Emergency Shelter and Housing Program 2,000

$  225,000
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED
PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

SOUTHERN REGION

Year Ended June 30, 2022 ^

Community

Impact

Awards

Amoskeag Health ® 55,000
Boys & Girls Club of Greater Salem, Inc. 14,280
Boys & Girls Club of Manchester, Inc. 60,000
City Year New Hampshire 20,000
Community Caregivers of Greater Derry 6,246
Copper Cannon Camp 5,000
Daniel Webster Council, Boy Scouts of America 10,000
Disability Rights Center - NH 6,000
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. 12,750
Epilepsy Foimdation New England 5,524
Girls Inc. of New Hampshire 30,200.
Granite State Children's Alliance 5,000
International Institute of New England 7,650
Manchester Community Music School 15,000
Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc. 10,000
Manchester Police Athletic League 30,000
Mayhew Program 5,000
Media Power Youth 30,000
NeighborWorks Southern New Hampshire ■ 5,000
New Hampshire Legal Assistance 23,320
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED

PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

SOUTHERN REGION

Year Ended June 30/ 2022

Community
Impact

Awards

(Continued)

NHBA Pro Bono Referral Program $ 9,180
Plaistow Community YMCA 12,750
Rockingham Nutrition and Meals on Wheels Program 11,250
Silverthorne Adult Day Center 6,000
Southern New Hampshire University, Center for New Americans 10,000
St. Joseph Community Services, Inc. 16,250
The Granite YMCA 160,000

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester 40,200

The Upper Room:
Adolescent Wellness Program 15,300
Greater Derry Juvenile Diversion Program 12,750

University of New Hampshire, STEM Discovery Lab . 10,000
UpReach Therapeutic Equestrian Center 15,000
Waypoint 7,500
YWCA . . 17,850

$  700,000
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIHED

PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

NORTHERN REGION

Year Ended June 30^ 2022

Community
Impact

Awards

Believe in Books $ 2,000

Coos County Family Health Services, Inc. 1,500
Copper Cannon Camp . 3,000
Disability Rights Center 1,250
Epilepsy Foundation New England 501
Green Path Financial Wellness 850
Harvest Christian Fellowship:
Community Caf6 4,000
Feeding Hope Food Pantry 4,500

Helping Hands North, Inc. 4,000
North Conway Community Center 2,000
Northern Human Services 2,250

The Family Resource Center at Gorham 4,000
Tri-County Community Action Program:
Tyler Blain House 1,149
ServiceLink 1/000

$  32,000
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED

PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

CENTRAL REGION

Year Ended June 30^ 2022

Community

Impact

Awards

Big Brothers Big Sisters of New Hampshire $ 7,500
Boys and Girls Clubs of Central New Hampshire . 15,000
Circle Program . 5,000
Grafton County Senior Citizens Council, Inc. 2,625
Granite State Children's Alliance 5,000

Health First Family Care Center 10,000
Kingswood Youth Center 7,500
Lakes Region Community Developers 12,500
Lakes Region Community Services 12,500
Lakes Region Mental Health Center 10,000
Mayhew Program 2,500
New Beginnings Without Violence and Abuse 10,000
New Hampshire Legal Assistance 2,625
Pemi Youth Center 3,750

Plymouth Area Recovery Connection 8,500
$  115,000
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended Tune 30, 2022

Federal Grantor

Pass-through Grantor
Program Title

Assistance

Listing
Number

Federal

Expenditures

Expenditures
to

Subrecipients

Regional Public Health Network Services Cluster

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

State of N.H. Department of Health and Human Services - South Central Public Health Network
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse

Public Health Emergency Preparedness
National Bioterrorism Hospital Preparedness
Public Health Crisis Response
Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services

Immunization Cooperative Agreements
Disaster Grant-Public Assistance

Corona Virus Relief Fund

Environmental Public Health and Emergency Response
ToUtI Slate of N.H. Department of Health and Human Services - South Central Public Health Netioork

State of N.H. Department of Health and Human Services - Capital Area Public Health Network
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse

Public Health Emergency Preparedness
National Bioterrorism Hospital Preparedness
Public Health Crisis Response
Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services

Immunization Cooperative Agreements
Environmental Public Health and Emergency Response
Corona Virus Relief Fund

Disaster Grant-Public Assistance

Total Stale of N.H. Department of Health and Human Services - Capital Area Public Health Nehvork

State of N.H. Department of Health and Human Ser\'ices - Carroll County Coalition for Public Health
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse

Public Health Emergency Preparedness
National Bioterrorism Hospital Preparedness
Public Health Crisis Response
Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services

Immunization Cooperative Agreements
Environmental Public Health and Emergency Response

93.959

93.069

93.889

93.354

93.758

93.243

93.268

97.036

21.019

93.070

93.959

93.069

93.889

93.354

93.758

93.243

93.268

93.070

21.019

97.036

93.959

93.069

93.889

93.354

93.758

93.243

93.268

93.070

209,448

109,654

9,882

15,843

33,574

8,000

1,121

35,491

728

1,556

425,297

116,223.

102,597

9,501

1,504

31,736

6,536

22,803

1,434

16,232

45,203

353,769

127,078

74,495

2.713

1,292

28,064

7,276

11,264

1,575

197,988

105304

8,973

14369

33,574

8,000

31,129

1,556

400,893

1,757

1,757
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Federal Grantor

Pass-through Grantor
Program Title

Assistance

Listing
Number

Federal

Expenditures

Expenditures
to

Subrecipients

Disaster Grant-Public Assistance

Corona Virus Relief Fund

Total State of N.H. Dcparftneiil of Health and Human Sendees - Carroll County Coalition for Public Health

Total Regional Public Health Netinork Services Cluster

U.S. Internal Revenue Services

Department of the Treasury
Volunteer Income Tax Assistance (VITA) Matching Grant Program

Coronavirus Aid Relief and Economic Securit\' fCARES^

Governor's Office for Emergency and Relief Recovery
Support for grieving children that have lost a primary caregivcr during the pandemic

Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund

Governor's Office for Emergency and Relief Recovery
Recovery Friendly Workplace

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

State of N.H. Department of Health and Human Services
NH Summer Camps Covid testing project

U.S. Department of justice
State of N.H. Department of Justice
Comprehensive Opioid Abuse Program (COAPJ-Recovery
Crime Victim Assistance-ACERT

Total State of NH Department of Justice

Federal Emereenc\' Management Acencv fFEMA)
State of N.H. Department of Safety, Homeland Security and Emergency Management
Emergency Support Function (KF14)

U.S. Department of Health and Human Scr\'ices

State of N.H. Division for Behavioral Health, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services
Stale Opioid Response Grant

Total Expenditures of Federal Aioards

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.

97.036

21.019

21.009

21.019

21.027

93.323

16.838

16.838

97.042

93.788

9,686

3,068

266,511

1,045,577

64,861

250,000

213,352

3,692,606

388,994

149,824

538,818

42;374

416,939

6,264,527

402,650

250,000

128,191

3,356,914

330,156

132,249

462,405

S  4,600,160
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Notel. Basis of Presentation

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ("the Schedule") includes the federal grant activity of
Granite United Way ("the United Way"), under programs of the federal government for the year ended
June 30, 2022. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the
Office of Management and Budget (QMS) Uniform Guidnnce. Because the schedule presents only a selected
portion of the operations of the United Way, it is not intended to and does not present the financial
position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the United Way.

Notel. Basis of Accounting

This schedule is prepared on the same basis of accounting as the United Way's financial statements. The
United Way uses the accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures represent only the federally funded
portions of the program. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

Note 3. Program Costs

The amounts shown as current year expenditures represent only the federal grant portion of the program
costs. Entire program costs could be more than shown. Such expenditures are recognized following, as
applicable, either the cost principles in the OMB Circular A-122, Cost Principles for Non-Profit
Organizations, or the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

Note 4. Major Programs

In accordance with OMB Uniform Guidance, major programs are determined using a risk-based approach.
Programs in the accompanying Schedule are determined by the independent auditor to be major programs.

Note 5. Indirect Cost Rate

The amount expended includes $510,336 claimed as an indirect cost recovery. The United Way elected to
use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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NATHAN WECHSLER & COMPANY
PROFESS IONAL ASSOCIAT ION

Certified Public Accountants & Business Advisors

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors .

Granite United Way
Manchester, New Hampshire 03101

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Goverunient Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-t)'pe activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Granite United Way as of and-for the year
ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
Granite United Way's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November
22, 2022.

Intenial Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Granite United Way's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Granite United
Way's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Granite
United Way's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a,combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
tliat is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control

•  over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Granite United Way's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Govenwient Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Concord, New Hampshire
November 22, 2022
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NATHAN WECHSLa? & COMPANY
PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION

Certified Public Accountants & Business Advisors

ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

UNIFORM GUIDANCE

INDEPENDENT A UDITOR 'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Granite United Way
Manchester, New Hampshire 03101

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Granite United Way's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described
in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Granite United
Way's major federal programs for year ended June 30, 2022. Granite United Way's major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Granite United Way's major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Goveniment Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Granite
United Way's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for-each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Granite United Way's
compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion. Granite United Way complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of Granite United Way is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered Granite United Way's internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and, material effect on each major
federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opiruon on the effectiveness of Granite United Way's internal control over compliarice.

A deficiency in intenml control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the.normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material xneakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be

. prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficienaj in internal contivl over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Concord, New Hampshire
November 22, 2022
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIQR AUDIT FINDINGS

{UNIFORM GUIDANCE)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2022

Section I: Summary of Auditor's Results

Fitiancial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Are any material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

Are any significant deficiencies identified? Yes X None Reported

Is any noncompliance material to financial statement noted? Yes X No

Federal Aivards

Internal control over major federal programs:

Are any material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

Are any significant deficiencies identified? Yes ■ X None Reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major
federal programs: unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? Yes X No

Identification of major federal programs:

Assistance Listing Numbers

93.323 - NH Camps COVTD Testing

Name of federal program or cluster

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

State of N.H. Department of Health and Human
Services

21.027- Recovery Friendly Workplace Coronavirus State and Local Recovery Fund
Governor's Office for Emergency and Relief
Recovery

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type
A and type B programs: $750,000

Audi tee qualified as a low-risk auditee? X  Yes No
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

{UNIFORM GUIDANCE)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2022

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

No financial statement findings noted.

Section HI - Federal Awards Findines

No federal awards findings noted.
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United
Way LIVE UNITED

Granite United Way

Board of Directors

Dr. Chuck Lloyd, C/iofV

White Mountain Community College, President

Charia Stevens, Past Chair

Charla Stevens Consulting LLC, Principal

Joseph Bator, Vice Chair

TD Bank, Regional Vice President

Doug DeLara, Treasurer

Baker Newman Noyes, Senior Manager

Kathy Bizarro-Thunberg, Secretary / Audit Chair

New Hampshire Hospital Association, Executive Vice President

Kyle Barry

NextEra Energy Seabrook Station

. Joseph Carelli

Citizens Bank, President for New Hampshire and Vermont

Mitch Davis

Dartmouth, Vice President & Chief Information Officer

Paul DeBassio,

Retired/ United Way Network

Pat Donahue

New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority, Director of Human Resources

Chris Cmond

Boys & Girls Club of Central NH, Executive Director

Doug Foley

Eversource, President

Colby Gamester

Gamester Law Office, Owner & Attomey

John Hughes

McLane Middleton, Director, Trusts & Estates Department

Diana Johnson

Merrimack County Savings Bank, Vice President Marketing Officer

William Keena

AmeriHealth Caritas New Hampshire -

Sally Kraft, MD

Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center, Vice President of Population Health

graniteuw.org

Cenlral Region | Greater Seacoast Region [ Merrimack County | North Country ] Northern Region | Southern Region | Upper Valley
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LIVE UNITED
Granite United Way

Christina Lachance

University of New Hampshire, NH Council for Thriving Children, Director

Larry Major

Pike Industries, Director of Government Relations

Roxannc Makris

Lincoln Financial Group

Carolyn Maloney

Hypertherm

Josephine Moran

Ledyard Financial Group, Inc.

Cathy Nickerson

WT/Phelan Assured Partners, Vice President of Personal Lines

Maura Palmer

Salem School District

Randy Perkins

Eversource, Senior Account Executive (Retired)

Dr. Daisy Pierce

Navigating Recovery of the Lakes Region

Kelli Riggs

Comcast

Betsey Rhynhart

Concord Hospital, Vice President of Population Health

Justin Slattery

Belknap Economic Development Council, Executive Director

Tim Soucy

Catholic Medical Center, Senior Executive Director of Community Health & Mission

Rusty Talbot

North Country Climbing Center, CEO

NickToumpas

Department of Health and Human Services, Commissioner (Retired)

Patrick Tufts, MSW

Granite United Way

graniteuw.org

Central Region | Greater Seacoast Region | Merrimack County | North Country | Northern Region | Southern Region | Upper Valley
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SHANNON SWETT BRESAW, MSW

EDUCATION

Master of Social Work
2002-2004" University of New Hampshire Durham, NH

Bachelor ofArts - Clinical Counseling Psychology

1999 - 2002 Keene State College Keene, NH

EXPERIENCE

2007 - Present

Vice President of Public Health

Granite United Way Concord, NH

Accomplishments:

•  Provides. Program Director support for the NH Governor's Recovery Friendly Workplace
initiative through program development, staff oversight, resource development,
marketing/communications, and evaluation

• Works to align and leverage Granite United Way investments and strategies with other
statewide efforts to address public health, addiction, and social determinants of health

•  Provides content expertise and consultation in the areas of substance use disorders,
public health, community development, contract management, grant writing, reporting, .
and evaluation

•  Develops and maintains strategic partnerships and relationships with key stakeholders
across NH

•  Provides contract management and oversight to 3 out of the 13 Regional Public Health
Networks in NH, including the Capital Area Public Health Network, the Carroll County
Coalition for Public Health and the South Central Public Health Network

•  Provides direction and leadership towards achievement of each Network's philosophy,
mission, strategic plans and goals, through: administration and support, program and service
delivery, financial management, and community/public relations

•  Coordinates all aspects of federal, state, and local grants and contracts, including resource
development/grant-writing, financial oversight and reporting

• Develops community health improvement plans, evaluation plans, and other data-driven,
research-informed strategic plans for the Networks

• Works with community impact committees and volunteers through Granite



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3C519D9B-F3C1-4262^14F-34B7E6BCB27D

2005 - 2007 Community Response (CoRe) Coalition Belknap County, NH

Outreach Coordinator, Project Director

Accomplishments:

•  Provided leadership for a county-wide, regional alcohol, tobacco, and other drug abuse
prevention coalition

•  Strengthened capacity of coalition through outreach and collaboration, including partnerships
with 10 community sectors, including government, schools, businesses, healthcare, and
safety

•  • Coordinated all aspects of federal, state, and local grants, including, financial oversight,
progress reports, communications, and work plan goals, objectives, and activities

•  Developed, coordinated, promoted, and implemented events, pro^ams, and trainings for
youth and adults

•  Strengthened youth leadership and involvement in substance abuse prevention activities

•  Supervised part-time staff, youth leaders, and volunteers

2004 - 2005 Caring Community Network of the Twin Rivers (CCNTR) Franklin, NH

Community Program Specialist

Accomplishments:

• Assisted in development of programming related to strengthening the public health
infrastructure

• Recruited new participants to agency committees and projects

•  Facilitated organizational collaboration, compiled research, and developed proposals to
funding sources to address community needs

•  Facilitated several ongoing committees

•  Developed and maintained productive relationships with community and state leaders and
agencies

•  Participated in several trainings/seminars related to issues including substance abuse
prevention, emergency preparedness, leadership, and public health infrastructure
development

• Wrote numerous articles and press releases concerning community and public health

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS ■

> American Public Health Association: NH Affiliate Representative to the Governing

Council 2018-Current

> NH Public Health Association: Board Member 2018-Current

> Prevention Task Force of the Governor's Commission (Co-Chair): 2017-Current

> NH Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention, Treatment and
Recovery (Prevention Representative): 2016-2018

> NH Drug Overdose Fatality Review Committee (Prevention Representative): 2016-2018
> NH Alcohol and Other Drug Service Providers Association: Treasurer 2007-2011,

2014-2015

> NH Prevention Certification Board's Peer Review Committee: 2009-2011
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Stephanie Turek

Competencies
• Strategic and creative professional with a strong history of solving problems and establishing relationships

• Proven consensus builder with success working with large and small groups of diverse stakeholders including:
corporate and legislative leaders, board members, physicians, educators, students, staff, volunteers, and

individuals

•  Energetic team leader skilled at completing projects within budget and established time frames

Professional Experience '

Granite United Way, Manchester, NH

ASSIST VICE PRESIENT. COORDINATED SERVICES. 2022

Responsible for the oversight and developrrient of Coodinated Services to enhance and improve the

efficiency, outcomes, and coordination of services among multiple diverse internal and external systems.

Oversight includes Early Childhood Initiatives, 211NH, Whole Village Family Resource Center, and Justice

Initiatives. Focus includes developing processes for data sharing, ensuring consistent high quality program
delivery, and improving collaboration among key stakeholders and partners.

Frisbie Memorial Hospital, Rochester, NH
112-bed HCA hospital serving the Greater Seocoost of NH and ME

INTERIM DIRECTOR. CENTER FOR CANCER CARE. 2020-2021

Responsible for planning, implementing, and managing operations of outpatient Oncology/Hematology

Services through ownership transition. Worked with healthcare team and administration to analyze needs
and implement strategy to improve processes and patient care. Closely monitored staffing, volumes, and

expenses. Supervised and coached clinical and nonclinical staff. Coordinated merger of two departments.
Developed and documented internal processes.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR. FUND DEVELOPMENT. 2017-2020 .

Worked with organizational leaders to identify priorities and develop and initiate programs to meet

strategic goals. Experience included project development and implementation, creation and measurement

of project outcomes, team development, reporting, compliance, communication, and budget management.
Worked with finance to improve financial controls and procedures. Collaborated with president and
leadership on special initiatives and community relations and served as internal resource. Represented

hospital leadership to internal and external audiences. Supervised Department of Volunteers and Gift Shop.

Key accomplishments:

•  Increased revenue of signature event by 18% in first year

•  Facilitated establishment of multi-million dollar fund with proceeds from the sale of the hospital

•  Administered comprehensive redeployment of hospital staff during initial COVID 19 response
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Crotched Mountain Foundation, Greenfield, NH
Human sen/ice agency anchored by a 105-student school and 62-bed hospital and outpatient clinics serving adults and children with disabilities

MANAGER. CORPORATE & FOUNDATION RELATIONS. 2013-2017

Worked with leadership, staff, and participants to establish and support program goals. Identified
opportunities for program improvement to increase resource prospects. Experience included project
management, measurement of project outcomes, award negotiations, donor engagement, and budget
management.

Key accomplishments:

•  Met grant income goal of $350,000+ through organizational leadership changes
•  Coordinated multidisciplinary teams to develop and revise clinical and educational programs

•  Implemented process changes to improve operational efficiencies and transparency

CARE NEW ENGLAND HEALTH SYSTEM (includes Butler and Kent Hospitals)

Butler Hospital, Providence, Rl
148-bed nonprofit psychiatric hospital and academic research center affiliated with Brown University

SENIOR PHILANTHROPY OFFICER. 2008-2013

Responsible for the research, cultivation, solicitation, and stewardship of individuals, corporations,
foundations, and public funds to support mental health care initiatives. Established formal grant seeking
process. Initiated outreach to local and federal legislators for policy support and resource opportunities.
Assisted with event coordination.

Key accomplishments:

•  Created process to seek funding on system-wide level (3 hospitals and one health agency)
•  Developed and implemented comprehensive strategy to secure first federal appropriation ($200,000)
•  Developed campaign to educate how the capacity of psychiatric hospital was critical to the state's

hospital emergency system

Kent Hospital, Warwick Rl
359-bed nonprofit community hospital

PHILANTHROPY OFFICER. GRANTS PROGRAM. 2004 - 2008

Responsible for budget development, research, proposal writing, creation of and adherence to submission
schedule, negotiation of award, budget and compliance, and all reporting. Coordinated with staff,
leadership, and community stakeholders to identify opportunities and develop fundable projects/programs.
Initiated relationships with public officials for policy and financial support. Met all established fundraising
goals; exceeded FY07 goal of $700,000 by more than 20%.

Education

MASTER OF ARTS Candidate, SOCIAL AND PUBLIC POLICY

Duquesne University, Pittsburgh, PA (coursework complete; thesis not presented)

BACHELOR OF ARTS, POLITICAL SCIENCE

Duquesne University, Pittsburgh, PA

GRADUATE, BUTLER HOSPITAL LEADERSHIP PROGRAM

(10-month intensive program requiring nomination, program acceptance, leadership endorsement, and final project presentation)
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary Amount Paid
from this Contract

Shannon Swett Chief Services Officer $65,000

Stephanie Turek AVP Coordinated Services $60,594.90
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Lofl A. SMblacKe
Ceragrftrieerr

Kstji & Foi
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 0J30I
60^271-9S44 1-8004524345 Eit 9544

Fm: 603-271-4332 TOD Accew: 1-800-735-2964 w^^hhi-ob-gOY

October 6, 2022

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Coundl

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Retroactive, Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Granite United
Way (VC#160015), Manchester. New Hampshire to continue , providing substance use
disorder information and call referral services through the use of 2-1-1 NH. statewide, by
increasing the price limitation by $484,999 from $1,823,156 to $2,308,155 and by extending the
completion date from September 29, 2022 to September 29, 2023, effective retroactive to
September 29, 2022 upon Governor and Council approval 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on October 31, 2018. itern
#17. amended on May 6. 2020, item #36, amended on March 24, 2021, item #17, and most
recently amended on October 13. 2021, item #32.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office.
K needed and justified.

05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES,
SOR GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Numt>er

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2019 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Svc
92057040

$186,262 $0 $186,262

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Svc
92057040

$441,695 $0 $441,695

2021 102-500731
Contracts for
Program Svc

92057040
$121,600 $0 $121,600

2021 102-500731
Contracts for
Program Svc

92057047
$121,600 $0 $121,600
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"His Exceliency. Oovcnw Christopher T.-Summu
and the Honorable Counca

Pafle2of3

2021 102-500731
Contracte for
Program Svc

92057048
$317,333 $0 $317,333

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Svc
92057048

$158,666 $0 $158,666

2022 074-500585
Contracts for

Program Svc
92057048

$357,000 $0 $357,000

2023 074-600585
Contracts for
Program Svc

92057048
$119,000 $0 $119;000

2023 074-500589
Contracts for

Program Svc
92057058

$0 $363,749 $363,749

2024 074-500589
Contracts for

Program Svc
92057058

$0 $121,250 $121,250

1 Subtotal $1,823, f 56 $484,999 $2,308,155

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactivo because the Department was notified by the Federal awarding
agerKy on September 23, 2022 of the availability of funding beyond the current contract
completion date of September 29. 2022. Due to the delayed' notification from the Federal
awarding agency, the Department viras unable to present this request to the Governor and Council
prior to the contract expiring.

This request is Sole Source because the Department is seeking to extend the contract
beyond the completion dates and there are no renewal options available. Due to the limited
timeframe between the funding notification from the Federal awarding agency and the contract
expiration date, the Department was not able to procure for these services. Any gap in services
could result in delays in accessing care.

The purpose of this request is to continue enhancing and increasing substance use
disorder information and referral services through 2-1-1 NH, the telephonic service that provides
confidential Information about substance use disorder support services, and ^
Individuals and their families. The Contractor administers the 2-1-1 NH system, which is the
number advertised throughout NH for individuals or family members to call to connect with the
NH Doorway system for access to substarKe use services.

Approximately 9,500 individuals will be served September 30, 2022 to September 29.
2023.

Individuals calling 2-1-1 NH seeking Information about substance use disorder service
access are referred to the Doonways and other resources In their community. During afleihours
and on weekends, callers are directly connected to an on-call clinician associated with Doorways
services.

The Department will continue to monitor services through the review of data reports,
periodic surveys, and other data as requested by the Department.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request individuals seeking help for
substance use disorders will not have a centralized phone number to call to initiate access to
information and connections to services, which could result in delays in accessing needed care.
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Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.788, FAIN # H79T1085759

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds wlH not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

\j/\A.Jr\^h^
Loii A. Shiblnette

Commissioner

Tht DtporUiienl of Health and Human Serviett'Miuion i$ to join eommunitiet and families
in prouiding opportunities for citixtns to achieve health and independence.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301

•  Fax: 603-271-1516 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964

mvw.nh.gov/doit

Denis Coulee

Commissioner

October 28, 2022

Lori Shibinctte, ComiTiissioner

Departmeni of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire
29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Shibinetle:

This Idler represents formal notificatibn that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into an amendment with Granite United Way, as described
below and referenced as DolT No. 2019-053 D.

The purpose of this request is to enter into an amendment with Granite United Way to
continue enhancing and increasing substance use disorder information and referral ser\'ices
through 2-1-1 NH, the telephonic service that provides confidential information about
substance use disorder support services, and referrals for individuals and their families.

The price limitation will increase by $484,999 to 52,308,155, effective upon Governor and
Executive Council approval through September 29,2023.

A copy of this letter must accompany the Department of Health and Human Sersnces' submission
to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Goulet

DG/jd •
Do!T#2019-053D

cc: Mike Williams, IT Manager

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #4

This Amendment to the Call Center (211) contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire.
Department of Health and Human Services ("Slate" or "Department"), and Granite United Way ("the
Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on October 31, 2018. (Item #17), and as subsequently amended on May 6, 2020, (Item #36), as amended
on March 24, 2021 (Item #17), and as most recently amended on October 13. 2021 (Item #32). the
Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified In the
Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Section 2. Renewal the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, and increase the price limitation, to
support continued delivery of these services: and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 29, 2023

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price LImitatipn. to read:

$2,308,155

3. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.9. Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

RotiertW. Moore, Director.

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 3, State Opioid Response (SCR) Grant Standards by
adding subsection 3.4. to read:

3.4. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department and other SCR funded Contractors, as
requested and directed by the Department, to improve Government Performance and
Results Act (GPRA) data collection.

5. Modify Exhibit B Amendment #2. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1., to
read:

1. This agreement is funded by 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, as.
awarded on 09/30/2018. by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. CFDA #93.788. FAIN H79TI081685. and
as awarded on 09/30/2020. by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI083326. as
awarded on 08/09/2021. by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI083326 and as
and as awarded on September 23, 2022, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, Assistance Listing
#93.788, FAIN H79TI085759.

6. Modify Exhibit B Amendment #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 3.. to
read:

3. Payrrient shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures Incurred in the
fulfillment.of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line Itentsas
specified In Exhibit B-1 Budget through Exhibit B-9 Amendment #4 SOR III Budc

Granite United Way A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials ^

SS-2019-BDAS.04-CALLC-01 -AtM Page 1 of 4 Date ̂ ^/26/^2
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7. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 5,
Subsection 5.1., Paragraph 5.1.3., Subparagraph 5.1.3.1., Part 5.1.3.1.4. to read:

5.1.3.1.4. Food orwater.

8. Modify Exhibit B. Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 5,
Subsection 5.1., Paragraph 5.1.3., Subparagraph 5.1.3.1., Part 5.1.3.1.7. to read:

5.1.3.1.7. RESERVED .

9. Add Exhibit B-8 Amendment #4, SOR 111 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

10. Add Exhibit 8-9 Amendment #4 SOR III Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

G~D8
ft

Granite United Way A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

SS-2019-BDAS-04.CALLC.01-A04 Page 2 of 4 Date W26/2022
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective retroactively to September 29,-2022, upon
Governor and Council approval.

•|N WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

10/26/2022

Date

■OocuSignM by;

iv S-
Name!TO"r-Fox
Title: Di rector

10/26/2022

Date

Granite United Way
^DeeiiSigntd by;

NaSTe-'^'i^^W-tk Tufts
Title: president

Granite United V^ay

SS-2019-BDAS-04-CALLC-01-A04

A-S-1.2

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

~OoeuS)on*d by:

10/25/2022

DiJT"
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Granite United Way A-S-1.2

SS-201&-BDAS-04-CALLC-01-A04 Pago 4 of 4



uocubign envelope lu; ;3L;oiauab-i-bui-4;^D',^-Ai4i--,j4b/eobL;b;^/L»

OouiSip Envelop# ©: 7M7AE0M8A»4C0VAAEA.l7(»«2Cf BOAS

Exnibil A/nendmeni ttA. SOR III Budget SS -2019-BD AS-04.CALLC-01 • A04

Now Hampshire Dopartment of Hea

Contractor Name:

Budget Request for:

Budget Period

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable)

th and Human Services

Granjfe United Way -211

Call Center (211)

FY23' (Septemtyer 29. 2022 • June 30.2023)

10.00%

Llne'ltem- ' • i

. ■

PrbgramCost>
-Furided b/pHHS,

Program Cost -' !
Contractor StiareJ

' Match

.  ■ - . " 'i

• TOTAtProgram'^^j'
' Cost

1. Salary&Wages

$210,431 $0 $210,431

2. Fringe BeneTits $45,599 SO $45,599

3. Consultants S750 SO $750

4. Equipment $1,875 SO SI.875

5.(a) Supplies - Educatior\al $0 SO $0

S.fbl Suoolies • Lab SO SO SO

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy SO SO SO

5.(d) Supplies • Medical SO SO $0

5.(e) SupoUes Office $1,902 SO SI .902

6. Travel $1,875 SO SI.875

7. Software • $3,375 SO $3,375

8. (a) Other • MarVetlnq/Communlcatlons $2,063 $0 $2,063

6. (b) Other • Education and Training $2,063 SO $2,063

8. (c) Other • Other (please spedfv)

Other Telephone ' $60,000 $0 $60,000

Other (please specfM SO SO SO

Other (please spedM SO SO SO

Other (please spedM $0 $0 SO

9. Subcontracts $750 SO $750

Total Direct Costs $330,681 so S330.681

Total Indirect Costs $33,068 SO $33,068

TOTAL $363,749 $0 $363,749

Page 1 ol \

Contractor Initials

Date

frt
itials V .1

10/26/2022
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Exhltiil 8-9 Amendment M SOR til Budget - SS-2019-BDAS^-CALLC-01-A04

New Hampshire Department of Hea

Contractor Name:

Budget Request for:

Budget Period

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)

th and Human Services

Granite United Way -211

Call Center (211)

FY24 ■ (July 1, 2023 - September 29, 2023)

10.00%

Lino Item
Progranri.Cost -
' FurKfod by DHHS

Program .Cost-
Contractor Shar^
' Match

TOfAL^Prograrri;
Cost

1. Salarr & Wages

S70.143.50 SO S70.144

2. Fringe Benefits S15.199.50 SO SI 5.200

3. Consultants $250.00 SO S250

4. Equipment S625.00 SO $625

5.(8) SuDoOes • Educational $0 SO

5.(b) SuDoOes • Lab SO SO

5.(c) Suooiies - Pharmacv SO SO

5.(d) SupbOes - Medicai - SO SO

5.(e) SupoOes Office S634.00 SO S634

6. Travel $625.00 SO S625

7. Software SI .125.00 SO ■  S1.125

ft (a) Othftf - Marketirifl/Comniunicalions S687.50 SO S688

ft (b) Other - Education and Tralnino S687.50 SO S688

8. (c) Other • Other (please spedfy)
Other fp/ease spee/fy) $20,000.00 SO S20.000

Other (please spedfy) SO.OO SO SO

Other (please spedfy) SO.OO so SO

Other (please spedfy) SO.OO so SO

9. Subcontracts $250.00 so S250

Total Direct Costs S110.227 so S110.227

Total Indirect Costs S11.023 so S11,023

TOTAL $121,250 $0 $121,250

Page 1 of 1

Contractor NUats

Date
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10/26/2022
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DmSION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

12> PLEASANT ffTREET, CONCORD. KH 03301

M3.27I.SS44 1400452-3343 Ext. 9S44

F«x: 603-271-4332 TDD Acms: 1-800-735-2964 www.OIibx.ob.cov

August 20, 2021

His Excellency. Govomor Christopher T. Sununu ^
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend an existing contract with Granite United (VC# 160015), Concord. New Hampshire,
to continue providing substance use disorder Information and call referral services through the
use of 2-1-1 NH. statewide, by exercising a contract renewal option by inaeasing the price
Qmitation by $476,000 from $1,347,156 to $1,823,156 and extending the completion date from
September 29, 2021 to September 29, 2022. effective upon Governor and Council approval.
100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on October 31, 2018, item
#17, amended on May 6. 2020. item M6. and most recently amended on March 24, 2021, item
#17.

Furids are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if need^ and justified.
05-96-92-020610-7040 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HNS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES. STATE
OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT

State

Fiscal
Yepr

Class /

Account •
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2019 102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

92057040 $186,262 -  $0 $186,262

2020 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92057040 $441,695 $0 $441,695

2021 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92057040 $121,600 $0 $121,600

2021 102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

92057047 $121,600 ■  $0 $121,600

Tht Dtportmtnl ofHtoUh and Human SirvUtt'Miuion u to join tamntunilU$ ondfamitUi
in prouiding opporUinitUi for (iliztns to achUvn htolOi and indtptndtnct.
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His ExoeDency, Govomor CMstopher T. Sununu
ond ihe Honorabie CouncO
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2021 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92057046 $317,333 SO. $317,333

2022 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92057048

$158,666 $0 $158,666

2022 074-500585:

Grants for

Pub Asst and

Rel
92057048

$0 $357,000 $357,000

2023 074-500585

Grants for

Pub Asst and
Ret

92057048

$0 $119,000 $119,000

total $1,347,166 $476,000 $1,823,166

^PLANATION.

The purpose of this request is to continue enhancing .and increasing substance use
disorder information and referral senrices through 2-1-1 NH, a telephonic service that provides
confidentia) information about substance use disorder support services, and referrals for
individuals and their families statewide.

Approximately 5.400 individuals v^ll be served from September 30. 2021 through
September 29, 2022.

Individuals calling 2-1-1 NH seeking information or substance use disorder service access
are referred to the Doorways and other current resources In their community. During afterhours
and on weekends, callers are directly connected to an on-cail clinician associated with Doorways
services.

From January 1, 2021 through July 31, 2021, 2-1-1 NH received 62.004 calls, of which
3.932 calls were related to substance use disorder. The 3,932 calls related to substance use
disorder resulted in 3,815 referrals directly to the Doorways. Including 1,111 dir^ transfers to an
on-call clinician associated with the Doorways.

Services provided through 2-1-1 NH are multilingual and available twenty-four (24) hours
per day. seven (7) days per week. Call center senrices Iriclude providing assistance to clients
v/ilh locating transportation, emergency shelter.- and Information relative to respite shelter
vouchers.

The Contractor continues to ensure Individuals calling for reasoris related to substance
use disorder are able to speak to a 2-1-1 NH representative during the initial call. Further, filers
remain on the line while the 2-1-1 NH representative connects the Individual to a Doonway during
business hours, or art orvcall Doorways clinician after hours.

The Department wlfl continue developing performance measures,-utilizing baseline data
collected on the percentage of callers who received a busy tone when they call; the average
amount of time callers wait In call queues before en agent responds; the percentage of callers
who hang up l)efore reaching an agent; and the average amount of time for the call to be
answered.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for up to two (2) years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department Is
exercising its option to renew services for one (1) of the one.(1) year available at this time.

Should the Governor end Council not authorize this request. Individuals seeldng help for
8ut>stance um disorders wiQ not have a centralized phone number to call to initiate access to
information and connections to services, which could result in delays in eccessir^g r>eeded care
and may result in deaths, overdoses and relapses.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assl^ance Ltstlnig Number #93.788, FAIN #H70TIO83326

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds virlll not be
requested to support thb program. • *

•  Respectfully submitted.

Lorl A Shtblnette

Commissioner
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Haien Dr.. Concord, NH 03301

Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/doil

Denis Couiet

Commissioner

\

August 30, 2021

Lori A. Shibinciic, Commissioner
Departmcni orHcolth ond Human Services
Siaic of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Shibinetic:

This letter represents formal notification that the Depanmcnt of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to amend an existing contract with Granite United Way of, Concord.
NH as described below and referenced as DolT No. 2019-053C.

The purpose of this amendment is to enhance and increase substance use disorder
information and referral services through the 2-1*1 NH statewide telephonic service that
provides confidential information about substance use disorder support services, and
referrals for individuals and their families statewide.

The funding amount for this amendment is $476,000, increasing the current contract from
51,347,156 to 51,823,156 and by extending the completion date to September 29, 2022,
from the original completion date of September 29, 2021. This amendment shall become

. effective upon Governor ond Executive Council opproval through September 29, 2022.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health ond Human Services' submission
to the Governor and Executive Council for approval. ^

.  Sincerely,

/(U yM"
Denis Goulet

DG/kaf

DolT#/20I5-053C

RID: N/A

cc: Michael Williams, IT Manager, DolT

"innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's romorrow"
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Call Center (211) contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Granite United Way ("the
Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Govemor and Executive Council
on October 31, 2016, (Item /^17), as amended on May 6. 2020, (Item #36), subsequently amended March
24, 2021, (Item #17). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHER^S, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parlies and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in corisideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7. Completion Dale, to read:

September 29. 2022.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,823,156.

3. Modify Exhibit A. Amendment #1 Section 3. State Opbid Response (SOR) Grant Slarxlards.
Subsection 3.3 to read:

3.3 Reserved

4. Modify Exhibit A. Amendment #1. Scope of Services, Section 3, State Opioid Response (SOR)
Grant Standards, Paragraph 3.5.4, to read:

3.5.4. The Contractor shall ensure that SOR grant funds are not used to purchase, prescribe, or
provide marijuana or treatment using marijuana. The Contractor shall ensure:

3.5.4.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of opioid use disorder (CUD).

3.5.4.2. Grant funds are not provided to any individual who, or organization that, proyides
or permits marijuana use for the purposes of treating substance use or mental
disorders.

' 3.5.4.3. This marijuana restriction applies to all subcontracts and memorandums of
understanding (MOD) thai receive SOR funding.

5. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #1. Scope of Services, Section 3. State Opioid Response (SOR)
Grant Standards, by adding Subsection 3.6., to read:

3.6. The Contractor shall provide a Fentanyl test strip utilization plan to the Department for
approval prior to implementation. The Contractor shali.ensure the utilization plan Includes:

3.6.1. Internal policies for the distribution of Fentanyl strips;

3.6.2. Distribution methods and frequency: and

3.6.2. Other key data as requested by the Department.

6. Modify Exhibit B Amendment #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1., to
read:

(—1. This agreement is funded by 100% Federal funds from the Stale Opioid Response <^^t. as

2019-BOAS-04-CALLC-01-A03 Granito United Way Contractor

A-S-1.0 Pago 1 of 5 Dale
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awarded on 09/30/2018. by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI081685. and
as awarded on 09/30/2020. by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI083326, and
as awarded on 08/09/2021, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI083326.

7. Modify Exhibit B Amendment #2. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 3., to
read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures Incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit 8-1 Budget through Exhibit B-7 Amendment.#3 SOR 11 Budget.

8. ■ Modify Exhibit B /Amendment #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 5., to
read:

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice and supporting backup documentation In a form
satisfactory to the State by the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month, which
identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.
The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the Department
in, order to initiate payment. Invoices shall be net any other revenue received towards the
services billed in fulfillment of this agreement. The Contractor shall ensure:

5.1. Backup documentation includes, but is not limited to:

5.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

5.1.2. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employees worked for
wages reported urxfer this contract.

5.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)(1) Charges to Federal awards for
salaries and wages must be based on records that accurately
reflect the work performed.

5.1.2.2. Attestation and time tracking templates, which are available to the
Department upon request.

5.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

5.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to:

5.1.3.1.1. Amounts belonging to other programs^

5.1.3.1.2. Amounts prior to effective date of contract.

5.1.3.1.3. Construction or renovation expenses.

5.1.3.1.4. Food or water for employees.

5.1.3.1.5. Directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or
provide marijuana or treatment using marijuana.

5.1.3.1.6. Fines, fees, or penalties.

5.1.3.1.7. Per SAMSHA requirements, meals are generally
unallowable unless they are an Integral part of a
conference grant or specifically stated as an
allowable expense in the'FOA. Grant funds may be
used for light snacks, not to exceed three dollars

Ft

2019-BDAS-04-CALLC-01-A03 Grentle United Way Contractor

A-S-i.C Page 2 of 5 Date ,
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($3.00) per person for clients.

5.1.3.1.8. Cell phones and cell phone minutes for clients.

5.1.4. Receipts for expenses within the applicable stale fiscal year.

5.1.5. Cost center reports.

5.1.6. Profit and loss report.

5.1.7. Remittance Advices from the insurances billed. Remittance Advices do not
need to be supplied with the invoice, but should be retained to t)e available
upon request.

5.1.8. Information requested by the Department verifying allocation or offset based
on third party revenue received.

5.1.9. Summaries of patient services revenue and operating revenue and other
financial Information as requested by the Department.

9. Add Exhibit B-6 Amendment #3, SOR 11 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

10. Add Exhibit B-7 Amendment #3 SOR II Budget, which Is attached hereto and Incorporated by
reference herein.

[ Pt
2O19-0DAS-O4-CALLC-O1-AO3 Granile Uniled Way ' Contractor

A-S-1.0 Page 3 of 5 Dale
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive

Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the dale written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health, and Human Services

8/31/2021

Date

j  lUt^ fc£
Namexatja Fox
Title:

Director

8/25/2021

Date

Granite United Way

0ecuS>gn*4

( Paivilk Tu/h
.(TStVAIIfOKSF.

Name: Patrick Tufts

President

SS-2019-BOAS-04.CALLC-01-A03

A-S-1.0

Granlio Uniled Way

Pago 4 of 5
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The preceding Amendmenl, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

^  »r:

8/31/2021
^  OKAe237£lX4Al_

LarhtiPlny Klnu>
Date Name:

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ^ (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

•  SS-2019-8DAS-04-CALLC-01-A03 Granile Unlled Way

A-S-1.0 Page 5 of 5
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHJm:

LeH A. Sbldaeftc
ContAUslontr

Kjili$.fes
DImtor

DEPARTMENT Of HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA V/ORAl HEAL TH

IJ9 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03J0I
MM7I.9S44 l.e004S2-3HSEiL9ft44

Fu:60>77M13I TDDAccui: f400«73S>2964 www.dhhi.nh.|ov

February 10. 2021

His Excellency, Goverrwr Christopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Council

State House

C^cord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to Retroactively amend an existing Solo Source contract with Granite United Way (Vendor
#160015-8001). Concord. NH to continue providing substance use disorder Information and call
referral services through the use of 2-1-1 NH. statewide, by exercising a renewal option by
increasing the price limitation by $247,156 from $1,100,000 to $1,347,156 eryj by extending the
completion date from September 29, 2020 to September 29. 2021 effective retroactive to
September 30, 2020 upon Governor end Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council oh October 31, 2018. (Item
#17) and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on May 6, 2020,''(ltem #36).

Funds ore available In the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021 and are anticipated
to be available In State Fiscal Year 2022.-.upon the aveilabilHy and continued appropriation of
funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price
limitation and encumbrances betw^n slate fiscal years through the Budget Office, if need^ and
justified.

0S-e5-92-O20510-7040 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HNS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV. BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES; STATE
OPIOIDRESPONSE'ORANT '

Stato

Flecal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased
(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2019 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92057040 $378,400 $(192,138) $186,262

• 2020 102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

92057040 $600,000 $(158,305) ■ $441,695

2021 ■102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

92057040 $121,600 $0 $121,600

7h* Otperlihtnt 9/ HtcttK ond Hufixon li ta /oin C0Ai/iiuntnV« end fontilia
In p/vvidingcpperUintiiu for eiliunt to oehitvt end indtptAdtnce.
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Hb Excellency. Governor Chrlttopher T. Sununu
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2021 102-500731

Contracts (or

Program
Services

92057047 $0 $121,600 $121,600

2021 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services -

92057048 $0 $317,333 $317,333

2022 102-500731

Contracts for
Progranr>
Services

92057048

$0 $158,666 $158,666

I
Total $1,100,000 $247,168 1.347.168

TMs request Is Retroactive because there could not be a lapse In services to clients.
AdditlonBlly. sufficient funds In State Piscal Year 2021 were not evallable in the operating budget
considering the grant amount awarded, and due to delay by the Substance Abuse and Mental
Health ̂ Arices Administretion (SAMHSA) in approving New Hampshire's requests (or continued
State Opioid Response Grant funding the efforts to add the state appropriations were deferred.

This request is Solo Source because the contract was originally approved as sole source
and MOP 150 requires any subsequent am'endrnents to be labelled as sole source. The
Oepartmenl utilizes 2-1-1 NH as. its public-facing system to access Information and service
referrals for substance use disorder services.

The purpose of this request Is to continue enhancing and increasing substance'use
disorder information and referral services through 2-1-1 NH. a telephonic service that provides
corifldentlal Information about substance use disorder support services, and referrels for
Individuals end their families statewide.

Approximately 30.000 individuals will be served from September 30, 2020 through
September 29. 2021.

Individuals calling 2-1-1 NH seeking information or substance use disorder service access
are referred to current resources in their community and. svtien appropriate, directly connected to
an on-cal) clinician associated with Doorways services.

Services provided through 2-1-1 NH are multilingual and available twenty-four (24) hours
per day. seven (7) days per week. Call center services have been enhanced to include assistance
with locating transporietion for eligible clients; providing assistance for clients who are In need of
emergency shelter, and utilizing a respite sheltor voucher policy for Doorway clients and their
families.

'  The Department will continue monitoring contracted services using the following
performance measures:

•  The percentage of callers who received a busy tone when they call.

•  The average amount of time callers wait in call queues before an agent responds.

•  The percentage of callers who hang up before reaching an agent.

•  The average amount of lime for the call to be 'answered.
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As referenced In Exhibit C-1 of the original conUact. the parties have the option to erfend
the agreement for up to two (2) years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties end Governor and Council approval. The department is
exercising its option to renew services for one (1) of the two (2) years available at this lime.

Should the Governor and Coundl not authorize this request. Individuals seeking help for
sut)stance use disorders may not have a phone number to call to initiate asking for help, which
could result In potential delays in their access to care.

Area served: Statewide.

Sourcoof Funds: CFDA«93.788. FAIN H081685 and FAIN TI083326.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. Ger^eral Funda will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shiblnette

Commissioner
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

77- Hazcn Dr., Concord. NH 03301

Fax: 603-271.1516 TOD Acccsi: l«X)-735-2964

vvww.nh.gov/doil

Denb Coulet

Commiisiontr

Lori A. Shibincttc. (^mmissioncr
Deportment of Health and Human Services
Slate of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Stixct

Concord. NH 03301

\

Dear Commissioner Shiblneitc:

February 3, 202!

This letter represents formal'noiincation that the Dcpanmeni of Information Technology (OolT)
has approved your agency's request to retroactively amend an existing Sole Source contract with Craniic
United Way of, Concord, NH as described below and referenced as DolT No. 2019-0536. •

The purpose of this anKndmcnt is to enhance and increase substance use disorder
information and referral services through the 2-1-1 NH statewide telephonic service that
provides conndcntini information about substance use disorder support services, and
referrals for Individuals and their families' statewide.

The funding amount for this amendment is 5247,156, Increasing the current conlmci from
$1,100,000 to $1,347,156 and by extending the completion date to September 29, 2021,
from the original completion date of September 29, 2020. This amendment shall become
effective retroactive to September 30. 2020 upon Co\*cmor and Executive Council
approval through September 29, 2021.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services' submission
to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Goulcl

DCAaf

DolT«0l5-0538

RID: N/A

cc: Michael Williams, IT Manager, DolT

7nnovof/ve Technologies Todoy fof fJew Hompshire's Tomorrow'
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. New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Call Center (211)

State of New Hampshire ■

Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #2 to the Call Center (211) Contract

This 2^ Amendment to the Call Center (211) contract (hereinafter referr^ to as 'Amendment #2") Is by
and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Hun>an Services (hereinafter
referred to as the "Slate* or "Departmenl") and Granite United Way. (hereinafter referred to as 'the
Contractor"), a nonprofit with a place of business at 22 Concord Street. 2^ Floor. Manchester. NH 03105.
WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on October 31.2018. (Item «17). as amended on May 6.2020, (Item #36). the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified In the Contract es amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuarii to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18. the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parlies and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parlies agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price iimiialion.to
support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE. In conslderalion of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions^ Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

September 29. 2021.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

$1,347,156.

3. Modify Exhibit A Amendrnent #1. Scope of Serv'tces. Section 2. Scope of Work. Subsection 2.3. to
read: ,

2.3. The Contractor shall coordinate social marketing campaigns. Including but not limited lo
the Doorway public messaging campaign, that promote 2-1-1 NH wiih existing networks
that include, but are not limited to Ihe Regional Public Health Networks (RPHNs)

4. Modify Exhibit A. Amendment #1. Scope of Services. Section 3. State Opioid Response (SOR)
Grant Standards, to read:

3.1. The Contractor shall establish format Information sharing and referral agreements with the
Doorways, compliant vrith ail applicable confidentiality lav/s. including 42 CFR Part 2.

3.2. The Contractor shall assist the Department with verifying that client referrals lo the
Doorways have been completed by ihe Contractor.

3.3. The Contractor shall provide the Departmenl with a budget narrative within thirty (30 days
of the contract effeclive date.

3.4. The Contractor shall meet with Ihe Department within sixty (60) days of the contract
effective date to review contract Implemeriialion.

3.5. The Contractor shall provide Ihe Departmenl with timelines and implementation plans
associated with SOR-funded acliviiles lo ensure services are In place within thirty (30) days
of contract effeclive dale, unless the Departmenl approves an altemallve timeline at Ihe
request of the vendor.

3.5.1. If services are unable to be offered within the required timeframe, Ihej^^aclor
Granite UNicd Way AmDndfnont«2 Coniradof IntOalsi
SS-2019-BOAS-04CALLC-01-A02 Pago l ol 5 Dole I
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Call Center (211)

/N.

shall submit an updated implementation plan to the Department for approval to
outline anticipated service start dates.

3.5.2. The Department reserves the right to terminate the contract and liquidate
unspent funds if services are not in place within ninety (90) days of contract

effective date.

3.5.3. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to understand and comply

with all appropriate OHHS. State of NH. SAMHSA. and other F^eral terms,
condilions, and requirement.

3.5.4. The Gontractor shall attest the understanding that SOR grant funds may. not be
used, directly or Indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide marijuana or
treatment using marijuana. The Contractor agrees that:
3.5.4.1. Treatrnent in this context includes the treatment of opioid use

disorder (OUD).

3.5.4.2. Grant funds also cannot be provided to any individual who or
organization that provides or permits marijuana use for the purposes

•  of treating substance use or mental disorders.

3.5.4.3. This marijuana restriction applies to all subcontracts and

memorandums of understanding (MOU) lhat receive SOR funding..

' 3.5.4.4. Attestations will be provided to the Contractor by the Department.'

3.5.4.5. The Contractor shall cornplele and submit aD attestations to the
Departmenl within thirty (30) days of contract approval.

3.5.5. ■ The Conlraclor shall refer to Exhibit C for grant terms and conditions Including,
but not limited to:

3.5.5.1. Invoicing;

3.5.5.2. Funding restrictions; and

3.5.5.3. Billing

5. Modify Exhibit A Amendment ff1. Scope of Services, Section 5. Reporting, by adding Subsection
5.2 to read:

5.2. The Contractor shall prepare and submit ad hoc data reports, respond to periodic surveys,
and other data collection requests as deemed necessary by the Department and/or
SAMHSA.

6. Modify Exhibit A Amendment U\, Scope of SerNrices. Section 6. Performance Measures by adding
Subsection 6.4 to read:

6.3. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to enhance contract management.
Improve results and adjust program delivery and policy based on successful outcomes.

7. Modify Exhibit 8. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, by replacing in Its entirely with
Exhibit B Amendment #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, In order to bring
payrhenl terms into compliance with current Department of Administrative Services Manual of
Procedures standards, which is attached hereto arKl Incorporated by reference herein.

8. Reduce the total SPY 2019 budget amount by $192,138, which is identified as unspent funding of
which $121,600 is being carried forward to fund the activities In this Agreemenf^o6FY21

Ff
Gronlie United Woy AmendmonlW Contractof Initials I

SS.20ie-BOAS-04-CALLC^>-A02 Page 2of 5 Da*- ̂ 7572021
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Call Center (211)

(September'30. 2020 through December 31. 2020). as specified in Exhibit B-3 Amendment #2
NCE; and of which $70,538 Is being carried forward to fund the activities in this Agreement for SFY
21 (January 1. 2021 through June 30. 2021) as specified, in part. In Exhibit B-4 Amendment #2
SORII.

9: Ivlodify Exhibit B-1 Amendment #1 Budget (SPr'20). by reducing the total budget amount by
$158,305. which is Identified as unspent funding that is being carried forward to fund the activities
In this.Agreement for SFY21 (January 1. 2021 through June 30. 2021) as specified, in part, in
Exhibit B-4 AmerxfmenI U2 SOR II.

10. Add Exhibit B-3 Amendment «2 NCE. which is attached hereto anO incorporated by reference
herein.

11. Add Exhibit 8-4 Amendment #2 SOR II. which is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference
herein.

,12. Add Exhibit B-5 Amendment #2 SOR 11. which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

utialslGroflilo Unlied Way AmendmeniW2 Conwaclof

SS.2O10BDAS-O4-CALLC-O1-AO2 PageJofS OMzE—l-
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Call Center (211)

Ali terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not Inconsistent with this Amendment U2
remain In full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective September 29. 2020, upon Governor
and Executive Council approval. ^

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

Slate of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

2/4/2021

Date

f  Fm
\  coflOMatMUia

Name:

Title: oi rector

Granite United Way

2/3/2021

Dale

Oeoaie** fcy:

ftMc.

Nam^
Title: President

Groniio Urtilod Way

SS-2019-80AS-04-CAILC-01-A02

Amendmonl 02

Page 4 o< 5
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

2/12/2021

4^.

Date Name:
■'"A'fiyrine Pinos

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregding Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Councit of
the Stale of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Dale Name:
■ Title:

Gfon»oUr>itodWay Amcndmcni«2
SS-2Ot9BOAS-O4-CALLC-O1-A02 Page 5 ol 5
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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EXHIBIT B Amendment #2

Methods arid Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This Agreement Is funded by 100% F^erai funds from the Stale Opioid Response Grant, as
awarded on 09/30/2018, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Seh/ices Administration. CFDA #93.788. FAIN H79TI081685. and

as awarded on 09/30/2020, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Admiriistration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN
H79TI083326.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1.The Department has Identified the Contractor as a Contractor, in accordance with 2 CFR
200.330.

2.2.The Department has identified this Cor>tract as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR
§200.87.

2.3.Th.e de minimis Indirect Cost Rate of 10% applies in accordance with 2 CFR §200.414.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred In the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall t>€ in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit B-1 Budget through Exhib.lt 8-5 Amendment #2 SOR 11 Budget.

4. The Contractor shall seek payment for services, as follows:

4.1. First, the Contractor shall charge the client's private insurance or or payor sources.

4.2. Second, the Contractor shall charge Medicare.

•  4.3. Third, the Contractor shall charge Medicaid enrolled individuals, as follows:'

4.3.1. Medicaid Care Management: If enrolled with a Managed Care Organization
(MCG), the Conlraclbr shall be paid in accordance with its contract with the
MCO.

4.3.2. Medicaid Fee for Service: The Contractor shall bill Medicaid for services on the

Fee for Service (FFS) schedule.

4.4. Fourth,.the Contractor shall charge the client in accordance with the Sliding Fee Scale

Program.

4.5. Lastly, if any portion of the amount specified in the Sliding Fee Scale remains unpaid,
charge the Department for the unpaid balance.

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the fifteenth (15th)
working day of the following month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for
authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The Contractor shall ensuredhe invoice is

I pt
Grtrtto U«*od W«y Eithibil B Am«ndinftntrt Coot^Oor l/vUahl

77777021
SS-20iWOaS.04^UC-01-A02 P4g«lol4 Oaw

Rev.0tA)6/l9
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EXHIBIT B Amendment #2

completed, dated and returned to the Department in order'to initiate payment, invoices shall

be net any other revenue received towards the services billed in fulfillment of this agreement.
The Contractor shall ensure:

5.1. Backup documentation includes, but is not limited to:

5.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

5.1.2. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employees worked for
wages reported under this contract.

5.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)(1) Charges to Federal awards for salaries
and wages must be based on records that accurately reflect the work

performed. '

5.1.2.2. Attestation and time tracking templates, which are available to the
Department upon request..

5.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

5.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to:

5.1.3.1.1. Amounts belonging to other programs.

5.1.3.1.2. Amounts prior to effective date of contract.

5.1.3.1.3. Conslruction or renovation expenses.

5.1.3.1.4. Food or water for employees.

5.1.3.1.5. Directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide
marijuana or treatment using marijuana.

5.1.3.1.6. Fines, fees, or penalties.

5.1.3.1.7. Per SAMSHA" requirements, meals are generally
unallowable unless they are an integral part of a conference
grant or speciHcally stated as an allowable expense in the
FOA. Gram funds may be used for light snacks, not to
exceed three dollars ($3.00) per person for clients.

•  5.1.3.1.8. Cell phones and cell phone minutes for clients.

5.1.4. Receipts for expenses within the applicable stale fiscal year.

5.1.5. Cost center reports.

5.1.6. Profit and loss report.

Grartfle UnfioO woy EiWUil B AmortJm»nl«

5S-201»eOAS^)4-CALLC*01-A02 P39o2or4

Rev. OtA3a/19
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Call Center (211)

EXHIBIT B Amendment #2

5.1.7. Remittance Advices from the Insurances billed. Remittance Advices do not

need to be supplied with the invoice, but should be retained to be available upon

request.

5.1.6. Information requested by the Department verifying allocation or offset based on
third party revenue received.

5.T.9. Summaries of patient services revenue and operating revenue and other
financial information as requested by the Department.

6. The Contractor is responsible for revieNving, understanding, and complying with further
restrictions included in the Funding Opportunity Announcement (FOA).

7. In lieu of Kard copies, all invoices may t>e assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
mellssa.glrdrd@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

SCR Financial Manager

Department of Health and Human Services

105 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

8. the Contractor agrees that billing submitted for review after twenty (20) business days of the
last day of the billing month may be subject to non-payment.

9. The Stale shall make paym^t to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available.

10. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion dale specified in Form P-37; General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

11. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit A Amendment #1 Scope of Services, in

compliance with funding requirements.

12. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part
in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit A Amendment #1,

Scope of Services. Including failure to submit required monthly and/or quartery reports.

13. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37. changes limited to adjusting
amounts within the price limitation and adjusling encumbrances between State Fiscal Years
and budget class lines through the Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both
parlies, without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and

justified.

14. Audits

ft
ConlrtKtoi irtliaU

021

Grsfllio United Wey Eidtibit B A/nendment P7
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New Hampshire Department of Health.and Human Services
Call Center (211)

EXHIBIT B Amendment #2

14.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department if any of the
following conditions exist;

14.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in federal funds
received as a subrecipienl pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, during the most recently
completed fiscal year.

14.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the requirements of
NH RSA 7:28. lll-b. pertaining to charitable organizations receiving support of
$1,000,000 or more.

14.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required by Security and
Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit an annual financial audit.

14.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit performed by
an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the Department lA^thin 120 days
after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200. Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative
Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

14.3. If Condition's or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual financial
audit perfonned by an independent CPA within 120 days after the close Of the
Contractor's fiscal year.

14.4. Any Contractor that receives an'amount equal to or greater than $250,000 from the
Department during a single fiscal year, regardless of the funding source, may be-
required, at a minimum, to submit annual financial audits performed ■ by an
independent CPA if the Department's risk assessment determination indicates the
Contractor is high-risk.

14.5. In addition to. and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood arid agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for
any state or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department all payments
made under the Contract 16 which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed.because of such an exception.

Crwrtia United Way E*«bilBAmafxJrnoniff2

SS-20lW}DA$-04-CAaC-0l-A02 Page 4 of < •
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

department OF HEALTH V'D H^MAN SERVICES

DiyiStOf^ FOR BEHA ViORAl HBAIW

mfLUSANTrre£ET.COK»RO.«H 0J)91
«eV)T|.t3Ai IAOMU-AMCilMAA

TOOAtteu: l-«e.73F-WW ww.eht*.Bb4«»

3(i)
I

March 2A. 2020

His Exceltoncy. Governor Chrisiophcr T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTEO ACTION

Authorize the Departmenl of Health end Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to emend en existing oolo eourco agreement with Granite United Way (Vendor tfi600l5-B001P)-
22 Concord Street Second Roor, Manchester. NH 03105. to provide substence-use disorder
Information and cail referral .services through 2-M NH. statewWe. by increes.ng the pnce
limitation by 5100.000 from $1,000,000 lo$1.l00.000. with hochangeto'the contract cornplebm
date of September 29. 2020. effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval. 100%
Federal Funds.

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on
October 31. 201B(ltemd17).

Funds to support this request are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years
2020 end 2021 with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation, and adjust
oncumbrances between state fi'scal years through the Budget Office, if needed and Justified.
05-95-92.920516-70^ HEALTH AND SOCtAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES,
STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT

SFY
Clase/.

Account
Claee Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget •
Increaeo/

(Decrease)

Modined
Budget

2019
102-

500731

Contracts for

Prog Svc
92057040 5500.000 ($121,600) 5378.400

2020
102-

500731

Contracts for

Prog Svc
92057040 5500.000 5100.000"  5600.000

2021
102-

500731

Contracts for

Prog Svc
92057040 SO $121,600 $121,600

Total 51.000,000 ■ $ioo;ooo 51,100,000

[ D
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EXPLANATION

•  The otWnal oohttact Is solo source because the Departmani utilizes 2-1-1 NH as tepubl a^ss In.ormatior, anP service referrals fo, substance use drsorder
68fvices. ^

The Duroose o( this request is to enhance and Increase substance use disorder
information 'knTi^tenat servl»s through 2-1-1 NH, a PX'"'"
confidential Inlormatlon about substance use disordei support services, and referrals
tndMduols end their fomiUea ctatewWe.

■  This request, tf opprovod. wlB enhance current sorvlccG by:
.  Providing emergency transportation and emergency sheltering options Jo

Doorway clients when It Is deemed that no other options for Ihceo services exist.
. Adding a'Community Liaison Spedarst (40% FTE) to conr^ect individuals to

supportive services related to StJD in their region.
• p'rovidinQ funds to purchase'dosed lc»p referral software.

Approximately-^0.000 individuals will be served from May 6. 2020 through Septofnber
29.202Q.

Granite United Way assists clients wiih identifying service/leeds end provides referrals
to Doolways ond other human services providers: The Contrador

. monitoring and improvement edivities to ensure services provided meat Department standards.
Individuals who call 2-1-1 NH seeking Information or substance use disorder serviw

■  access are referred to current resources in their community and. when appropnaie. directly
connected to an on-call clinician associated with the Stale's newly created Doorways services. •

Services provided through 2-M NH are multilingual and available h^nty.-four (24) hours
Dcr day seven (7) days per week. As marKeting and outreach for Slate Optoid
Wtiatives increases, the Department anticipates more capacity for 2-1-1 NH
needed to address Increased call volume, especially as additional
available If this request Is approved. 2-1-1 NH call center services will be enhanced to incite
assistance with locating transportation for digibte clients; providing assistance (or clients v^o

•  are in need of emergency shelter; and wording with the Department to develop a respite shelter
voucher policy for Doorway clients and their families.
'  . The above outlined epptoach is part of the Siete s eceepled pfoposai to Ihe SubsianM.

Abuse and fvlenial Heaiih Services Adminislfatton (SAMHSA) Stale Opioid
■  ofant opportunity. Wiih this lunding opportunity, the
methods to expend treatment, recovery end prevention setvtcos for mdividuais with opioid use
disorder In New Hampshire.

The Oepartmeni will monitor the effectiveness of the contract.and the delivery of services
- using the following performano© measures:

• The percentage of callers who received a busy tone when they call.
.  The average amount of time callers wail in coil queues before an agent responds.
• The pert^nlago of callers who hang up before reaching an agent.
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•  The average amount of lime for the calilo be answeied.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, irwfividuals may
have limited Information about services ̂ at are available for individuals who have substance
use disorders, which may result in polentlal delays in access to care.

- Ares served: Statewide. - '

Source of Funds* 100%' Federal Funds from me Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration. CFDAd93.788 FAIN «H787I081685. •
In the event that the Federoi Funds Ijecome no lor>ger available. Gof»ero» Furtds win not be
requested to support this program. -

Respectfully submitted

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner

Tkt DtpO'Uutitl e/H«oltA oaV Sitvinj'Miuiwi it lAfoln co-i»»u«;<io /aaiiliet
inpf9vHUf9fipoHi4»uiu/ofthiumtoothSM Aco/lA ond Snritptn'tt'Xt.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

37 Haicn Dr.. Concord. NM 03301
F#*: 603-27I-1516 TOO Axmy. 1-600-73S-2864

. www.nK^ov/doit

DcnitCouIti
CommijS'OMr •

April 3, 2030

Lori A. Shibineuc, Commisiioncr

Depanmeni of.HeaUh and Human Services
Sio(e of New Hampshire
129 Pleasani Sircei
Concord. NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Shlbineite:

This leiie^ represents formAl noiiricoiion that the Oepartnwm of Infomialion T«hnology (OolT)
■ has approved your agency's requesi to enicr into o solc source contraci omendmcni with Creniie Untied
Way, (Vendor C 202684-B00l)of Manchcsier, New Hampshire 03 IDS as described ̂ low and referenced
a5DoITNo.20l9-053A.

'  The-purpose of this amendment is io enhance' and Increase substance use disorde'r
information and.referral services ihrotigh the2*l*l NH statewide tclfcphonic service. The
call center services will be enhanced to incliidc assistance with locating transportation for
eligible clients, providing assistance for clients who ar.c in i»ecd ofemergcrtcy shelter, and
working with DHHS to develop a respite shelter voucher policy for Doonvay clients and
their families.

This amendment will increase the contnct amount by SlOO.OOO from SI.OOO.OOO to
St 100,000, with no change to the contract completion date, nr>d shnll become effective

, upon the dale of Governor and E.sccuiive Council approval through September 29.2020.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely.

OcnisGoulet

DG/ik
DolT«20l9^S3A

I

cc: Brucc Smiih, IT Manager. DolT

"/nnovolfvc reehnofofl'ei Today f^r New Hompshlfe^^ Tomorrow'
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
cell Center (2^11

Sute of Now Hampshire
•  • Ocparvnent of Hcatth and Human Sorvkce

Amendment flf to the Call Corner (211) Conlraci

SlrS^cmi In «« Conlrad » amenfleO and In consBe.aton ol arta^ .uma Bpocir«>. and
whereas, ine Stala and the Conimaof h«y« aoieed to make cnangw (o me tcope of «rti. payment
stfvedules Of lerms end conditions of the contrad; end

WHEREAS pursuam to Form p.37..Genefai Pto>4s«ns. Peragreph 18. ihe Conirocl moy^ emended^  S^n^of^ia p.rti« o«J ap^ai lT«n the Governor end Eiaortr^ Ctxmcit. and
WHEREAS, the porttos agree io tncraaao the price Cimitallon end modify the icope of ̂ rvioee to support
continued deOvery of these services; end

WHEREAS, all tenna end oixfKioni ol th. CcnOad and prim amandmenli nol incomlsldnl w» Win
Amendment dl remain tn fuD force and effed; and

NOW THEREFORE. In consideraUon of the foregoing and the mutual cove^^ond cond«ions contamed
in iho Contrad and set lorth horeln. the parties hereto agree to amend as foiicwo.

1. Form P-37. General Provisions. BlocX 1.8. Price LImttalion. to read:
$1,100,000.

2. Dclelo Exhlbd A. Scope of Sewlces In Us entirely and reptece wtlh ExhiWl A Amendmervl fll. Scope
of Services.

3. AddExhsbH B-1 Amendmeniai.

4. Add Exhibit B-2Ampndmenldi.

The nst of this p*gc left /nfenfiOfldBj' blank.

Orsr^n Un'iodWe; Am«nei)an\ o> ConVictor Inhhh ——

o«.
SS^ia-BOASOiCAitC-AOi p»9» 1 o< J
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G

New Hampshire Ocp.oftment of Health and Human Services
C8llCenter(2ti)

Thia amendmenl ihsO be efleclive upon the date of Covomer and EicculWe Council oppfoval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties r^flve act ihci» hands os of ihe date vntnen below.

State of New Hampshire
Department ol Health and Human Servicof.

S/'a^l'ao
Date ame: Kefia S. roxName: Kelia

Tilto: Director

Daio

Unit WayGranle

Aclinowtodgomeni of Conlrxtpfa lignah^'e:

c..,. ̂  kv County ol 0^%iiiiLdZ^- "
uSarSoned offlS^onaliy oppearcd ihc pe«on:/dcmined directly obovTe. or MlWadortty proven to»bovo. ^ ackno^^aod that afhe oxoculod lhis doarmonl «the
cepaoty indicated above.

.

of me PeaceSignatm of Notary Putiw or Justice >

L>^aJ fl
nWo end Tilto of Nota^ or Justice of the Peace

Uy Commission Ei^ros:

KAhOCEN A. eCAMLON
r.'il'wVlVsae • NoerHsnplhka

Ky Corrraisito Ej^bes Juno 14< 2020

CfSNu UrfM Wsy

S$-20>P80AS4>eCM.lC

Amifd««NVt

PoOelNS
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New Hompehlfo C)«pfirtm»ftt of Koolth and Human Sorvlcoo
Call Contof (211) •

pfOMKlIno AmefX^nent. havinfl been rev1w«d by mn cfTco. b approved oe (o torn,, eutetence. end
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEV GENERAL

The
ereculion.

Wo

thereby oefWy thai the toftgobp Am^eni wat opprwed by the
the State ol New Hampehto.ot the Moeimfl on" :

OFFICE OF THE SECRETAftV OF STATE

Date Name:

.TUlo:

Gnffie UrAaeWiY

eS-TOia^AS-Ot-CAlLC

e/nenpfMrtOI

P09e>ol3

■  t-; :■ •■!. ■ -T^ i."-. ■- ■• ' •■ :■ ■ ' ■■ ■- '■: ■
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•New HempohlfO Oopertment of Hoillh end Humin Serwicet
Cell Contor (JIM

Ethibil A Amondmeni P1

.  Scope ot Services.

1. Provisions Applicable to AU Services ' .
Th9 Contfsctof shall submit a detailed description ol the language assistance seivices
they win provide to persons with limited EngUsh proficiency to ensure nieaningful
access to their programs and'or services within ten (10) days cfl the conirac! cffoctivo
dale.

1.2. The Conlracior agrees that, to the extent future legislativB oclion by the Now
Hampshire General Coun or.federai or stale court orders may have an Impact on the.
Services doscribed herein, the Slate Agerwy has the right lo modify Service priorities
artd expenditure requirements urtder this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.3. Norwllhstandlng any other provision of the Contract lo the contrary, no sen/ices shall
continue after September 30, 2020. and the Oepartmenl shall not be liable for any
payments for services provided after Septerhber 30. 2020, unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the stale l^islalura and funds
encumbered for the SPY 2020-2021 and SPY 2022-2023 blcnnia.

i.A. Per the purposes of this contract. Granite United Way shall be Identified as a
Eubrecipienl. In occordence with 2 CFR 200.0. fl( seq.

2; Scope of Work
2.1; The Conlracior shall provide substance use disorder information and referral services

through2-l-1 NHslatewide. Services shalllnciude, but not be limited to:

2.1.1. Ensuring all calls received are answered by a properly .trained Information and
Referral specially according to training requirernenta In Subsectidn.4.2.

2.1.2. Providing confidential and mutiilnguai services twenty-four (24) hours per day
seven (7) days per week.

2.1.3. Identifying information and service needs related to the caliei's substarKC use
disorder or the substance use disorder of a family member, significant other, friend.

Of concerned party.

2.1.4. Assessing caDers for additional needs and providing appropriate resources based
on eligibility including, but not limited to:

2.1.4.1. Housing

^  2.1.4.2. Mental health services

2.1.4.3. Social supports

2.1.5. Contacting emergency services, depending.on the nature of any crises that may
be discussed with the caller, including, but not limited to:

CrsiXie UnnpOWiy EtfXM A iVncnOnenl • i Conl/voo'

ss-2oiaeoAso*-CAi(.c-Aoi pile
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Now Hompshire Ooppilmont of HeaUh and Hgman Sorvices
CaU Center (21 \)

Eahiblt A Amondment 61

2.1.5.1. Directing callers (o 911 1/ a cliem is in lmmlncnl danger or (here is af>
emergency.

• 2.1.5.2. If (he dienl is unable or unwilling lo call 911. the Conuactor shall coNaci
emergency-services.

2.1.6. Assislirtg clicnls who ere solely seeking referral Informalion lo appropriate
•  treatment and other resources in the clieni's service area.

2.1.7. Direclly Ironsfornng clients who hove a non-cmDrgoncy need and are seeking
assistance with accessing treatmeni services to the Oepanmenfs Regional
Doorways for substance use disorder services (Doorways), based on the client s
location, when appropriate.

2.2. The Contractor shall update its rcfe^ resource database weekly (or substance use
disorder (SUD) services and other human and social services thai aid In ir^dividuals lri
achieving and maintaining recovery.

2.2.1. -The Contractor shall conduct ongoing outreach to'SUO and health end human
■  service providers to ensure real-time accuracy of resoufces-and update-dala as
appropriate.

2.3. The Contractor shall coordinate social markeling campaigns with existing networXs to
promote 2-1-1 NH iftdudlng..but not li'mlled lo. the Doorway public messaging,
campaign. Existing networks include, but are not limited to:

2.3.1. Integrated Oclivory Networks (IONS)

2.3.2. Regional Public Health Networks (RPHNs)

2.4. The Contractor shall participate In eilquality cr^pliahce. monitoring, and improvement
activities requested by the Department which wilt inctude, but is not llmKed (o:

2.4.1. Domonslraled compliance'with guidelines from the Alliance of Information and
Releffat Systems (AIRS) for quality conlrol and evaluation.

2.4.2. Partidpetion in electronic and iivperson can rocord reviews.

'2.4.3. Paflidgatloh. In site visits.

2.5. The Contractor shall participate in training and technical assistance aciivliles as
directed by the Department.

2.6. The Contractor shaP provide substance use disorder advanced Information and
referral services during Iha hours of 5 pm through 8 am to elevate an IndlvlduaFs •
•transportation and shelter crisis, when no other payer source is available, by:

2.6.1. Providing transportalion to end from recovory-relaled medical appoin|menis.
treatment programs, and other localions as Idenllfted and. recommended, by

.  Doorway professional staff to assist the eligible client with recovery;

2.6.2. Providing emergency shelter to essisl individuals In need of respite shelter v^ile
ewalling treatmeni and recovery services. The Contractor shall:

Cr«f*« W»f A fl CoWftOW InlUfJ
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ExhIbU A Amendment <11

2.6.2.1. Collaborate with the Department on a .respite shelter voucher policy and
related procedures to determine eligib'itily lor" respite shelter vouchers
based on crileda that include but are not limited to confirming an.individual
is: • . I

2.6.2.1.1. A Doorway client/family:

2.6.2.1.2. In need of respite shelter while awaiting treatment and recovery
services; and

•  2.6.2.1.3. In iieed of obtaining financial assistance to access short-term,
temporary shelter.

2.6.3. Comptying with at) the other activities outlined In Exhibit A

2.6.4. Purchasing software, subject to review and approval by lhe Departmenl thal "will
allow the Contractor to communicate and shar.e persona) dient information with .

■  the Department's Doorways contractors arx) the Department's afierhours
Doorways contractor in order to coordinate transportation and emergency shelter
services." The software shall include, but is not limited to:

2.6.4.1. A method to confirm that each referral to a Doorways contractor is received
and acknowledged.

2.6.4.2. A method to ensure that notice Is returned to the Inftiating party for each
received referral.

2.6.4.3. Conndenlialily of client personal identifiable information

■ 2.6.5. Hiring additional staff e^uivalcni to a minimum of .5 PTEs

2.6.6. Training staff on advance information and referral services, which must Include,
but is not limiied to:

•2.6.6.1. New processes and procedures for receiving and responding to these calls

2.6.6.2.' Receiving, collecting and ensuring secure use and protection of personal
identifiable Information and any confidential inforrnailon. including 42CRF
Part 2. and personal health iriformalion.

2.6.6.3. Using new software

3. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards
3.1. The Contractor shall establish format Information sharing and referral agreements with

tho Doorways, compliant with ell applicable confidenliatily laws, including 42 CFR Part

2- . ■ .

3.2. Tf)e Contractor shall assist the Dapartmeni wiih verifying that client referrals to the
Doorways have been completed by the Contractor.

3.3. The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and Implementation plans
associated with SOR-funded activiiies to ensure sen/ices are In place svithin Ihirty^SO)

.

Cnnb* Un&ed W»y ' EthlbilAAm«ndm3ntll Conliidof tniusli ~
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days of contract effective date, unless the Department approves an alternative hmeime
at the-fequest of the vendor.

3.3.1. II services are unaWe to be offered wiih-tn the required limeframe. the Contractor
Shan submit an updated implementation plan to the.Department for approval to
outline anticipated Eervice start dates.

3.3.2. The Department resenres the right to lerminate the contract and liquidate unspent
funds if services are not in place within ninety (90) days ot contract eWcciive date.

, Staffing

4.1. The Cdmractor shall submit a staffing and recruitment plan to the Oopartment wilhm
(7) seven days of contract effective dale.

4.2. The Contractor shall ensure that at) call center staff are property trair^d in how to
assist Individuals with substance use disorder, or concerned parties. Training topics
shall include, bul not be limited to

4.2.1. Addiction 101.

4.2.2. Eliminating stigma.

'  4.2.3. Safe language practices.

4.2.4. Safeguarding the conrideniiatily and lawful re-disclosure of client/caller substance
use disorder end oiher confidenlial informalion.

4.2.5. Other topics identified by the Department.

4.3. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of (1) one full-time staff person to update the
Contractor's database weetOy for SUD senrices end other human and social services

that aid In Individuals in achieving and maintaining recovery.

4.3.1. The Conlrpcior shall conducl ongoing outreach to SUD and health'and human
service providers to ensure real-time accuracy of resources and update data bs
appropriate.

5. Reporting
5.1. The Contractor shall provide.de-ldeniiried. aggregate monthly web based reports by

the 20'" of the month following the reporting month. The reports shall include, but not
be limited to:.

5.1.1. Number of phone colls received reletive to SUD. including the average number of

.  calls each month.

5.1.2. Nature of each phone call.

5.1.3. Number of colters referred from the call center line to Doorways.

5.1.4. Number of patlers directly transferred to Doorways.

5.1.5. Number ot callers referred from the call center line to non-Doorway serviervicev'

fxGfiftH# Urthtd W>f Eihbll A «vnerv)ment 01 CoAUado'Ia>I«Us
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"5! V6. Number oI callers relerred from the call center line to non-SUD services.
5.V7. Averaoe amount o( time ceOers wail in call queues before an agent responds.
5.1.8. Percentage of total callers who hang up before reaching an agent.
5.1.9. Average amount of time it taKes for the calMo be answered.
5.1.10. Average emouni ol time an agent spends speaking with the caller, including hofd

lime.

5.1.11. Percenlage of callers" that received a busy tone when.they call.
5.1.12.-Call center caDcr types (sell, concerned party, and/or professional).
5.1.13. Caller demographics and informalion when available including, but not limiled to.

5.1.13.1. Substance of choice.

5.1.13.2. Housing issues.

5.1.13.3. CriminaiJusficcIssues.

•  5.1.13.4. Employmenl issues.

5.1.14. Caller Ixation.

5.1.15. Emergency/Imminent Risk Involvoment/Lcvel of Urgency.

5.1.16. Sen/ices sougHi.

5.1.17. Outcome ol each phone cat! including, but nollimlled to: ■ ^

5.1.17.1. Referrals to Doorway .for services and clinical evaluation.

51.17.2. Informalion arrd resources provided via the phone.

6  Perfoniiance Measures
6 1 The Contractor shall ensure thai 100% of individuals In need of substance use services

who remain on the phone during Iho transfer of the cofi are directly transferred to their
Regional Doorway.

£2 The Conltaclor shaD ensure that 100% of individuals who call 2-1-1 NH for SUD
service information or referral will speak to a 2-1-1 slaH member on the first can.

6.3. The Contractor shall gather basefine data from January 1.2019 - September 30.2010
on the areas listed below.

6.3.1. The percenlage ol callers that received a busy lone when they call. ■

6.3.2. The average amount ol lime callers wall in call queues before an agent responds.
6.3.3. The percentage of callers who hang up before reaching an agent.

6.3.4. The average amount of time ll takes for the call to be answered.

Cn«S.U«II«)W„ Conlf»Clo< inllUU
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STATE 0 F N EW HaM PS H I RE

DEPAilTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DimiOH FOR behavioral HEALTH

bureau OF DRUC.AHD ALCOHOL SERVICES

101 fLCASANTSTRCCT. CONCORD. NM 0»0I

OOM1l4liO ltOO-llM)4S£j(.«11l
Fit:.M] )7i4l01 TOOAccni: I IOO-7}5-}964 .

October 10. 2018-

u

His EiccDcftcy. Governor Christopher T. Sunonu..
and (he Honorable Council

Stale House
Concbrd. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Aulhoiiio the Departrrienl ot Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Heall>i.
Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services, lo enier Into a solo source egreemenl wlih Granite United Way.
Vendor »l600l5-B001ff. -22 Concord Street. Second Floor. Manchestor. New Hampshire 03105. in an
amount not to exceed $1,000,000. to provide substance use disorder Informelion and caB referral
services through 2'1'Vnh iiatewlde. effective upor^ dale of Governor and Gxecuilva Council approval,
through 2020.

Funds ere ayallable in the following eccounifs) for Stale Fiscal Year (SFY) 2019. and are
anticipaled lo be avaiiabte In SFY 2020. upon the availability arid continued appropriation of funds In

. the fulure opereling budgets, with authority to adjust amounts .within Ihe price limitation end adjust
encumbrances between Slate Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if needed and justified, without
approval from Governor and Executive Council. ^

05.95-92-920510-7040 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.
HNS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV. BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES. STATE OPIOID
RESPONSE GRANT

Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number . Total Amour>l •

SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog.Svc TBD" $500,000

SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc TBD ■ $500,000

Total $1,000,000

EXPLANATION

This request Is solo source because the Department is seeking to utilize 2-M NH to
restructure ils publicTacing system for access to mformaiion and service referrals for substance use
disorder services. Presently, the Pepartmeni funds a separate I-800 number for addiction hoilino calls
and the Oopartmoni is seeking to re-align Ihis service informalion and access into a streamlined
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Bpproach, e« part of lha Stale Opioid Response grani. Graniie United Way was eelected as the sole
source contractor given Its current operation of the 2*t'l NH number for.muilipie other swvices. This
streamlined approach will eliminate dupllcaiion of having multiple phone numbers, by edjustlng and
transferring the scope of'ihe addiction hoiilne ceiis into 2-T-l NH.' Addiiionaliy. ajigning substance use
service information end access with 2-1-1 allows for the whole p>erson s needs to bo met when they
call, glwn.trw multiple resources 2-t-i has for referrals through other related contracts (e.g; Homeless
and Housing. Scrvicet.ink. etc.). individuals who call 2-ui seeking informaiion or substance, use
disorder serwce access will be connected to up-to-date resources in their community end when
eppfophale, dlroclly connocled to en on-call cJinldan as&odstod with the Stele's'nowly created.
Regional Hubs for Substance Use Disorder services, to begin addressing their needs;

Funds In this agreement win be used to provide substance use disorder tntormailon end referral
services through 2-M NH statewide, a tciephorxic service ihat provides conndentlai and rhuiuiinguai
services twenty-four (24) hours per day. seven (7) days per week. Granite United Way will assist clients
with tdeniifying service needs end by providing referrals to the Regional Hubs or other human service
providers as a caller's needs ere Ideniified. Granite United Wey will also participate in quality
compliance, monitoring, and improvement sctiviliss id ensure thai-services provided meet Oepartmeni
standards.'

The above ouilinod approach is part ol (he State's accepted proposal to ihe Substance Abuse
and Mental Healih Services Administratiori (SAMHSA) Stale Opioid Response (SOR) grant opportunity.

. With this funding-opportunity. New Hampshire wiD use evidence-based methods to expand treatment,
recovery and prevention services to individuels with 0170 in NH, end the use of 2-1-1 NH as the public-

• faciivg phone number for services is critical lo Ihe Department's plan.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of this conlracl. this Agreement has the option to extend for up lo
two (2) additional years, contingent upon sollsfaciory delivery of services, available funding, agreemer^l
of Ihe parties end approval of the Governor and Council.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to Ihe contrary, no .services Shalt continue
after June 30. 2019. and the Oepartmeni shall not be liable for any payments for services provided after

'•June 30. 2019. unless and until additional Federal resources are allocaled for this purpose and en
appropriation for these s-ervices has been received from the slate legislalure and fur>ds encumbered for
the SFY 2020-2021.

Should Governor end Executive Council not authorize this Request, individuals in NH will have
limited Information about where to seek Informelion or services for subsiencc use disorder end have
potential delays in access to care.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the Subslance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Adminislfaiion. CFDA (793.788 FAIN #H79TI081685.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer availabie. General Funds.will not bie
requested to support this prograrn.
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KU EscoSency, Governor Cndstopher T. Sununu
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Respectfully submitted.

Ketja S. Fox
Oifcctor

Approved b
froy A. Meyers

Commissioner

Tin DcporfAKAl ̂ UtaUiy oid Hunion Stfviett'Miuion it t^foin nuiwiiliti Ofid foiutitt '
in (tnvittlngopporhinitUi /9rtlli:t'it re OCliinY lnclOi nnti inJepcndfCt.
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.STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE .
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

J7 Hutn 0*.. Concoid. NH 01301
?$r. 6CD-27105U TOO Accoj: 1-^735.2964

www.nh.gov/doit

DenU Coulti
C^mmisiiontf

October 16, 2016

JcfTrcy A. Mcyen, Commijsioner
Depertment of Heelih end Humhn Strvicej
Stele of New Henipshire
129 PleeunI Street

Concord. NH 0)301

Deer Commissioner Meyers;

■ This Icner represents formel noiiftcetion thai the Depertmeni of Inrormetion Technoloay (DoIT)
hes epproved your agency's request to enter info a sole source conlrtct with Grcnifc United Wey. (Vendor
ff 2026S6-800I) of Menchester. New Hampshire 0)105 os described below end referenced as Don No.
2019-053.

This contract will piovide suppon for ihf transition of the current Addiction Hotline
number and ongoing operations of a 24/7 call center through 2-1-I. NH. to ensure that
intlividuals seeking inforrn.iion or help with substance use disorder hove access to
information and service referral.

The amount of the contract is not to exceed SI ,000,000 and shall become effective upon
the dote of Governor end tsecuiivc Council approval through September 29. 2020.

A copy of this letter should accompany i ic Ocparrmcni. of Health and Human Services
submission to the Governor and £.tccutive Council for approval.-

Sincerely.

OG/iWck

DoIT«20I9.053

cc: Bruce Smith. IT Minigcr, OolT

. Denis Goulei

'tnnovoUve TechnotogSei Today for NewHomfiihire's Tomorrow'
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Uenfl>*« Ceuadl (w Any Ufimbba Uii h usfUeadtl t popfkury nssik« clctHy s lh« tttntr »In writlti yHw o i^-U^ coiUAcv

•ACRtlMeNT

TkMSui«*f HrwHytpiiilnwU lS* Ctmctai iMiky evnulbrtp** w IkltoM:

CKKCRAL7ftOVISIOK$

I. IDttmPlCATIOT*.
I.I Sum AfracyWtni
NH 0(p«VMiftfKuhkKadH«naAS<r»lttl

<3 iHuApneyAMrvi

Cenoof4.W63)0)-ni7

IJ ContncterKvM
Onnlu U&lu4 Wi;

1.4 CcBkuiMAttfini

Z3 COacerd Socci, 2Bd Fleer

FOfiuni

MivBourNHOJlM

M Price limiuilee

S 1.000,000

IJ Ce«9ectsrF4en*
Kvtnkn

60>-41ltl9)

lA Aeeo^uMvmbff . „

eKS:0>|li 4> illilO'lFH-
>01-5CC»t

l.f Co«?ki}9» Dtt*

>/]>720}0

1.0 Cemno^tOdlecrtorSKtiAitney
Hi^hajD.WUit
Obuiar of Ceatraco tnd FraevfttncAl

SliAstm

I.I) ̂ckaewlid|tA(Bt: Suiter fU/it

1.10 Stait A^tscy Tflcybene Mabo
M)})tM)l

ki ud 7liU e^Coatrero/ Upstart

Oe^^.'^'l^^^^.bc/bnlhtundinlpwdenui, pcnenUyippearc^OupcnMldcailAiO In block 1.13. •lolUftmrll/
DWv(nlebaw»t/ifla«iiteunaff«lillpidlablotk l.ll.tnOedneewvtn le MTVie pt/ua , and odnewlcdpd (kal Who cxacaied ihii docvmcat la ibc capKby
IftdlMltd In block 1.1).

l.n.l SUftaloiaOfHatwyFoVJtO/JiUllcoollMFtaca BAmua*k 8U*flN
IX /i / D J wirrPwba>.)iowK»fliiB«ie

ison.
1.1).1 NisoandTlijierNetaryof lutdeeorihiPau

/iiMluri
ryS^JTuro I.Dl^uncand Tlilt'erSiPt A|ta(y Stpiala^ 'I.H Suu Alcpcy

tJTTS. P»»: - I —^
l.lO Af^ti) b/ lAa Ni4. DrftnnnI ofAdAlAlnnlle^ DIvtilBncrFmenAKiiT/epyfeeM*;

br OtiKtar. On:

1.17 Apperti b) Pu ABenc; Ocnni (Fens. Svbuiaco and'Eiwnle*) fl/^7iUrei/r;

I.II ApprevilbyPiaOerirnerandEtrcuiUcCovacll (l/cf^ktkU}

Bjf O"'
'  \>
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Subject: Cull Cf Biff f711 WSS.}Ql9.fiPASU>4^Al.LO
FORM NUMatR F-J7 (vcnien S/8/i5)

■Woticf: Tbittsrecrecni in4 all of iu Bntcbmcnii thdl become public upon tubmbiioa to Covcmof and
Crecutivt Covncil foe appVovaJ. Any infornution that it pnvace, eenfideniUI or proprietary muit
be ck.arly idcntiFted (o the agency end egrted to in writing prior to signing the iontrecl.

ACRtEMEiyT ^ i !
Tb( State of New Hampshire artd (he Contractor hereby mttuslly egrcc as follotrs;

CCNERAL PROVISIONS

I. lOENTirrCATlON. ____
I.I Slue Agency Name
KH Ocpanmcni of HcaHh and Kaman Services

IJ Sure Agency Addreu
>29 Ptcuani Sircri
Concord, NH033010t57

I.) Contractor Name
Cmaiic United Way

1.4 Contractor Address
22 Concord Street, 2nd Floor'
P0eo.t2ll
Manchester NH 0)103

I.) Contractor Phone
Number

66)-62I-6I93

1.6 Account Ny<7tber

BHS: 0S-9)-42U2)0l0-792l-
102.5007)1

1.7 Comptfiion Dale

9/39/2020

I.I PriceLimiuilos

S 1,000.000

1.9 Contracting OfTtur for Suic Agency
Nathan 0. While
Olrtctor of Ccntraeu and Procurement

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
60).27(.96)l

irac urt1.11 ^ 1.12 fatyx and Title of Contractor Signatory

l.D/Acknowlcdgemtni: Suicof/VW/s^t-^a^-vCouniyof
before the undrrtigned oFficer, perMROlly hppen'Cd IM person identified in block 1.12, or laiisracioril'y

proven to beihe pcnon whose name is signed in block. 1.11, and ocknowlcdged that t/he executed ihls ^umcni in the capacity
indicited in block 1.13.

t.D.I Signiiare of Notary Public Or lusiicc of the Peace

JScill

scawuw
dMi/y ^ibOc. No* Kamptfttiv

^ Cofmibstan Jww Jd. JOIO
l.l).a Name and Title of Notary.or Justice of the Peace

Hnihte^r/ A Bjj^
Sim Ageney Sitnitory .r.l4^ 'State Agency Signature

ppmval by tRe N.H. Oeoann
•Oaie:.

I.DCAftmc and .Tiileof St^ie Agency Signatory .

v-o,x. ^,/tec.-V=ar~
>halVi/1.16 Approval bytR^tW.H. Oepanmcntof Adrrimisirat'ion. Division of PcrtonhaUf</opp//co6/e.j

By: Director. On:

1.17 Ap'provol by the Anomcy General (Form, Substance end Eceeuiion) 0/oppl<ehlt)

On:

I.IS Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (Ifeppltnbh)

By: On;

• Page I oTd
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J. EMPLOVMCf/rpFCONTRACTOIVSERVICtSTO
BE PERFORMCOi the Suie orNewHempshirt, ectiai
ihirou^h (he ̂ encjr idcniiftcd inblock I.I ("Suic"). <n|i{cs
coMACior idciuified in block IJ (*'G>ntractoe^) to perfomt,
ftAd Ike CoflUMieMhill pcfform, (he viO«k or tile orleodi. or
both, tdcniiricd end more pirticwtiHjr detcn'bed in (he iiuchcd
EXHIBIT A which it inoMpo'ized herein by referertce
fServiceri: .

3. CFFCCTIVEOATe/COMPLEtlONOFSCRVlCES.
. 3.1 NorwilhtiflAdiig Any prevision of rhU Aftrecmcm loihe
connry. tnd I'vbitei lo (he ipprovol'orthe Covtmor and
Eiecutii^ Council of the Suie of New Hompthirt, if
applicable, ihii Apreemeni. irtd all oblipiioni of the partiei
hertvndcr. th^i become cfTcctlve on ike due the Governor

Md Executive Council ipprove (hit Agreeneni tt indicaied in
. block 1.(1, unlai no luch approval it rcouired. in whtch cite
the Agreement thall become enective.on the due the
Agrtement.it ligncd by the Stiie Agency oi thown in block
1.14 ("EfTeciivt Date').

3.2 Ifthe Conxreeior commencet Ihe Schricct prior tbihe
EfTeeiive Oelc, ell Servieet performed by the Conmctoi prior
to (he EfTcciivc-Daic ihall be performed at the tolc risk of ihe
ContrKior, end in the cveni that this Agrcemeni doet not
become <neciive, the Sutc thall have no liability to the
Controctor. inetudiftg without limiiation. ony obligation lo pay
•the Contrecior for ony cotii incvrrcd or Scrvicct performed.
Centrtcier mitu eomplcte all Scrvkct by the Complciion Date
specified in block r.7.

4. CONDITIONAL nature OF ACREEMEKT.

Kotwithstanding any provision of this Agrcemeni to the
contrary, all ̂ Ugaiions of the State hercunder. inclvdlng.
without limiiatiofl, thd comlauance of paymcnu hcicuodcr. arc
contingent upon the availability ̂  continued eppropriaiion
of funds, and in no event thall .the State be liable for any
paymenlt hercunder in exceti of tuch available appropriated •
funds. In the evcniofa reduction or icrminiiion of

appropriated funds, the State thai! have the right to.wiihhoid
payment until such Rinds become available, if ever, and ihall-
havc (he nghi to icrminale this Agreement imreediaicly upon
giving (he Ccntrictor notice of tuch lerminaiion. The Slate -
thall not be required to transfer funds from any other aecouni
to (he Account identified in block I .d In the event funds in that
Account arc reduced or unavailable.

$. CONTRACT PRICe/?RICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5. I The coflintct price; method of piymcni, and lermt of
piymcnt art Idtniiricd and more panicularly described in
EXHIBIT B which it incorporated herein by reference.
3.2 The paymeni by the State of (he eoniraci price thall be the
only and the complete rTimbufsemeni to ihe Conirtcior for all
expentet. of whatever niiure incurred by the Coniracioi in the
' performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compenaition to (he Contneior for the Scrsncet. The State
thill have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Pegc2

5-3 The State rcservtt the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to (he Contractor under this Agrcemeni
those liquidated amounts rcquirTdesrpciTnmcd;by N.H. RSa
tO:7 through RSA IO:7-c o> any other provision of law.
3.4 Norwithsianding any provision in (his Agreement lo the
contrary, tnd noiwiikuahding uncxpeci^ circurpstirKci, in
.no event shall ihe total of all payihcnti authorited, or actually
made hertunder, cxcee'd the Price Limitation tet forVt in block
I.I.

6. COM PLIANCC BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND RECULATIONS/ CQUaC eMPLOVMCNT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In oonntciion with the performance of the Serrieei, (he
Contractor ihall comply^wiih all liatvtes. laws, regulaiioni.
end orders of federal, iiAte, county or munieipai authorities
which impetc any obligation or dury.upon (he'Coruracior,
including, but rwi limited (0, civil ri^ and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the rcquiremeni to utiliu auxiliary
aids and lervkei to ensure thsi persons with communlcaiion
disabililits, including vision. hCAnng and tpeeth, can
' communicate with, receive infM^tion from, end convey
information to (he Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
ihill comply with all applicable copyright jawt.
6.3 During the term of this Agreement, the Contraeter shall
not diicriminaic agiinsi employees or applicants for
empioymcni because of roec, color, religion, creed, age. sex.
handicap, aexual orirniation, or naiiona! origin end will take
.cffirmaiivc action to prevent tuch discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is fWided in any pan by monies of the
United Slates, the Coniracior shall comply with all the-
provisiotu of Executive Order-No. 112<6 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulaiionsofthc United Ststet Ocpanmcnt of Labor (41 .

. C.F.R. Pan 60). and with any rules, regulaiiont and gutdciines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States tuue to
implement ihete regulitiont. The Conimctor funhcr agrect to
permit the Stare o* United States auctt lo any of lite
ContTsetor'i books, records and accounts for the purpose of
asccruining compliance with all rules,'regulations arid orders,
and the eovenanti, terms and condliions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor thai! at its own expense providt ell
personnel nccusary lo perform (he Servket. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in (he Services thall.be
qusiiftcd 10 perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise auihoriud. to do to under all oppliccbit
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise euthoriud in writing, during the term of
this AgrKmrnt, and for e period of six (6) months aflcr the
Completion Date in block 1.7, iht Conirtcior shall not hirt.
and shall not permit any lubconimeior or other person, firm or .

'corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined efTon to
perform the Services to hire, any person who it a Stale
employee or ofrielal. who is-m*lenally involved in (he
proc(iremeni,.edminlstritlon or performance of this

of d
Conlrector Iniilols
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Ajrcemtftl. Thii proviiion thiU ivfvlve lemuAtitOn of ihii
Agftemenl.
7J The ConirtttIfl|Ofricer ipeeifietf Inblotk 1.9. o* hii of
her lucccisor. thell be the Suie'i reprejeauiive. in (be evem
ofiAy diiputc cortcemtAS (he iAUrprrUtion cfihii ABrtement.
the CoBireeilnf OfTKer'i deeijfon ihell be finel for (he Swie.'

8. EVENT OF OEFAULT/RCMCOieS.
t!) Any one or mort of (he foUovAnt »eu oi offliitlons ofihc
CcMirector thill contiin/te w everu of defiult.bercundet
("EvtAi of OefevIO:
1.1.1 f»>)i>rc to perform ihe Servicci liittficierlly Of OA
i^hedult:

1.1.7 failure lo tubmk iny repon required lureendcr; ertd/or
. I.I.) failure lo perform arty other coventnl, icrm or coAdiiion
bfthts ABrecment. .
i.2 UpOA (he occufrtnce ofihy Evew.of Oefiwit, the Sttie
miy take any one, or mom, or el), of ihe followini acitemi:
1.2.1 give the ContTBCiOf a urincn notice ipccifying the Event
orOcfauti and rcqutrini ii to be remedied wiihia, in the
abience of a greater or Ictui tpceifteaiion of time, thirty ()0)
di/l from the due'of the rwiicej and if d* Event of Oefiuli it
noi tir^ly remedied (cmineie ihii AgreemeAl. efreciive ivm
(2) dayi after giviag ihc Contractor rtoiice of icrminiiion;
. 8.2-2 give the Comracior a wnnen notice ipecifying the Event
of Oeftttli and tujpending all paymenu to be'nude under ihli
Agrtcmcni and ordering that the portion of lhe,.corttrtci price
udiich Mould otherwiK aurue to the Comracior dunng the
period from the date of such nol'ice until such lime aa the Sioie
dcicrmiiui thai (he Coniracibr has-cured the Event of Ocfiuli
shall never, be paid to the Controctor:
1.2.) tei off Bgalnit any other obligations (he State may owe to
the Contrector any damages the Suie auffen by reason of any
Event of Dcfeuli; artd/or
1.2.4 trai the Agreement as breKhed and pursue any of its
remedies at low or in equity, or boib.

9. DATA/ACCESyCONFIDENTlADTY/
preservation.
9.1 As used in ihis Agrccmtni.'thc word "dab" shall mean oM
information and things developed or obtained during the
perforrtance of. or acquired or developed by reason' of. this
Agreemcni. ineluding. but not limited to, all iiodits, reports,
ftles. formulae, survey's, maps. ehiAS. aownd recordings, video
rccord'mgs. pictorial reproductions, drawinp, anelytes.
graphic rtpresentaiioos. computer programs, computer
priftiouts, notes, leners. memoranda, papcn, and doeumcnts,
all whether ftnished or unfinithed.
9.2 All tiaio and any property which hu been reeeivcd from •
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
uiukf this Agreement, shall be the property ofihs State, ond
shall be relumed to the Suie upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.,
9J Conndcniiiliiy ofdaia shall be governed by N.H. RSa
chapltr 91 - A Of Other eaisiing law. Diteteiurc of dau
requires prior wiitttn approval of the Sikte.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an CAily lermiiution of
this Agrcemeni for any reason other than the completion of the
Services; (he Contnctor shall deliver to the Coatrtctini
Oflicer, noi later than fifteen (15) days after the date of .
termination, a report ("Tcrminition RcporT*) dcjcnbirtg in
detail all Services performed, and Ihc eonlrtm price earned, to
and including the date ofierm'irui'cn. The form; subject
miner, conicni, and number of cop'rcs of (he Tcrntinat'ton
Report shall be identical (o those of any Firut Report
described in the anached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONrRACrOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE.' (n
- .the ptrformtnet of this Agreement the Contractor is m all
respects an independent conincier. and is rtciiher an agent rvor
an employee of the Siaie. Neither the Contractor nor any of lu
elTiceo, employees, agcrvts.or members shall have authority to
bind (he State or receive any benefiu, workcn' comperuaiton
or other cmolumenu provided by the Sutc to iu employees.

17. assicnm ent/oelec ation/sobcontracts.
TV Contnctor ihall not assign.or otherwiu transfer any
mtcroi in this Agrccmctst without the prior wrincn notice and
coaieni of the State. None of the Se,rvices shall be
lubconerteted by the Coninctor witMui the prior wtinen

- notice and corueni of (he Suic.

1). INDEMNIFICATION. The CoAtracior thall dcfersd.
(ndcmni^ and hold harmless ̂ e Sutc, ks ofTrcen end ■
cmployets. from and egalnsi'any and all Iosim auffervd by the
Stale, iu ofTieert and employees, and any and all claims,
Itabiliiies or penalties ajserted against (he Stele, iu ofTicers
and errtployces. by or on behalfof any pcrion, on occouni of.
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed (0 arise out oO (he acts or omissions of (he
Coniracior. Noiwiihstand'mg the foregoing, nothing herein
conuined thall be deemed lo conniiute a woivcr of (he
sovereign immunity of ihe Suie, which immunily is hereby
reserved 10 the Sutc. This covenant in paragraph I) shall
survive the (erminaiitm of this Agreemcni.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Controcior shall, at its sole cxpenie.obt'ainand
mainiiin In force, and shall require any subconirtscior or
assignee to obuin artd fflsihuirt in force. Ihc following
insurance:

- 14.1.1 eomprehetssiv'e general liability insurance ogainti all
claims of b^ily injury, deeth or property damage, in emounis
of not leu than S 1,000.OOOper oecurrctscc and S2.000,000
aggregate: artd
14.1.2 special cause of lots coverage form covering oil
propeiTy subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in art omouni rtoi •
less than lOHof the whole replace meni vaiuc of the property.
14.2 The policies detcrlbed in subparagrt^ 14.1 herein shall '
be OA policy forms ond endoriemenu approved for use in the
Stele of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by irtsurcn licensed in the Suif of New
Hampshire.

3of4 ^
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14 J The CoMf«ei©r ihill ̂ umUh to the C6nlr*tlin| Officer >
ideniiricd in Wock 1.9. or hit or her tueceuor. t ccnirKiit(0
of irtwrofKc for oil iojunrKe rt^irtd under ihii Ajrrcmeni.
Contrtctor thell iltoFumJih to.the CciVretilrn Offtcer
ideMined In block 1.9. or hit or her lucceiior. «niriC4lc(i) of
iiOBf»ne< for oil ref*wtl(») of iniurwtce rt^wind ondcr th.'i
Agreermw fio liter tbin ihiny (JO) diyi prior to the txplnilon
dite of each of the (nturiACC policies. The C4niftcaie(i) of
lAiunnce end iny renewili thereof ihili be oiuehed ind it
ineoeporeted herein by rTfertnce. Eoch cenific»ie(i)of
imonrtcc *h«ll c«AUift • etouic reOviriA| (h* Insurer (o

provide the ContrsctingOrriccr i^tniiricd In block 1.9. or his
or her luaeswr, no less ihin ihiny ()0) diyi prior wrinen •
notice ofciitectUiienor modificiiion efiht policy.

.  15. WORKERS'COMPtWSATlON.
I J.I By »t|ftiogihis •gretnCetti, the Coimeeior tgrcci,
cenirict ind wimnu ihn ihe Cooirtctor ii in oompliince w«h
or exempt from, the itquittnentj of N.H. RSA.ehsptei 311 -A
CWorUfS' ̂omptmoiion
IJ.l To the eneni ihe Contractor is tubjtci to the-
rcguirrmcnis of N.H. RSA chtpter 211 - A, Controcior shall -
mlln^al^ end reguit my subconlrector or ejsitnee to ucure
end maiiuein, payracni of Workers' Compensation In
cortneetion with ectiviiiu which the ̂ rion proposci to
undcnoke pursuant to this Agrtemcnt. Contractor shall
furnish the'CootrattingOfrtcer Idertiiricd in block 1.9, or his
or her luccestor. proof of Workers' Compensation in the
mtftncr described in N.H. RSA chapter 311 -A ind any

applicable rtnewiJ(s) thereof, vrhich shall be ai^hed and arc
Incorporeied hetin by rtfcrtnce. The Suic shall not be
rtiponslblc for payment of any WcAcrs" Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Coniraeioi. 0'
any lubeonirwibr o» employee of Comrouor; which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers

•Compeniitlon laws In connection with the perCormmcc of the
Services under this AgrctmcnL

Id. waiver or BREACH. No failure by'the Suie to
enforce any pmviiions hereof after any Ev^i of Default shall
be decrrted a waiver of iu righu with regard to thu Event of
Derauli. or any lubiegueni Event pf Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
, waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the

pfovislorts hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the pan ofihe Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a pany hereto to the other party
thiil be deemed to hove been duly delivered or given at the
lime of mailing by urtificd mail, posuge prepaid, in • United
Stales Post OfTice eddiesscd to the panics al the ̂ drtisu
given in blocks'1.3 end 1.4, herein.

11. amendment. Thii Agreement may be nmehdtd.
waived or discharged only by an insirtrmem in writing ligncd
by the parties hereto and only afier approval ©f such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Covcmor tr»d
Executive Cou/kII of Ihe State of New Hampthirt gnlesi r-O

lueh ipprovil it repuirrd under the circumstances pursuirsi fo
State law. rule or policy.

19.CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agrccrrscnt iball Ik construed in oecordeocc with the
laws of the State of NewHampihiic. and is binding upon and
itwrci to the bcrtcfii of the panics and their rtipective
succtsson and asiigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wordini chosen by the panics to eiprcss their mutual
intent. aj)d ao rvie of constniciion shall be applied against or
in fa*or ofcny party.

20. THIRD PARTIES T3ie panies hereto do not intend to
b«n«rii any iMrd panics and this Agree'mcni ihati not be
constnicd to confer any such bcrvefit.

2t. HEADINGS. The headings throvghout the Agreement
art for reference pvrpota only, and the words conujrted
ihetcin shall in no w«y be held to explain, modlNr. arnpllfy or
aid in the IntcrTtrttatlon, co'njtrudtion or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Addiiicna! proviiions set
forth in the artaehcd EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

2). SEVERaBILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement ore held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any suic or federal law, the rtmaining
provisions of this Agrtcmcnt will remain in full force and
effect. . . . ^

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT, this Agreement, which may
be cxecuted'in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an ofiginal.'contiitules the entire Agreement and
urwiersunding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and undcrtundings relating hereto.

Page d ofd
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Scope of Services

1. Provlslon&.Appllcable to AH Services
'1.1. The Contractor, shall submit a datailod description of the lartguage assistance

senrices they wtl) provide to persons with lirniied English proficiency to ensure,
medrilngful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective dote.

1.2. ' The Contractor agrees that, to iho extent future legisiaiive action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal o; state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, (he Slate Agency has ihe rlghi to modify Service priorities
aryf expenditure lequiremenis under this Agreement so as to achieve comp]iar%ce
Iherevriih.

-1.3. Notvnihstanding any other provision of tho Controci to the contrary, no servlces-ehali

continue after.June 30, 2019, and the Department, shall not -be liable for any
-  payments for services, provided after Juno 30; 2019. unless and until on

appropriairon for these services hss been received from the stale legislatura and
■ funds encumbered for the SPY 2020-2021 and SFY'2022-2023blcnnia.

1.4. ' The Stale has applied for the Stete Opioid Response Grant (Tl tO-OtS) and will
continue to perform due dibgence In the applicaiion-process. Howe'ver. (he'State

makes no representation that It will receive tho funds, tn no event shall iha.Siaie be

liable for costs incurred or payment of any services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Staie's receipt of federal funds applied for in the Stale Opioid Response Gram

•  (Tl-ia.015.

1.5. For the purposes of this conlraci. Granite United Way shall be Identified as a

subrcclpieni, In accordance with 2 CFR 200.0: ef sag.

2. Scope of Work
.2.1. The Contractor shall provide substance use,disorder information end referral

services through 2-t-l NH statewide. Services Shan include, but not be limited to:

2.1.1.. Ensuring oU calls received ere answered by a properly trained Informalion .end

Referral specialist according lo training requirements in Subsection 4.2.

2.1.2. Providing conndenllai and muililingual services twenty-four (24) hours per day
sovon (7) days per week.

2.1.3. Identifying information and aer^co needs related to the caller's substance use
disorder or tho substance use disorder of a family member, slgnificonl other,

friend, or concerned party. -

2.1.4. Asses'sing callers for addiliohal needs and providing appropriate resources
based on oliglbnily Including, bul not Hmitod to:

2.1.4.1. Housing

C'lmtUrCbaWiy CiMMA CcnUACtv IrtftSi.

SS-TO^O-OOAS^CaIlC P«o*io<S Oai«
R«v.0«/2U)S
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rs

2.1.4.2. Mental health services

2.1.4.3. Social suppo^

2.1.5. Contact emergency services, depending on the naiure of any crises that may
be discussed with the caller, including, but not limited to:

2.1.5.1. Olrectihg caDert to 911 if 8 client is In imminent danger or there is on
emergency.

2.1.5.2. If tr>e diem is unobie or unwilling to call Gl i. tho Contractor ehail contact
ernargency eervicee.

2.1.6. Assisting clients who are eololy seeking referral Informolion to approprtale
(reatmeni and other resources in tho client's service eree.

2.1.7. Oirectfy Irsnsferring clients who hove o noivemergency need and are seeking
assistance vrith accessing trestment services to iho Department's Regional Hubs
for substance use disorder services (Hubs), based on the client's location, when

approprleie.

2.-2. Prior to inKlallng services, the Contractor shall collaborate with (he Oeparlment to
estebtish a plan for triaging cads from 2-1-1 NH to'the Hubs. The plan must.be
opprdved by the Departm^t no later than October 31. 2016. The plan shell include,
but not be limited to:

2.2.1. - Idenlificationcf-besi practices.

2.2.2. Protocotsendproceduresforthocailtriagesysiem.

2.2.3. A process for bi-directional Information sharing ol updated referral resource
datebasee to ensure that each entity has recently updated referral tnformeUon.

2.3. The ConiraQtof shell have agreements with all Hubs for bl-dtrodional communlcaUon
end coordination of 'senrtces no later than January 1. 2019.

2.4. The Conirector'shail update Its referral resource database weekly (or substance use
disorder (SUD) serv'ices and other human and sodai services that aid In individuals
in Qchieving and maintaining recovefy.

2.4;i. The Contractor she!) conduct orrgoing out/each to .SUO errd hcallh/human

service providers io ensure reei-lime eccutecy of resources ar>d update dele as •
appropriaie.

2.5. The.Conlractof shall coordinate social markeiing campaigns wiih existing networks
to promote 2-1-1 NH mcluding. but not limited to, the Anypno. Anytimp campaign.
Existing networks include, but are not limited to:

2.5.1. Integreted Delivery Networks (IDNs)

■  2.5.2. Regional Public Health Networks (RPHNs)

• Cf«m«ume<wiy £jW»A Coftliabwlnftlih
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Eihibh A

2.6. The Controctor &hsll partidpate in all quality compliance, monitoring, end
improvement ectiviUes requesled-by the Dcpartnrteni whicfi will Include, but la not
limited to;

2!6.i. Demonsi/eied comp^ance with guidelines from the Alliance ot information and
Referral Systems (AIRS) for qOaSty control end evaluation. - '

2.6.2. Particlpstion in eiectrprvc and in-person can record reviews.

2.6.2.1. Collar oeiisfectlon surveys, which win be developed in colleboration with
ond approved by the Department for evaiuaiion use beginning In July
2019.

2.6.3. Panicipalioninsiievisits.

2.7. The Contractor shall participate in training end technical assistance aclivllies es
directed by the OeparVneni.

3. State Opk>ld ReBponse (SOR) Grant Standards
3.1. The'Contr'octor shall establish formal information sharing and referral agreements-,

with the Hubs, compliant with all applicable confidentiality lews..including 42 CFR

Part 2.. ,

3.2. The Contractor shall assist Iho Oepartmeni with verifying that clienl reterrals to Ihe
Hubs'have been cornpteied by the Contractor.

3.3. The Controctor shall provide the Department wilh timelines'and implementallon

plans Bssociated with SOR-funded activities to ensure services ere in place within
thirty (30) days of contract effeclivo dale, unless the Department approves an
otternoiivo timeline ai the request ol Ihe vendor.

3.3.1. II services are unable to bo offered wiihin the required timeheme. the Qontrector
shall submit an updated implementation plan to the Oepartmeni for approval to.
outline srMidpaled service start dales.

3.3.2. The Department reserves the right to terminate the' contract end liquidate
unspent funds If services are not In place within ninoty (90) days of contract'
effective date. ' .

4. Staffing

4.1. The Controctor shall submit e staffing ond rccrutlmenl plan lo the Departmenl wllhin
(7) seven days of contraci effective date.

4.2.- The Contractor shall ensure that alt call center staff ere properly trained In how to
' essist individuals with substance use disorder, or concerned parties. Treiniryg lopics
shall Include, but not be limited to ' .

4.2.1. Addiction 101.

4.2.2. Eliminating Stigma.

Ci«m»urtic4Wir CcniMOoi mut —
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• Exhibit A -

4.2.3. SefelangufiflO pfAciices. • /•

4.2.4. Other topics identified by tho Department.

4.3. The Conlfactor shall pfo^e a minimum of (1) oive full-time 818H person to update
iha Contractor's database weekly for .SUD services end other human and social
services that aid in individuals in achlevinp ar>d maintaining recovery.

4.3.1. The Contractor shall conduct ongoing outreach to SUD end health and human
eervice provldere to ensure /eot-time eccurscy of resources end update deto es
appropriate.

= 5. Reporting
5.1. The Contractor shall provide de-id^tified. aggregate monthly web'based reports by_

the 20® of the monih following.ihe reporting month. The reports shaD include, but not .
be limlied to:'

5.1.1. Number of phono calls received relative to SUO. including the everage number of
cans each month.

5.1.2. Nature of each phone call.

5.1.3. Number of callers referred from (he can center line to Hubs.

• 5.1.4.. Number of callers directly trensferrcd to Hubs.

5. t .5. Number of callers referred from the cell center tine to non-Hub services,

5.1.6. Number of callers referred from the cell center line to non-SUO services.

5.1.7. Averege amount of time callers wail In call queues before an agent responds.

5.1.8.' Percentage of total callers who hang up before reaching an-ageni.

5.1.9. Average amount of time ii takes for the call to be answered.

5.1.10. Average amounl of time an agent spends speaking with the caller, including hold-
lime. •

5.1.11. Percentage of callers that received a busy lone when they cell.

5.1..12. Call center caller types (self, concerned party, and/or professional),

5.1.13. Colter demographics and Informatjon when available including, bul noHimiled to:

•  5.1.13.1. Substance of choice.

5.1.13.2. Housing issues. , " ' .

•'5.1-.13.3. CrimlnalJustice issues. '

5.1.13.4. Employmeniissues.

. 5,1.14. Caller location. ■ • '

5.1.15. Efhergency/lmmincnl Risk lnvofvementA.€vcl of Urgency.

SS-JOiS-eOA^CALtC Po««««t6 0«t»
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5.1.16. SdMccs sought.

5.1.17. Outcomo of oach phono caO Including, but not limited to;
5.1.17.1. Referrals to Hub for eervices end dinicelevetuBtion.

5.1.17.2. Information ond resoucces provided via ihe phone.

6. Performance Meaeurea
6.1. The Goniractbr shall ensure that 100% of individuals In need of substance use

services wno remain on the phone during iho transfer of the .cau ere directly
transferred to thefr Regional Hub.

'  6.2. ■ The ConUactor shaa ensure thai 100%. of itrdividuals who call 2-1-1 NH for SUO
aervice information or referral wio speak to a 2-M staff member on the ri/si cDU.

6.0. The Contractor shall gather baseline data from January 1. 2019 - September 30.
2019,on the ereas listed below. Performance measures regardtng these areas witi
t>e negotiated wiiMhe Contractor by October 30.2019.

6.3.1. The percentage of callers that receivod a busy lone when they ceti.
' 6.3.2. The overage amount of lime callers wait in call queues before ary egant

responds.

6.3.3. The percentage of cellars who hang up before reachtng en egant.
6.3.4. The average amouni of time it takes for'ihe call to be answered.

fL0<wa«urtieevv«r e^rthA com;tct» wa»i»,
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Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1) The Sielo ehcii poy the Convedor en omoyJ ''d exceed ihe Form P-37. Block t.6. Price Lffnitetion for ihe
services provided by the Cord/setor pursueni lo Exhbit A. Scope of Services.

\ 1 Thb Aoreemeni (s.firrtded funds 'fom me SuO»iof*ce AOvse end Menial Keeiin Services
Admiflbuetion, State Oploid Response Grsni; CFOA 093.768. Federol Award Idcnifrcellon Number
(PMN). H7dTl08l665.

•  1 2. . The Contredor egrees to provide ih© lervtcss in Exhlbft A. Scope of Served In con^p!i8r>ce furiding
foqulxemenia. Fplluro lo meet the scope of lervlcos moy jeepordUo the funded Contrpcfor'a current
end/or future fiindirtg.

2) Poymem for said services ehaO be mede monihty as fooows:

2.1. Poyment shall be oh e cost reimbursenneni basis'for actual expenditures incurred in iho furtcmant of
this Agreement, end shefl be ̂ accordance mlh the opproved fine Ham in Exhibit 8-1 end Exhibit 6-2.

2.2. The CoAlfoclor wlU aubmii en invoice in a form aeibfaciory to lha Slats by the rwonlieth working doy of
each month, which Wenlifios and raqu^sis rsimburaemeni lor aulhorized ei^nses incurred In the prbr
monlh. The invoice musi be completed, eignad. deled and raiurnod lo tho Ooportmoni In order to
Initiate payftrenl. The Contractor agrees to tioep records of iheir activitios related to Oepanmcnt
programs end services.

2 3 The State shell moke poymerit lo the Conlroctor within ihiriy (30) days ol receipt of each Invoico.
aubsequeni to opprovbl of the sobmfted invoke and » autficicni funds ore ovcaabie: The Contractor wtil
tieep detailed records of .their octMtles related lo OHHS-funded programs end services.

2.0. The finot invoice ahaU be due lo the Sioto no later Ih8f> torty (40) days after the conlroct Form P-37.
Block 1.7 Completion Oaia.

2.5. In liau of hard copies, c3 Invoices may be osslgned on oiotifor\fc signature end emolied lo
fbbv Shoeklavradhhs.nh.QOv.

2.6. Payments may bo wflhhold pondrng rocetpt ol required reports or documonUlion as identified In Exhibil
A Scope of Services end in this Exhibit 6.

3) Notwilhslend'mg paragroph 18 of Iho General Provitbns P'37, changes limited lo adjusting emouf^s between
budget line iJoms. related Hems, amendnnenu of telalad budget extuVls within the-price limlielion. end lo
adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be mode by written ogreemenl of both parties end
moy bo mede without oblolning approval of iho Govwnor end Executivo Council.

Crwo.um«)W.7 EihtbUB CorindwmBsri
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Conirectore Osngerofts: The Conliectw covenenis end 80'*o* that oH 'unds received by ibc CorHroctor
imdef the Coovnd ihaD be used only at peymeni lo (he CoAirector (or tervlcee provided lo eUgibte.
(ndivldueis end. in (he ruhheronce ist (he oforcseid covenonls. the Contractor hereby covenanis end
ogreet ds (oltoere;

f. Comptlence wbh Federei end Bute Lewe: If (he Conlmclor U permiRed to determine (he eltpibBHy
ol u^nriduoli luch ePgcbiEly detorminBlbn ehon be mede In occordance with opplicebie (ederai end
etato tavn, reguioUont. ordon. guldellrtes. policbt 8Rd procedures.

2. Time end Manner o( Detervninellon: ECgtbiCiydeiermtnettons ehol) be mode on forme providod by
the Ocpenmenl'for ihm purpose and shell bemade end remade oi such limes as ere prescrtbed by
(he Oepartrftenl.

1 DocumenuHon: (h'oddiilon (othc determlneilonlorms reduired by iho Department, the Conlracipr
eheQ melntetn o dele nte on each rec'piani of eervlcos hereunder. which nia shan inctudo ell
iniormslion necessary lo support en eliglbliity dilermtnotlon end such other informaUon os'lhe
Depertmeni requests. The Comredor shell lumbh the Department with oil lormi end documentation-
regarding eilgiblUty deicrminetions ihei the Oepirtmeni rnay request or require.

4. FoIr Hoerlnge: The Contmctor underslor^s Ihsi ail oppfcents for services hereunder. os well as
.Individ.u8is dectarod ineligible have a rlghl to a loir hearing regarding'that delenn'malion. The
ConU^or hereby covenants end agrees ihel ts eppiicenis.for services shall bo pcrmmed lo fd» out
on oppllcelion form ond that each eppficeni or ro-epplicani ̂ hall be informed of his/her rtghl (o o fair -
hearing in eecordanco with Deportment rogulat'ons.

5. Gratullleo or Klckbeckt: The Controctor ogrees that il is a breach ol this Centred to occepi or
moXo 0 payment, groluhy or ©ffoi of omptoymenl on behalf of (he Conlrodor, any Sub-Contoiclor or
the State in order to Inftuencd the performanceof the Scope of Work daiaiied in Exhibit A o< this
Conlraci. The' State may lorminoie (his Cor>trec("6nd any sub-corMrqd or cub-ogrcemenl If h Is
determined that payments, graluilies or offer* of em^oymenl ol dny Kind were offered or recahred by
ony otfidats. olficor*. employees or ogent* ol the Contractor or Sub-Coniroctor.

6. Rotfoactlvo Poymento: Notwithslonding onyif^g lo tho contrary contained In the Contract or In any
other document, cooireci or undersiondtng. ft is expressly understood and og'reed by the perties
hereto, that no paymonis wiu be made heicundet lo roimburso tho Controctor for cost* mcurred for
ony purpose or for eny services provided to ony Irtdividual prior to the Effective Date of the Centred
qnd no payments shell be made for expenses Incuned by Ihe ConlrKtor for eny servicee p/ovldod
prior to (ho dote on vvhich the individual eppGes for services or (except as otherwise provided by the

-  federfa'l rogutations) prior to a determination that the indrvi,dual Is eligible for euch services. •

7. Conditions of Purchsso: Nolwiihsianding onything (o Ihe contrery conleined in tho Contract, nothing
herein eoniolned shall be deemed to oWgalo or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at o rote which reimburses the Conuocior in excess ol the Contractors costs, oi o reie-
wh^ exceeds the emounis reasonoble end nxessary lo assure the quatiiy of such senhco. or pi o
rale which exceeds (ho rote charged by (he Conueclor to inciiglbio irtdWduols or other third party
(under* for such sdrvlce. II ot ony tirne during the term ol this Corvtrect or efter receipt of the Final
Expendiiuro Report hereunder, the Oepertrment shell determine thot Iho Controctor hos used
paymonis hereunder lo reimburse items ol expense other than such cosis, or has received paymbnl
in excess cl such costs or Irt excess ol such roloi charged by Ihe Contractor to ineligible individuols
or other third party funder*. Ihe Deportment may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate Ihe fates fo/ paymeni hereunder. in which event new rales shcn bo eslobiished: ,
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Conlreclor Iho omount ol ony prior rotmb.ur*ement In

■  excess ol costs: . ^
e*HMi C - S^l Pro»(»bfti Co«r|C(or MUIi

oy»«. ■ p.j.iois one
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7.3. Demond ropoynteni of ('>e excesspoyment by (he Conireao/ in which ovoni foBum to moXe
Such rtpeymeni ehaB constltuie en Event of Defeuti hereunder. When (ho Controctor la
pemtined (o delermihe (he eligibiQy of in(5<viduais fo' eenAces.-the Conlrocio/ egreot lo
tolmburse the Depadmonl for oo funda paid by ihe Oepadment (o (he Conuector for sefvlces
provided (0 eny fndividuel who It found by the Oepedment to be ineligible for such services el
ony time during Ihe period of relemion of records esiebSshed hereirt..

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFJDENTIAIITV:

6. fvlelnienence of Recorde: In oddHion to ihe eligibility records specified ebove, the Coniroctor
covensnu eno egroes lo melnlain ine following record! during the Conlroct Period:
8.1. Fiacei Record*: books, records, documents end other dele evldertclng ond reflecting ed cotle

end other ezpenies Incurred by Ihe Corvtredor in the pedormence of Ihe Conirecl. ond oil
Incdme received or coflcded by (he Contwcior during the Contrect Period, sold records to be
mein^rted in eccordence whh eccouniing procedures end prscllces which sutftflenlly end
properly reflect ell such cosis end expenses, end which are acceptable to (he .Oeparvhent, end
to include, without ItrrtBalron, aO ledgers, books, records. er>d original evidence of costs such es
purchase requisitions end orders, vouchers, requishbns lor maierials. inventoriet. valualioris of
In-kind contrtbuiions. labor lime cards, payrolls, and other records requested or requuod by the
Oepartmehl.

• 0.2. Slaiislicei Records: Siaiislicoi. enroUme^ atiendarKe or visit records fqr each rcclpieni of
services during the Controet Period, whicn records shall IncJude fill rocoirds of oppticelion ond
eligibility (including oU.forms required lo delermlno aligK>iliiy for each such recipient), records

.. regarding tho provision of sei>^s end ot invoices submitted lo (ho Oepertmontlo obtain
payment for such services.

6.3. Modical Records: Whore oppropHate ond os preschbed by the Oeponmoni regulations, ihe
Conlraclor shell retain medicel records on oech patiant/recipleni of aeryices.

9. Audit: Controdor ehail tubmil on onnual audit to the Oepartmeni within 60 doyt after iho'cioso of the
agency fiscal year, n is recoflUTtended iKai the rapod be prepared in eccordanco with the provision of
Offlce erf Managamanl end Budget Circular A-ui. 'Audits of States. Local Covornmenis. ond.Non
Profit Organizations' ond tho provisions of Standards for Audit of G^rnmental OrgenUotions,

. p/ograms.-Aciivilles er^ Functions, issued by ibe US Genera) Accouni'mg OfTica (GAG standards) os
lhay pertain lo finandai compliance audits.

'9.1. Audit and Review: During the larm of this Contrect end the period lor reianiion herevnder. ihe
Oapertmenl, the United States Oepartmeni of Health and Human Sorvkaa. and any of their
designated, roproaonlaiives shall hovo access to oD reports end records rnainiained pursuoni to
Ihe. Cdnira^ for purposes of audit. etomlAol'on. excerpts and transciIpls.

9.2. AufTif Liabl£lies: in addilion to orvf rKrf In any way in iimiialion of obligations of Ihe Conlrocl. II Is
u/iderstood ond ogreod by tho Coniractorihat.fhe Contractor shad be hold liabla for ony 'slole. •
or federal oudB exceptions ond ch^ roium to the Dapertment. bD paymonls made under tho
Controet lo which excoplion has been taken or wh'ch have been.dlsaliowod because of ouch on
oxcoplon.

10. Confldontlallty of Recorda: AJI informarion. repcula. ond racordi maintained he/eunderor collected
in connoclion with (ho portormanico of Ihe services and the Coniioct ehaU bo confldeniial and ahoD not
be disclosed by (ho Contractor, provided however, that pursuant lo stslo taws end the regulalions of
the Oeparyneni ragardbg tho use and discloturo of auch inrormolton, discioiure may be made to
public oKiciols requiring such intomiotion In connecron wiih (heir ohiclal duties ond .for purposes

.  dlrectly.coAnecied to the admlnlsiraiion of the sarvlcos ond the Cor^iroct; ond provided furihor. thai
the use or disclosure by eny party ol any InfomrtoliOA concerning a recipionl for ony purpose not
directly connecled wiih tho edminist/ation of (ha Oepartmeni or the Contractor's responsibiiilloi wlih
respect lo purchased eervfces hereunder is prohibitad ozcopi on vwinen cortsanl of (he r^pienl. his
ettomay or guenjian.

cvjnu PsflsJdS Om
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NotwtiKstanding enythiftO fo (he conimry comdnM herein (ha covenanl'i ond conoiiiOAe coniatnad tn
(ha Peregraph eheU imvivQ ihe termlneiion of iho Conirect for any reaton wheuoaver.

11. PeportB; Fiscal end StaUsliui): The Cont/scior egrees (o tubmii tha foflowing repohs at (ha (o(losw(ng
(bnes If reoiiMiad by (ha Oepartmeni.
1t.(. Interim FhaiKial Raportsr Wrinen inlenm rtnendai reports containing a detailed description of

all costs end non-BlioMrablo o^ar^ses ircurrod by tha Contrador to the date of (he ropon and
.  containing such ̂ erinlormfltion as ihsil be deemed ealisfactory by (ha Oepartmani to

justify (he fote.d poymeni heiourtdor. Such Financial Repona shoe-ba aubmoteoon me form
designatod by (ha Oeponmeni or dcomid laiislictory by tha Depadmefli.

11.2. Flnel Report: A hnai repot aheijOe autvnined wilhin Ihlty (30) Oeyt ehor (he end of the term
of (hia-Contioet. The Final Repot aholi be In o form aalit'ecio/y to ihe-Department and shell
contain a lummory etatemeni of progress toward goals end objectives staled (n the Proposal
er¥) other Informplion required by (ha Oapsrtmenl.

12. Completion of Servlcea: Oisallowanca ol Cosu: Upon me pur'chesa by (he Depatmeni of the
maximum number of units provided for in me Conirecl end upon peymeni of (he pdce (imliation
hercunder. (ha Coniraci or^ oO (ho obngaiions of iha parties he/aunder (except such obTigaiions os.
by Iho terms of tha Controct era to be performod after Iho end of (he term of (Ms Conirect endfor

' aurvivo (ho torminaiion of (he Contmcl) shaft (armtnate. provided howovar. ihai if. upon review of (ha
Find) Expenditure Report (ha Oapartmeni thaO dtisttow any oxpenses cfaimod by the Contractor as
costs ha/eunder the Oapartmont iheii retain the right, ol its discro'iion, to deduct ihe pmouni of such *'
expenses as era disalibwed or to recover such sums from the CqotrDctor.

13. Credits: All documonli, nolicas. press rotooses. research reports end other mate'nali prepared
during or resulting from (he performance of the services of Iho Contract shall inohida (he followlno
statemoni:

13.1. The proporetion of (Ms (report, docume<ire(c.) wos finoncad under'a Con(ract wiih (ha S(e!e
'  of Nmv Hampshiro. Oepartmonl pf Heath end Human Servicos. wim funds provided in pod

by the Slolo of New Hempthire end/or such other funding sources os woro avoiisbto or ■
reouired. e.g.. the United Steles Dopartmeni of Health end Human Sotvicas.

t4. Prior Approval pnd Copyright Ownership: A1 molerials (whtten, video, oudlo) produced or
purchased under the contract shell have prior opproval from OHHS before prinling..production.

-  disirfbutiott or use. The OHHS wiO retain copyri^i ownership for any end oil original materials
produced. Including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guideilnei.
posiers. or reports. Contractor shall not reproduoo any molerials produced under the conirect wiihout
prior vrritten approval from OHHS.

15. Oporotlon of Feclildea:.Compliance wim Lawo end Reguiailone; (n ihe operation of ony focKiies
for provfding services, the Contractor shell comply wiih on tawt. orders and reguleUons of federei,
stole, county end municipel eulhortiies end with eny direction ol eny Public OfTtcar oi officers
pursuant to .taws which sheQ Impose on order or duty upon ihe contractor ytlih respect to (ho
operation of thb foctL'ly or the provision of (he ssrvicas at such focRlty. tf ony govommentai licartse or
pormii shall be requfr^ for (he operoiton of iho sold lodGiy or ihe performenca of Iho said services,
(he Controctor wll) procure sold license or porml. end will ol oil limes compty wOh the terms ond
condhiofls of coch euch licanse or permit. In coanoclron with (he (orogoing requiremenls, (he
Contractor hereby cgvanants ond ogrees (hot. during (he loan of ihis Contrpcl the fociiiiies ehet)
comply wvth-all rules; orders, regulations, end requirements of'iho Slote Offca of (he Fire Morshol end
the local fire prolection ogency, ond sholl be In eonformonco with local buDding ond zoning codeo. by>
lows end regulations.

16. Equal Employment Oppdrtunlry Plan (^EOP): The Cgnlroclor will provide on Equal Employment
Opporlunily Plan (EEOP) lo the Offico for CMi Rights. Offce of Justica Programs (OCR). H it has
recarved a alngle award of SSOO.OOO or more, if me recipient recaivos $25,000 or more end has SO or

EurUlC-SpecUlPfOVjIo^ Conuactn* mtiuci

C67i»M FestSorS ' Qua ^



uocubtgn tnveiope lu; ;3UDT»uaB-i-.JUi-4;iio:rj-Ai4r-;j4B/tbbL:b^^u

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7537AED6-B6A9-4C03-AAEA-170fl42CFB0A5

DocuSign Envelope ID: 08FF2B5MlBC-4D4O-SFD(W7F261C6Cb0B
OoCuSI^ envelope P:eiCl006l-0464-4F7C-eeFE-57e439B»FiB

Mow Maffiothlw Ooport/nonI ol HoeUh «nd Humin Sorvlcee
ExblbllC

mom empiOYeoj. «l win meinioin a cormni EEOP on file end eubmli on EEOP Cortrfjcalton form lo in«
OCR cortifytfvfl Iherlis EEOP b on fib. Fof rocipienis rocoWnfl less ihon $2$.000. or pubBc flfonieos
Wih lower ihen 50 ompioyect. rogardiofi ol ihe emoont ol ihe eword. Iho rodpienl w<D

'  EEOP CcrtiTicetion Form lo iho OCR cenifylng'«it not roqulrod.io submit or moinloln on EEOP, Norv
prott oroenUations. indbn Tn*be>. end medical and educaliortf11niUlv^ons om exempl Irom tha
EEOP roQuiremeni. but era roquirod lo lubmh • «rtir«caiion lorm lo tSo OCR lo claim the oiemption.
EEOP Corttfitation Foimi are available at: hRpJ/www.ojp.usdoJ/about/ocr/pdls/ccfi.pdf.

17 Limited Enflileh Pronetoney (L6P): Ao clarified by 6*ocvt»ve Order 13166, Improving A^is to
Services for persons with Llmlied English Pronoency. end rasuJlino eoerKy gulda/^. nalionoi o/fgm.
drscrtmlnatiorv includes discrimlnalion on iho bmb ol limUed Engibh proficiefKy (LEP). To ensure
compfience with the Omnibus Crtmo Conltol end Sole Siroeii Act ol IPSS end Title Vt ol ihp Civ»l
Rights Ad d 1884, Conl/8cior» must taXo reasonabla steps lo ensure that LEP perws navo
meaningtut access to Its programs.

18. Pilot Pfogrom for Enhenccmsnt ol Contractor Employee WhlsllBblowar Protoctlono: The
liowing shall apply to a&conl/acls l»al eiceed the SImptifted Aojubitlon Threshold as defmod rn 48
CFR 2.101 (currently. J150.000) : ■

COMTRACTOfi EWPiOYEE WHlSnEBLOWEP ftCHTS ANO REOUREUENT TO INFORM EMnOYEES Of
WHiSTLCaiOWER Rights (SEP 2013).

(o) Thb controci and emptoyoes working on thi$ contract will be wbjecl lo the whistleblowar rights
ond remedies In fte plloi program on Conirector employee whbltablowaf proiedtons cslpWbhad ct .
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 638 oMho National Oafanso Authorization Ad lor Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. I.
,112-239) and FAR 3.808.

(b) The Coniroclor■shall inlorm its employaes In writing. In the predominant lariguege ol the w^forca.
of omployoe whUtfcblowor rtghts ond protectiofls under 41 U.S.C. .4712. OS described in section,
3.808 ct Ihe.Federo) Acquisition Rtgulolion.

(c) The Contractor shell insen the substance of this dOuse. Including this paragroph (c). In oil .
subcontracts over the eimpHfied acoublt'ion threshold.

19. Subconirectoro: OHHS recognizes ihol the Coniredor mey choose lo use subconlraclofs Mflh
oreeler 'e*perlbe lo-per1orm certain heetlh cere services or funclions for effidency or convonlence.
but Ihe Conirector shall retain ihe responjibiiiiy end occounicbliity for the funci«on{s). Prior lo

■ subconlroding the Coniroclor shall evaluate the subcontisdor's obiliiy lo perform tho delegated
fi^tion(s). This Is eccomplishod through o wrisorr ogrocmonl that specifios activiues ond reporttng
responsIb«Ul"«8 of the subconiredor and provldsi lor revoWng Ihe deiegaljon or imposing aaxUoni if
the subcontrodef • pcrformoncc is not odequoto. Subcontroclofs ore subject to the come contioctual
condttions es the Conirector ond Iho Coniroclor Is responsible lo ensure subconlraaor ce^mpliancd .
whh (hose conditions. • _ ^ ^ .w i « • >».
When the Coniroclor delegoles o funcl'on to e iul>conlrod6r. the Conlroctoi shell do Iho losowing.
■19.1. Evftloeto Iho prospod'rvo subcontraclor's obBily to perform tho ecllvllles.-bofore delogaiing

the funcliori
19.2. Have e writieri egroom'onl.wiih the subcontroclor Ihel specnies ectiviiiei ond reporting

lesponilbllities end how saxllons/rovocslion will be managed if the subcontrocior'e
performonce Is not adequate

19.3. MonHof the subconlractor's performance on on ongoing bosis

nnnii

CiNsli C - Sosclii Provtolons Cooy#ctorimJ»li
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Mont Hempdhire Oepeitment of HeaUh and Humen Services
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19.4. Provido to OKHS on pnnuol ichedute idenlifyihg el subconl/odo^. deiogeled function) end'
retpOA)ib3iliei. ondv^en Ihe tuOconirector'i perfOnnonce will be reviewed .

19.5. OHHS ihell et ite doaelion. review end opprove ell lubooAlract).

If the CoAtmdor identrios dencienciot or oreas (or Improvement ore fdentlTiad. ihe Conuodor ebeO
take corrective ectioA.

DEFINITIONS
Aa uietf In the Conimct. Ihe foOowtng (erms thai) have the foOowIng meanlnps:

COSTS: SboD moen ihoto direct end indirod itoms'of expense deiermined by ibe Oepertment to be
eOowebte end reimbureebto in occordance with coal end occouniing principles esloblisbed in eocordence
with siote end federa) lews, regufelions. rules end orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Oepodment of Heanh end Hvmon Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIOEUNES: ShaD mean that section of the Contrsctor Manual which is
emitted 'Flnenctel Mtmeoemenl dufdermes* ond which contains the regulQlions governing the FinerKlal
octivftios of controclor ogencies which have conirocted with the Siete of NH to rocelvo funds.

PROPOSAL: If eppticeblB. eheo mean mo documcni eubmined by the Contrector on e form or forms
reouired by .(he Depertmont end conielnlng e doscrtplion of the Services to be provided (o eliglbto
individuats by Iho Contrecter in eccordertce with Ihe terms end cor>dHcns of Ihe Corilmci ond setlirrg forth
(he totol cost ond sources of revenue tor each, lorvlco lo bo provided under the Conirecl..

LfNIT: For eech service ihet the Conirector Is (o provide lo eCgibte Indrviduets hereunder. shell mean ihot.
period of lime or that spec^ied ocirvrty determined by (he Oepertmeni end speciriod in Exhibii B of the
Coni/ecl.

FEOERAIJSTATE LAW:-Wherever federol or eiele laws, regulations, rvtss. orders, end policies, etc. ore
referred to in the Contred. the aeid reference ihao be deemed to mean oil euch taws, rogutations. etc. es
they may be emended or re>^ied Irom (he lime.lo line.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shell mean lhal documenl prepared by ihe NH Oepertmeni of Admlnislreliv©
Services-containing e Mmpllaiion ol el) regulations promulgol^ pursuant to the Now Hampshire
Admintstrative Procedutet Act. NH RSA Ch S41 -A. lor (he purpose of implementing State of NH ond
federal regutallons promulgoled Ihorotrndor.

supplanting other federal FUNDS: .The Contiaclor guarar^tees thol funds prqykJed under this
Contract wiQ net supplen} any existing lederol funds evoiiabte for these services.

EaVM C - SxcUl PlWrhlons Coolr#ctc» Inateh.iL.
CBOIA. P«9J5ot5 D8t«
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REVISIOHS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subpcfogreph e of the General Provbtens ol tWe conlroct. Condrtionot Nature of Aamement. is
repieced es foQowa:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
'  NoMthetandirtg ony provision of IKis Agreement to the contrery. flD obUgalions of the Stoto

•  hefounddf. IndudiftQ wflhoul limaetton. iho conlinuance of paymente. in whote or In port,
under thie Apreemenl are contingent upon contmued oppropriatlon or ovailaPKry of funds.

"IncludinQ ony eubsequcnl changes to the opproprtation or ovaUaOiihy of londi ertoctod by
•  any state or federal legbtaiive or eaecutive action Dial reduces, eliminoles. or otherwise

modines the approprtation or ovoitobiiiy of furtding for thjs Agreement end the Scope of
Servtees provided in Eihlbii A, Scope ol Services. In whole or In pert, m no ovorM ehati the
State be liable for any payments hereurtdar in erceee of appropriated or ovaiiabla funds, in
the event of e reduction, termination or modificatba of approprtaied or ovailsble funds, the
Stele sheD have the righi to wfthhoW paymani until such funds become available. If ever. The

, Stele ahaD have.the right lo reduce. termlr\ate or modify aenrtcas under ihia'Agreemenv
immedleteiy upori gMng the Conireeidr noiice of auch reduction. (ormlAat)on or modHicalioh.
The Stele eftol' ndt'be required to ttwsle/ funds from eny-other source or account Into the
Accourtl(i) WenHrjed In block 1.6 of the Gerserel Proyistons. Account Number, or'ony other
aaounii In the event funds ere r^uced or unavailable.

2. Subperegraph 10 ol Ihe Gcnorel Provlilons of this centroci. TermlrtoHon. Is omer\ded by edding the
following langue^:

10.1 The Sloio rney terminate the Agroemeni el ony time lor ony reeson. ot the sote tjiicfelion of
Ihe Stele.' 30 doys efter giving the Conirector written notice that the Stale is exercising Its
option 10 lerminsie the Agreemeni

10.2 In the evonl of corly terminolon. ths Conirector shell, within 15 days b! rsoiice of oorty
lerminolion. .develop and submi) to the Stole o Transition Plan (or services urtder Iho
Agreement, including but noi limhed to. 'idenlifyirtg the preseni end future nee.ds of clients
locafving services under the Agroemeat end esisbiishei o process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contraclor ehotf fuBy cocpcrole whh iho State end shall promplty provide dotaBed
Inlormolion lo support iho TromWon Plan jnclud'ng: bul r>ot rtmlied lo. ony Wormollon or
dale requested by the State related to the lepn'malion of the Agroemeni end Trens'ition Plan
and shall provtdo ongoing communcoiron end revisions ol (ho Transition Plan to the Stele os
requested. ■

10.4 In Iho event thai isorvices under the Agreement. Including but not limited to ciients recoivii^
aervices under the Agreement ere (ransilioned lo having services deWored by another entity
Including centrticled providers or lha Stoto. (he Conirector shell provide.a process for
unintorruplod delrvery of services In the Tronsltion Plan.

10.5 The .Conirector. shell establish o method of notifying cficnls end other effected ind'ividuols
oboul the l/ensilion. The Conlrocto/ shell incfudo the proposed commun'icalions in its
Transition Plon subminod to tho State OS described obovo.

3.' Renewal:
The Department reserves the right lo extend this Agreement for up to fwo (2) eddrllonal yoore.
corjlingcnt upon soiisloclory dctlvory of cervices, ovailable funding, ogrocmenl ol Ifio parties ond
opprovol ol the Govornor ond ExocuHvo Council.' '

EsNMC*!-Reiltlcm'ioSundirdPrtftlilonj CerVractoriAkUb.
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CERTIFICATION WEGABDINQ PRUO-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Conlrcdof Idenirie^ in Section 1.3 of the General Proviiionj egreee to comply with the provbteni of
Sections Si51-5l60ol the Orug-Frce Workplace Act of 198a (Pub.L. 100^90. TItle-V. Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 el leq.), entf further egfees to have the Coniroctor'a repfesenlotiye. e« WentKied in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the Gcrve/fll Provision# exocule iho following Ccrtificeilon:

ALTERNATIVE I ♦ FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDfVIOUALS

US OEPARTf*lENT OF HEALTH ANO HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
U9 OEPARTMEMT OF eOUCATION . CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AORICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Thli certincclton is required by the regulations ImplemotMing Sections 5151-5160 ol the Dn^-Free
Wofkplfice Act of 1988 fPub. L. 100-690. Thle V, SuWhle 0:41 U.S.C. 701 ol seq.). The Jcnuery 31.
1889 regWotlons v«re amended orxJ published as Port II ol the May 25.1990 Federol Register (pages
21881-21691), and require certificolion by gronioes (arid by Infeiance. #ub-qrenlees end lub^
contrector*). ̂ or to award, thai ihey wCl melnialn a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
reguiaiion provides that o grontoo (end by Inference, tub-grenloe# ertd #ub-conlroclor») thol i# o Stoio
may elect lo meke oho certlTjcotjoo to Ihe Oepertment in each federal fiscal year in liou ol cortifcoles for
eoch grant during the federal fiscal year covered by Ihe cortificaiion. .The certlTicatB eel out below is p
moterlal represenieilon of feel upon which reliance h pieced when iha agency awards ihc grant. Felse
. certtficafon or vtolatioA of the certifiMlion shall be grounds for suspension of paymeriti. suspension or
lermination of grants, or govemmenl %¥lde suspeniipn or debarmerjl. Contraclore using this form should
aenditlo:.

Commissioner

NH Deportment ol Health end Human Services
i29Pleosam-S(reet.
Concord. NH0330t.6S05

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide e drug-free workptoco by:
1.1. Publishing 0 slolemcnt i>oljfyi"B emplbyeeithBt Iheonlaswfulmanuloclure. dislrlbulion,

dispensing, possession or use of 9 coni/oQed substance Is prohibRod in Iho gtanleo's
workplace end speclfyingtheocllonsthsiwiilbetekenagelnsi employees for viol8tior>of such
prt^biilort;

1.2. Establishing on ongoing drug-free owareress program lo Worm employees obout
1.2.1. Tho dangers of drug obuse in.ihe workplace:
1.2.2. Tho grenlee's policy of malnielnlnoedrug-f tee woiVplace;
1.2.3. Any ovailable drug counseling, rehabilitetion.'ef>d employee ossistance progrerms; and
yi.A. The penallies ihal ma)' be Imposid upon emptoyoos for drug obuso violations

occurring in tho workpJapo;
1.3. Making It e roquirement thol eoch omplqyoo to be engaged Ift the portomionce ol the grant be

given o copy of the slatemoni required by parogreph (e);
1.4. Nolifying.lhe employee In the •lalemenl rcqui;^ by paragraph (a) lhal. as a condition ol

cmpioymenl under the gram, the ernptoyae will
1.4.1. Abide by Ihe terms of <he slalemeni; and
1.4.2. Notify the cmpJoyef in wriilng ol his or her conviction for a violalipn of a criminal drug

statute occuning In the worKpiacs no later than frro calender days after such,
conviction: • .

1.5. Notifying Ihe ogcncy in writing, within lencoiendar days oftor receiving notice under
subperegreph 1.4.2 from on employee or olhorwise recoMng oOuol notice of such convidion.
Emptayers ol convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grbnt
offkor ort whose grant octlvrly tho convicted omployoo was working, unless the Federal opency

ML
We«tptsceReqUr».'nit«i _

EjUyyiD-CertHuPonrejinSrgOrvoFret Cor^UidOf tAWdi
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haa dcaigAetod e ceniiai poim fo^ ihe rcceipi oi auch noiicea. Noilce eftaii incfc^de ihe
identtficeiiOA numbef(i] of each affecidd groni;

1.6. Tokb^ w of iho fotowing oclions. wRhln 30 calendar doyt o! receiving nolce under
aubpartflraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who b ao convicted
1.6.1. Toklng approphaie pertonnai acOon againsi loth an employee, up to and tncfuding

lermlnalion. conatilenl wilh the rogulremonia of ihe RehaWiiotioft Act of 1973. oi
amended: or

l.e.2. Reovtrir^o ouch emp^e* to pertcipst* •atisfeclorOy In e drug abuse esatslance or
" rohobiCieiion progrom approved lor ouch purposoi by e Federal, State, or locel hoaPh.
law enforcemerit. or other approprtoie ogency;.

1.7; Hjtoa'ng e good follh offon to continue to rholniein a drug-free woAplpco through
'ImplementoilOA of perearephs i.i. 1.2.1.3.1.4.1.5. end 1.6.

2. The granleo may insert In Ihe apace provided betow the alicd) for Ihe pierformance of woi* done in
connection with the epecKic grant

Place of Pe/fonnanco (aireei addrcaa. city, county, italo. lip code) (Cat oach location)

Chech □ H there ore workplaces on file that ore not Wenlificd here.

Conlroctv Name:

Onto Narne: 7** P-T^

EjrtWO-CWiOcifonrtoinJlreOtuofree Conusdorifliaet
w^pict Reqvktnxnij

cuowo^<e>i) Pspsloil 0*i« '&/r'
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CERTIPICATIOH ftECARDlNG LOBBYINO

■ The Conihwof Wertined m Section 1.5 of mo General Ptovlstona ogtaos to comply mo pwUtonj ol
. Section 310 of Pubfic Lew 10M21, Govemmont wl^t Guidance for New ResirictloAa on Lobbying, end
31 U.S.C. 1352, and Mhof og/ees to hove the Coniractor'a fepresentaWo. oa identffrtd in Sodiona i.ii
end 1.12 ol the General Provistons execute (ha (oUoning C^KicatJO^

us OEPARTMEKT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION . contractors
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Progremi (ind'icsle opptlceble program covered);'
temporaty Aisblanco to Needy FinvTiaa under Tida h/-A
'Child Support Enlorcemenl Progrom under Title IV-0
'Social ̂ rvicei Blodc Granl Program under TUle XJ(
'Mediceid Program under Title XIX
'Community .Set^l dlOcJi Grant under Tile VI
'CNId Core OevelOpmerM BlOCh Grant urtder Title tV

Tho underalgnod ceftiriea. to iKp beat of his or her hnowfodga ond botiel. thot;

1. No Fedarol opproprialad funds h»'^ boon paid or will be paW by or on bohall ol the underaigrtad. to
eny person lor Influencing or attempting to Influence on officer or om^yoe ol any egancy, e Member
ol Congress, on officer or employee ol Congress, or on employee of o Member ol Congress in ..
connection with ihe awarding of any Federal conlrocL continuction. renewal. emendmenL or
modfeeUon ol eny Federal cordrad. grant, loarv oi coop'erativo ogreemerit (end by specific menliort
sub-grantee'or sutxonlractoO-

2. 11 any funds other than Federal oppiopriated funds have bean paid or wtu be paid to any poreon for
.  Influencing or 'attamptlr>g lo'lnfluence on offtcer cf employoo of any agency, o Mombor ol Congreie.

an o^cer'or omplpyoe.oi Congress, or en employee of o Member of Congress m connection wHh this
Federal contrpcl. gronl. loan, or cooperative agraemeni (and by ipocifc mention sub-grantee or tub-
conlracfor). the underslgrtad sheR complete trt6 subrnit Stondord'form LLL. (Olsclosufe Form to
Report Lobbying, in pccordence with its instrucl'ons. otlached end Idenlirced os Slendatd Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shoD require that tho language of ihls cenilicelion be Included in ihe eward
documerM lor lub-ewardi et eli tiers (including eubconlracls. sub-grenls. and corMracis under grants,
loans, orrd cooperative agreemertts) oryJ (hot on sub^odpierits sheD'carlify and disclose eccordingly.

This certlfeaiioo is o material represerweliort of fact upon which rcRance was placed'when this transaction
was made or entered irilo. Submission ol this certificelion is a prerequhfle lor making or entering Into this
IransacUon Imposed by Sedtor^ 1352. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to ftJo iho required
certificotion shoQ bo subject to o civil penaRy ol nol less than $10,000 and r^oi more than $100,000 for'
each'such failure.

Conlreclor Name:

Date erne:

lUs:TiUs

o^^srvanvo'O

eiNSAE-CCAl9uClmR«gtnfiroLcM>|(r9 Csrtrscter INiUIJ /[iil
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CERTIPlCATlQH REOAftOiNQOEBARMEMT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPOKSIBILITY MATTERS

The CcrUroct'or Identified In Sectk>n 1.3 of the Geneiel Provisions egreos io comply with the provisions of
Execulivo OHico of tho Preiidsnt; ExocvUvo Order 12549 end 45 CFR Port 76 rogardinQ Oobormcnt.
Suspensioh. end Olher RcsponsiMity Matters, end Mher agrees to.hbvo the ContrBcior'e
reproseniatlve. as Wenllfied In Sections t.ii end i.i2of iheGenerelProvisioruoxocwlethefoOowfng
CorUfication:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION.
1. By signing end eiAmlttlng this proposal (conuoa). the prospective phmory pertit«pani is providing (he •

cenificAlion set out below. *

2. The btebBHy of o person to provide (he certlficol'on roqutred betow wiD not necesserdy result In denial
ol-porticipotion in this covered iransoction. If naussary, (he prospective perticlpani shell submit en
eiptenelion of why H ce/inol provide the ccrtificolion. The.coitificoilon or oxpiarioiion wID be
cortsiderod In connection with Ihe NH Department of Heetlh and Human Services' (DKHS)
datanninetion whether to enter into this transocdon. However, failure of (he prospective prtmary.
pertidpeni to furniah e certificelion or ort' oxplonellon shoil dlsquatify such person from participation in
(his transaction.

3. The certification in (his deuse is e meieriol reprtientelion ol feet upon wh'ch renence was placed
when OHHS dotormtnod (o ontor Into this irensscHon. If it is (dier determined'thfit (he prospecdvo
primes pertrciponl knowingly rendered an erronaovs cortificaOon, In oddllion (o other remedies
available to Ihe Federal Govemmenl. OHHS may torminsle llih (rensaction (or cause or delaull.

\

4. The prospective primary portlclpant iltaD pro^^e immediaie written notice to iho OHHS oge.ncy to
whom this proposal (contract) Is submihed il at eny lime the prospedivo pr'imory participenl-loarns
that hs certiflcotibn was erroneous when.submised or has become erroneous by reason of changed
cJrcumstahces-

5; Tho terms 'covered trensaclion.* 'dabarrod,* 'suspended.* 'ineligible.' 'lower tier covered .
• transaction,* 'pertidpanl.' 'person,' 'primary covered trensedioo,*'principal,* 'proposal.' and
'vohrniarilydxcluded.* as used In this clause, have (ho meanings set out In the Oorinhlons end
Covoroge sections of Ihe rules.ImfHemenling ExecutKro Order'12549:4S CFR Pert 76. Sao tho
ottachod deiirvhions.

6. Tho prospective primery porticipant agrooi by wb'mining this proposal (contract) that, should (he
proposed covered transeclibn be entered ii>lo. irsholl not fmowingly enlor Into ony lowor lior wvorod
trensaclion with a person who Is deboirod. suspended, declared Ineligible, or volonlahiy excluded
from participation In this covered trBhsactlon. urJess authorised by OHHS.

7. Tho prospoctivo pr'imsfy partidpanl lurthor egress by submining this proposal that II,will Include the
clause titled 'Cenfficotion Regarding Dcbo/mcni. Suspension. InoiiglblWy ond Voluntary Exclusion •
(.ower Tier Covorod Trohsactions.* provided by OHHS. wilhoul modification, in all lower tiar covered
(ronsections ond in oU.soliciialioos for lower tier covered trensactions.

8. A porticlponi In o wvered iransoction may ioty apoo o certiTjcation.of o prospective partlclpont in o
lower tier covered (ronsaclion that It is not debivred. suspended. Ineligible, or tnvoluniarily oxcludod
from the covered Ircnsoction. unless it knows that the certification Is erroneous. A perticiponl moy
decide the method ond frequcrtcy by which It dslermlnos the ellglbtiUy of its principals. Each •
participant may. but Is not required to. check ihs Nonprocuremanl List ("of excluded parties).-

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be comtrucd to require establishment of a system ol records
In order (o rcrider In good faith (he'cortifcalion roqulred by this clause. The knowledge ond

e>htti>F-Ctrtttesbon Rssiitfhp'OsSimini. Sujpsmton Conv#dof irfiiih
AndOuvrAtipoMCtaryMintri

PHI10I7 Oii»7 P .
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WonnaiiM ol B porticipani i> not reow>ed to Mceed thai vrfiich « nofmalV poiaeaaed by t pfudem
poraoA in the cuOtnery coune of buaineat deaiirQs.

to Except for IrBniacUons euW\orized ufider parogmph 6 of Iheae Inalnrdiona. if o participant In a-
' covered trenaaction knowlngfy enter* ir\io a lower tier covered IfDnjoclion with o peraon who la
luapended, debi^^ed, ineligible, or vofuntartly excluded from participation in ihia trenaecOon. in
DddWon to other remodlea ovaitablo to the Federal government. OHMS may lerr^ie lh.ta iraniaction
for cauae or defeuR.

PRIMARY COVEREO TRANSACTIONS
11. The procpecUve prlmery penlcipeni eertifioa lo the beat ol Re knovHodge and belief, mot R oftd ii*

pnncipeta:' ^
V11 ore not preaently debased, eutpended. propoaed lor debarmenl. decioxed ineligible, or

votuntorOy exdudod from covered irenaeciiona by thy Fedcrti depertmerw or agency:

.11 7. heve not within o threO'yeBr period preceding ihta propoael (contract) boen convicted of or had
0 cMI judgmeot raruJerod ogalnal them for commiaaion of fraud Of 6 crtmlnal offense in
connocfionwith ptrtdinlng. enempting lo obtain, or pertormtng a pubti^ (Federal. SUie or local)
Iranaaction or o cbntract under e public trenaaction; violation of Federal or Stale antiiruat
slatutea or ccmrniialon of ernbauJoment ihoft, (orgery. bribery. falalTcalton or deatniction of
recorda. making falie elatamenla. or leceMng aloien property;-

11.3. are not preaently indicted for othorwiaocrimfnalty or civilty charged by a oovernmehtaienlliy'
! (Federal. *$1610 or locet) with commiaaion of any of the offensea enumerated in paregtaph (l)(b)

01 thia corliflcpllon; and
11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding thia eppiicelion/proppaol had one or more public

tranaactiona (Federal. State or locet) terminated for cauae <y defeuh.

1 i. Where the proipeclive prtmary peitlcipanl ia unable to certify to any of the iielemonia In thia
. certi"r<eilon. auch proapo^ive perticlpenl ahao eaach an expianoilon to this propose! (contract).

lower TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS " .
13. By signing ond aubmliUng thia lower liar propoaal (contract), the proapectlve lower tier participant, aa

deRned in 4S CFR Pert 76. cortJfea lo the beat of ita kf)0wfad9e and belief that ft ond Ila principaii:
13.1. ore not preaently debarred, suapended. propoaed for debarmeni. declared Ineligible, or

volunlerfly excluded from participotioA in thia Ironteclion by ony federal departnrieni or agency.
13.2. where tho proapoctivo tower tier perlJc'peM ia uncble lo certify to ony of the above, auch .

prospeclrvo participant shalt ottoch ar> explanation lo this propoael (contract).

M. tho pfOapectNo lov^r lier porticipani further ogrees by submining lhi« propoaal (contract) Ihol a win
Include thia clause ontHled •Certincatlon Regordlng Oobarmeot. Suspenaion. Incliglbility. ond
Voluntary ExcKralort - Lower Tier Covered Trervjacl'ions.* without modifrcellon in oU lower tier covered
iranaacliona ond In on aoiicilaiiona lor lower tier covwod imrisectiona.

Conlrador Nemo:

Narrio;

thjb:

Cuowttrtijill Pi{o7«t2

EtfeaaF-CiniaciO«>A(ii'dtneOvbinn»ni.SiAp«n>ion Contradoi IrVUi!}
A/OOtfwiRtipofts«tOtyM»ner».

Pm}«t2 OiU_ll££ZF
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C6RTIFICATI0H OF COMPMANCE WITH REQUIREWENTS PERTAINING TO
PgPPRAL NQNOISCRIMIWATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS A><P

^  "^HISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS ^

The ContJodof Weniified in Seclioft 1.3 of ihe G«nefal Pfoviaions ogrecs by ulgnature of the ContrBcloft
fejwMertolive ea WenlSed lo Seclions 1.11 end 1.1? of iho Gencfai Piovfaions. to execute iho loiKMng
cedirication;

Contrecto/ wOl comply, end wDI require any eubofemeea o( iubcontrociore lo comply, vnih eny oppllcoblo
federal nondiJCrimlAalion requlremanii. which may include:

. Iho Omnlbua Cr^e Control of>d Safe iirbeti Act of i W8 (« U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohtoiia
feclplenta of federal funding under this stoiuie from tfijcrVrilneilng. either In empioymeni precUces or in
the delivery of services or benefat. on the besis of rice, cotoi. religion, nellonal origin, ond ••*. The Act
requires certoin rodpienis to produce On Equal Employment .Opportunily Plan;
• ihe Jwerule Justice Oelirtquency Provent'on Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which edobts by
reforcnce. the cWl rights obligelions of Ihe Safe Streets Act. Reciplenti of fedoroJ fundir^g under this
tiotute ore prohibited from dUcrtmlnattng, cither In emptoyment piacticee or In iho detivory of eervlces or
benerita. on Ihe basis of'rece. color. reCgion. naUonslorigih. ond ae*. The Acl Includes Equal,
Ennptoyment Opportunity Plan requVemenis:

- the Civil Rights Acl of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits redpienls of fedora) fmondal
ossislence from <fiscrimlr>8tlr»g on Ih© basis of race, color, or national origin In any program or ociivlly);
• the Rchpbffitalion Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohlbiis recipienli of Federal financial •
OSfisianco frorn drscrfrninoling on Iho basis of disabfily. In regard lo employmen) end Ihe delivery of
services Of ̂nofilj. In any program or ocllviiy.

. the Amcficens with Oisflbifties Acl Of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimlnaiioh end ensures eqtialopponurxHy lor persons with dbebiihies In empioymeni. State end local
govcrnmenl ser^ces. pubCc occonvrtodalions. commercial fociiiries. ond ircnsportotion;
- tho Education Amendmanls of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1651.1683; 1685-86). which prohibits
diicfimlnelion on Ihe besis of box in federally ossisled education programs;

- the Age Oiscriminalion Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6108-07). which prohlbiis discr^lnotion on the
basis of ege In programs or actrviiies fecoivir>g Fedwcl fmortcJal osslslonce. U does noi include
employment dbcrtminatlon;

- 28 C.F.R. pi. 31 (U.S. Oepartmenl o) Justice Regulations - OJJOP Granl Programs); 28 C.F.R. pi. 42
(U S Depahmenl of Justice Regtrlatioru - Nondbcrlmlnafton: Equal EmploymerSi Oppotionby; Potcios
ond Procedures): Executive Order No. 13279 (equolprplbction of the lawt for fahh-baiod ond communhy
orgoniiatfooi); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamenle! prinr^les and policy-maicing
criierie for partnerships with foHh-based and neighborhood organiioiions;

• 28 C.F.R. pt 38 (U.S. Oopartmenl ol Justice Reguialons - Equal Treoimeni for FaHh-Bascd
Orger>betiori$): ond WhisUeblower protadions 41 U.S.C. §4712 end The Nai'onaJ Delense Aulhorliaiiort
Acl (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Progrem for
Enhencemenl of ConUeci Employee WhisUeblower Prolections. which protects employees ogotnsi
reprisal for certain whistle blowing acllvitios In cor>n#ciion wiih federal grants end contracts.

The certificale set out bciow is a molerlel represeniatipn of fed up^ which reliance Is placed when tho
agency pwardi the grant. False cartificalion or vioUtioin of the certificollon shall be grounds lor
suspension of paymbnls. ausponslon or termination of grants, or govommonl wide suspension or
debarmenl.'

EjwthC
Contfsctor irtlUtU

c#ti ww w c*nd»u ••W'WWO pww*e U rww wx iwrtwx KMfwt« oeirtx^
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in (he eveni e Fedvel ot Sieie poun or Federoi or Stele odmimirclnro ogency melie) e fsoding of
tfltcrimlnaUort ofler o (fue process heonng on (he grounds of race, cdx roligion. neiionel origin, or ees
ogsirnt a reclpieni of furvfs. Ihe recipient «viD forward e copy of the fcndlr^ to (he Offce for Civil Rights, to
the appCeebte contracting ogertcy or drvfsion within the Depe/imeni of Koolth end Human Services, end
to the Department of Heetlh and Humen Services OfTce of the Ombudsmen.

Tr« Contractor identiffod in Section -1.3 of the Gerxerel Provisbni ogroot by signature of the Contractor's
represertteiive as tdenitTiedin Sections 1.11 sr^ i.i2 ol iheGer\erei Provisions, to execute the foOowtng
certlflcdtlon:

I. By oignlr^g end submitting this propoiet (conirect) the Coniredor agrees to comply vt4ih iha provtjions
indiceted above.

Contractor Name:

\

Dale
I

TiUe

e;«fr5ti C •

Conusctcr tmiili
CHle^w e CweWu «ee"www w r «erf »w*e**<ekwt e •<< f/wt«rt w» Os»«ua»-e

•"'nt Ct'>'7A./r^
P«®»7ol7 Oilfl 7
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CEHyiFICATlON REGARDIHQ ENMRONMEWTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Pubfit Uw C • EnvifonmenW To5ec« Smoke. eUo known et Ihe Pro-Chad/en Acl ol 1W4
(Ad) feputiei thai amokhg nol be perniined in any portion of any indoof facility owned or feaaed or
conuected for by on eni&y and uied lootineiy Of regviarty (w the provision of hoath. day core, edwcaiicn.
Of liCrary aervicos to chlWftn undet the ago of 18. if the aefvtces are funded by Federal programs eliher
dtf'ectiy Of Ihrotfph State or local oovemmenli. by Federal Qrar^'. eortlract. loen, or loan goarenlee. The
law does not apply to chMran'a aervlcei provtdod In private residencet. feciiiiiea funded eoiely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, end portbns of facilities used for Inpaiiem drug or oicohoi weivnom FoUuro
to comply with the provision* of the tow may result In the ImposUion of o dvU monetory penefty of up to
ISOOO per dey tuiO/ot the Imposition of en odmWslretive compfionce order on the responsible erMrty.

The Contractor Wentlfed In Section 1.3 of me General Provistons.ejrees. by signetu/e of Ihe Conyoctor:*
rcpreseniatJye esHdeniified m Section t.i i end 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute tho foDowlno
certiftcation:

1. By alpniho and aubmWng this contract, the Coniraclor ogfoes lo rtioke reasonable cflorts to comply
wilh ell oppdcablo provisions of Public Low 103-227. Port C. known os me Pro^hlldicn Acl of 10W.

ComroclorName:

-/<r
0ete Na;

Tida:

Edfen H - CertOceJJon Rtoirtine Centridoi
En^o<VMnllJTeet«eSr^el# _
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT •

The Contrectof Identified in Section 1.3 of Ihe General Provisions of the Agreemeni agrees lo
compty with the Hooilh Insurance.Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104'191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Irwji^ualiy Identifiable Health Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein,'Business
Associate* shall mean the Contractor end subcontrectors and agents of the Conlfactor that
receive, use or have eccess to protected health tnlormeiion under this Agreement end 'Covered
Enlity* ̂ 811 moan the Stole of New Hompshlre. Deportment of H'eollh ond Humon Services.

(1) Oeflnltlons.

0. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach'.in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such tcfm in section 160.103 of TtUe 45. Code
of Federal Regulations. . ' '

c. TCovered Entity' has the meaning given such term in secfon 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'besiopated Record Set* shall have the seme meaning as (he term 'designated record eel*
In45 CFR Secilon,l64.50l.

e. 'Data AQoraoation' shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation* In 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f.. 'Health Card Ooorations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'heallh cero opcrelions*
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. *HiTECHAct* means the Health information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitfeXlil. Subtitle 0. Port 1 4 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009. * ^ ■

h. 'HIPAA* means (ho Hoellh Insurance Portability and Accountobiiity Act of 1996. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Idenllfiabte Heallh
Informolion. 45 CFR Parts 160.162 ond 164 ond amendments thereto.

1. 'Individual* shall have the same meaning as the term 'indrvidual* in 45 CFR Sectio.n 160.103
and shsQ Include a person who qualrfios as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Sectloni64.50l(g).

j. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Ideniifiablo Heallh
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United Stales

•  Department'of Health and Human Services.

K. 'Protected Health Information* shall have the same meaning as the term 'proteclod hooilh
Infdrmalion'in 45CFR Section 160.103. limited to the Inroimation created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

' yjgti DHelll . cwtaoi lflW»1> /fi/T
AimUiIi A^iMffwnl _
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I. 'fipQuifcd bv Law" ahaD have the same meaning as the term Vequired by leW In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secieiary" ohall mean the Secfelary of the Oapflrtment of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n  -SycuriN Rule' shell rncan the Security Standards for the Proleclion of Eteclronic Protected
Health IrtformaUon at 45 CFR Part 164. Suhpart C. and amendments thereto.

O. 'unnfteuriMi Pfoteeiftd inrofmHilon' means prelected hoallh Information lhal Is not
secured by a technolooy standard that renders protected hoallh information unusable,
unreadable, or.fndecipherdble to unauthoriied Individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organizaiion that Is acc/eiJiled by the American National Standards'
Institute.'

p. Other Definitions • /Ul terms fwt otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.f^. Parts 160.162 end 164, as qmended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Bualneas Associate Use and Dlaclosure of Protected Heellh Informallon^

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or iransrtill Protected Health •
Information (PHI) axcdpl as reosonaWynccessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to ell
its directors, officers.-eniployees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would conslilule a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I.' For the proper management and edminlst/ation pi fhe Business Associate;'
II. As required by taw. pursuant to the terms set forih In paragraph d. below; or
III. -For data aggregation purposes lor the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permlite'd under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associaie must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the ihird party that-such PHI wai be held conndpnilally ond
used or further disclosed only as required by law or lor (he purpose lor which if was
disclosed to the third party'; and (ii) an agreement from.such ihird party to notify Business
Associate, in occordanco wilh the HIPAA Privacy. Sacurity. end Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of 4he confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained ,
Knowledge of such broach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure Is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A ol the Agreement, disclose any PHI In response to o
request for disclosure on the basis (hot it Is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so lhal Covered Entity has an opportuni^ to object to the disclosure and
to seaX appropriate relief. II Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, (he Business

yjOK ErNWI • CqfLit»aot IWSih Po
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Auociste sheD retrain from disclosing (he PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted el)
remedies.

e. II me Covered Eniity notifies the Business Associate thai Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrtclions over end above those uses or disclosures or security
sefeguards of PHl pursuant to the Privacy end Security Rule, iho Business Associate
ahail be bound by ouch oOdKionBl roslrictions end shall not disclose PHI In violstion of
such additional resWclions end shsD abide by any addiiional security safeguards.

(3) ObtloatlonB and Actlvitteo of PuBlnpgo Aoo&clpto.

8. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer Immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health •information nol provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health Information and/br any security incident thai may have an Impacl on the
protected health Information of (he Covered Eniity.

b; The Business Associate shall Immediately perform a risic assessment when it becornes
aware of any of the ebove siiuotlons. Tho risk assessment shall include, but nol be
limited to: •

0 The nature and extent ol the protected heaiih information Involved. Including iho
types of identifiors and tho lil(elihood of re-ldentificatjon:

o The^uneuihorlzed person used ihe protected heailh inlormation or to whom the .
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health Information.was acloaHy acquired or viewed
0 The extent to vmtch (he risk to the protected health Information has bean

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 46 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to Ihe
' Covered Eniity.

. c. The Business Associate shall comply wth all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shati make available all of lls Internal policies and procedures, books
and.records relating to tho uso and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associaie on behalf of Covered Eniity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance wilh HIPAA and the Privacy and
' Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all ol iis busir>oss associates (hat receiv'e. uso or have
access to PHI under the Agrcemonl. to ogtoo in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on (he use and disclosuro of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy Ihe PHI as provided under Section 3 (i). The Covered Enii^
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary ol ihe Conirecior's business ossocielo
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates. who will be receiving PHI
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pureudnl to Agreoment. with rights of enforcement end indemnlficstion from such
business associates who shall bo governed by slandsrd Paragraph (f 13 of the eiandafd
contract provisloAS (P«37) of this Agreement for (he purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

r. Within fWe (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Busmess A&so'dale shall make available during normal business hours at Hs offices ail
records, books, egreemenis, policies and procedures retaiing to the use and disclosure -
of PHI to the Covered Eniiiy.'for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Busir^ess Associele's competence with'ihe terms of the Agreemont.' -

Q. Within ten (10) business days of recoiving a wriden request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to on Individual In order to meet tho
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Wiihinten (10) twsiness days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or aVewd about en Indtvidual contained in p Designated Record
Set. (he Business Associate shati make such PHI available to Coyorod Entity for
omendmeni end incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fuirtii its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526:

i. Business Assodata shall document such disclosures ol PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to resporuj to e request by an

'  Indtvidual for en eccounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528. ' .

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving o written request from Covered Entity for a
request for en eccounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such Information as Covered Entity may require fo fulfill Its obligations
to provide en eccountirtg of disdo'surca with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 C.FR .
Section 164.526. ' ' .

k. In the event any Individual requests eccess to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directfy from the Business Assodato. (he Business Associate shall within two (2)
buslr)ess days forward such request (6 Covered Entity. Covered Entity shell'have the
responsidiity of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individuat's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate KtPAA and the Privacy .and Security Rule, the Business Assodate
shall instead respond to the Individual's requcs.t as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of (erminaliondf the Agreement, for any reason, lha
Business Associato chat! roiurn or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, at) PHI
received from, or created or received by (he Business Assodalo in connection with (he
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. if return or
desUucUon is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
tho Agroemont. Business Associate shslt continue to extend the protections of tho
Agreement, to such PHI end limit further uses end disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction Infoosfblo. for so long os Business

VTOK Extrsiii Cor\:r»uo' -M-
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Associate maimalAS such PHJ. If Covered Entity, in Its sole discretion, requires that the
6u$if>C85 Associate destroy eny or all PHI. the Business Associate 8haB certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObllQBllona of Covefftd Entity

a  Cov^ed Entity shaU notify Business Associate of any changes or Dmiiallonts) in itsNotice of Privacy PracUcosprovided to bdrviduais In accordance with 45 CFR"Seclion

1 &4.620. to IhC extent thai such change or limitation, may effect Business Asspciato'e
us® oc dtsdosur® of PHI.

b  Covered Entity shall proijtplly notify Business Associate of any .changes In. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals wttose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Assoclale under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section t64.506.

c. Covered entity shall prompliy notify Business Associate of ahy restrictions on the use or
dis^sure-of PHI that Covered Entity his agreed 10 in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
lo the extant that such restriction may effect Business Associate s use or disclosure of •
pHi.

(6) Tflfmlnatlon for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and condilions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the-Agreemeni upon Covered.
Enlity's knowledge of e breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate

•  Agreement set forth herein as Exhibll I. The Covored Entity may either immediately
terminale the Agreemfenl or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach wiWn a ilmeframe spcaTied by Covered Entity.. If Covered Entity
determines thai neither lorminalion nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
vtolialion to tho Secretary.

(6) Miscoltaneous

a. pflfinltions and Reoutaiofv References. All ierms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have tho same mear\if>g as those terms In the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time, A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibil I. to
a Section In the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section" as. in effect or as
emended.

b. Amsndmenl. Covered EnUty and Business Associate agree 19 take such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply wllh Ihe changes In the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Ruto. and applicable federal and slate law.

c. -Da|fl Ownarship. The Business Associate acknowledges thai it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covored Entity.

d  • Interoretation. Tho parties agree thai any ambigulty in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permil Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule.

ElMlill Conueooj Wdili y&C-
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Seofwallon. If eny lerm Of condlUon of Ihis Exhibii t or the appllcetioo thereof to any
ponon(e) pr ci/cirmitanpe is held Invalid, such invalidiiy shall not effect olher terms or
condiUonsuMch can be given effect wlchovl the InvaEd term or condiiion:.io this end the
terms er>d condi'iont of this Exhibit I are declarod sevorable.

Survfval. Provisions In this Exhibli I rogsrdlne the use ond disdoture ol PHI, return or
doslfvCUon of PHI. oxten'filorta of the protections of the Agreemeni In section <3) I. the
defenso and IndomrdflcaUon provisions of section (3).o ar>d Paraprpph 13 of (ho .
Standard terms end conditions (P-37). shall eurvlvo tha larmlnaflOn of the Agreemcrtl.

IN WTNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto havo duly executed this Exhibit I.

- Department of HeeKh and Humsn Servtces

The Slate ^ ^

SIgnalureif Authortzed RepreseniaUve

■■

Name dfAuthortzed Reprasentativo

■
Tlila of Authbrtzed Rapresehtetive

Date

smaref the Conlraclor /.Ns onlrac or

A
Representativeuro ru

presentativo

Title ol Authorized Representative

f-■?/-/£- •
Dale

vio>« e«rttni
He»Bh Vugrtnw PclttrtOjf A<J
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CERTIPICATION REQARDINO THE FEOERAL-FUNDING ACC0UNTA8IUTY AND TRANSPAReNCY

The Federei Fundino AaownlaWliiy end Treruperenqr Act (FFATA) requirei prime ewardeei of indWduol
Fed^i crohli equol to or Qreaier than $25,000 and ewordod on oi pfler Ociober 1.2010. to report on
dele releied to executive compenwiion end oiwcljled ftnl-tie/ eutHgrenti oi $25,000 or more. I' the
inlUel ewerd ts betoiv S2S.OOO but subtequeni greni modlftcettOAs result in e toiel ewanl equal to or over
tZS.OOO. the ewa/d is eubiect lo the FFATA reporting reqviremertli. es of the dele Of the eward.
lr> occorflence with 2 CFR Pert lTO (Reporting Subtnverd end Executive CompontoiionifUormoilon). the
Oepartmeni of Hoallh end Hymen S.Ofvicei (OHHS) muit report the following informaiioo for any
•ubewerd or contrect eword eubject to ir>e FFata feporting roquiremonlsv
1. Name of entity

■ 2. Amount of eward
y Funding ogerxy
4. HAJCS codd for contracts f CFOA progrom number for grenls
5. Progrom eourcq
6. Award iHte descriptive of the purpose'of tSe.tunding oclion
7. Locotion of the entity
S. Prtndploplaceof p<^ormence
9. Unique idet^ter of the entity (OUNS 0)
10. Total compensation er>d names of tfte lop live exec^ives d:

10.1. More then 00% of onnual gross revenqei ore from the Federal government. »r^ those
revenues ere greater then $25M enhuatly end

10.2. Compensation Inlormolion is not olreadyevollebla through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant redpienie must eubmil FFATA required daio by the end of ifto month, plus JO doys. In which
the owerd or award emertdmoni b made.

The Contractor tdentiTtad In Secirort 1.J of the Gorvcrel Provisions agrees lo comply vrilh the provisions of
The Federol Fundirtg Accountability end Transpetency Act, Public low tOO-202 and Public lew 110-252.-
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward end Executive Componseiion (nformalion). ond furthdr'egreee
to hove the ConUoctt^e ropreseniativo. as identified in Sections 1.11 cthd 1.l2oflho Genorol Provitionc
execute the following Certihcation: '
The below named Contractor egrees to provide needed informoUorr as outlined above to the NM
Departmenl of Heelih end Human Series ond to comply wlih all appTicobla provisions of the Federal
Flnarvclal AccouniobQtty ond Trpivsparency Act.

ConirpciorName:

0-Z6'/r
Dole Name: t

TiHe:

EiWM J-CtnJrCoflwRefllflflnotMrofltrtlFunfllno Cwvl/Klor trfUil)
Aae4XvueUhruoTi»mpi/ancyAd|P*ArA)Com(iijftc* ^ ̂
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FORMA

At »ho Coftt/atiof idcntmod in Seclion 1.3 oJ me Genwai Proviiioni. 1 certity thai the (oiponjoj lo the
boiow Ested dvettions are (rue or>d eccurete.

1. ThnfTIf"^ i/v. yft..r hniiry h-

2  lf> yoi^ bu^nett or orgonlioUon't preceding eompleled Ctcal yew. did jrour butmet# Of or8Bnllor«on
focofvo (1) 80 percent or n«re ot ̂ ur anr^ual groti revenue in U.S. toderoi coniroclt, eubcooUocii.
loan* flfOftli tul>granl9. er»d/or tooperalive aflreemenli: end (2) 125.000.000 or more In annual
Qfosi'revcnuee Irom U.S. lederel c^ireclt. egbconiroctt. loe'nt. gronU. tol>flrorMt..eftd'or •
coopwolii^ agreemenle?

V  NO yes

If the entwer to 02 obove H NO. itop here

If oni^r lo 02 obovo ia YES. plaase er^swet (he foitowing:

3. Ooea ma pobUc hove eccest lo information about Ihe compensction of lha oxocumta In your
business voroeAljalion through periodic raportt rttad under seclion 13(e) or lS<d}.ol me Secuniies
exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.t.7em(e). 78o(d)) or sodlon 6l04 of me lAlemol Revenue Code of
1988?

NO YES

If me answer to 03 above Is YES. tiop hare

if me answer to 03 above Is NO. please answer me foUowing:

A. The names and compensalion of Ihe frvo moil highly compenseiad officers In your business or
orgonizoUon era OS foUowi:

Name:.

Name:.

Name: ]

Name:,

Name:

Amount:,

'Amounl:,

Amount:

f

AmourM:

Afflourti:

curyvci ici 1}

EjMU j - CenlfXtQort ReptnSno (ht Ftdcii Furdire
AccoufkitbCb *n3 Tti/opirinfy AO (FfATA) Ccmpfltnee
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OHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Dermltions

The foiiowlAQ terms may be reflected and have (he described meaning ir> (his document:

1. 'Breach* means the loss of conuol, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unouthoriiod acquisition, unauthorized access, or any cimilar term referring to
situations where persons other than ovrlhbrized users end for en oCher than
aulhoritod purpose have access or potential access to perso.nairy loentinabie
information, whether physical or electronic. With rogard to Protocted Heallh
Information. * Breach' shaO have the same meaning as (he terrn 'Breach' in section
(64:402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Reguialions.

2. 'Computer Security Incident' shat have the same meaning 'Computer Security
Incident* in section two (2) of NIST PubGcaUon 8P0-$t. Computer Security Incident-
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department'
of Commerce. • • »

3. 'Confidential Information' or 'Confideniidl Data' means ell ccnndential .information
disclosed by orie party to the other such as etl medical, health, ftnanclel. public
etsisience beneHis end personal inrormation including wtthout limitation.'Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Healih information end
Personally Identifiable Intormat'ipn.

Conridcntial information also includes any and all informalipn owned or managed by
the Slate of NH * created, received.from or on behatf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (OHHS) or accessed In the course of performing conlracied
services 7 of which collection, disclosure, protection, end disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Intormaiion (PHI). .Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI). Federal Tax Inforrhatlon (FTl). Social Securlfy Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), end or other sensitive end confidential Information.

4. 'End User*, means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) (hat receives •
OHHS data or derivattv^ data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. 'HIPAA* nieanstho Health Insurance Portabilily end Accountability Act of 1996 end (he
regulations promulgated thereunder.

' 6. 'Incident* means en act that poientialty violates an-eiplicii or Irhptied security poflcy.
' which Incfudes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial ol service, ihe unauthorized use of
e system for tho processing or storage ol data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's Icnowledge. instruction, or
consent, incidents Include the loss ol data through theh or device misplacement, loss
or misplacemeni ol hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical 01 electronic

V4.UllvoeiieO4.O4.20iS CjM&TiK ConUtciorlritUti
OHHS Infermttton
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DHHS InformalJon Security Requlrernents

mall, eu ol which may have the potential to ̂  the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosufe. modification or deslA/ction.

7. 'Open Wireless Netwont* means eny oeNvorV or segment of e network that Is
not deslgnoted by the Sisto of Hampshire'a Ocpartmeni of informoiion
TcchnotoQy or delepoto es o protected network (doslgncd. lestod,. ond
epprovod, by moons of the State-, to iron&mll) wDi be corisldered -an open
network end not adequatcfy secure for the transmission of unencrypied Pt. PFi.
PHI or conndenliai OHHS dole.

8. 'Personal Informalion' (or 'PI') means informelion wt^ich can be used to dtslingulsh
or upce an ind'tvlduars Identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
Information as dermed in New Hampshire RSA 359^:19. biomeiric records, etc..

-  alone, or when combined with other personal or idenilfying Information which is linked
•  or linkable to a-specific IndividuBl. such es dale and place ol birth, mother's maiden

name. etc.

•  9. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Slandards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Informatidn at ttS C.F.R. Parts 160 end 164. promolgaled under KIPAA by the United
States Department ol Health end Human Services.

10. 'Proiecled Health Information* (or 'PHIT has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of'Protected Health Infofmalion* In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule' shaD mean the Security StankJards for tiie Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Informalion at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpart C. and am^dments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information* means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a lechrioiogy stendard that renders Protected Health information
unusable, unreadable, or indedpherable to unauthorized Individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing'organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF OHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Oisdosufc of Confidential Information.

1. The Contreclor must not use. disclose, mairitain or transmit Confidential Informelion
except as reesoholiiy necessery es outlined under this Coniroct. Further. Coniroctor.
Including but not limited to ell its direclors, officers, employees end agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or iiansmit PHI In any manner that would constitute e violation
of the Privacy and Security Rulo.

■ 2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential .tnlormation iri response to. a

V..l.ulop«J.UW.64.Mia CorV/.teoilnart.
. OHKS inrormiOOrt
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request lor disdosuro on ihe basis thai it is required by law. In response lo a
• subpoena, etc.. without tirsl notifying OHHS so that OHHS has en oppodurtlty to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHKS notifies the Coniractoi that OHHS has agreed to bo bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safcquards of PMi
pureuanl to tho Privacy ond Security Rule, me Conuector mosl be bound by eoch
additional resuicilonft and must not diftdoae PHI in violation of aucn additional
restrictions ond must obide by any edditional security safogoards.

4. The Coniradbr agrees thai OHHS Oala or derrvatrve there from disdosed lo an End
User most only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees OHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are. not irtdicaled in this Contract.

6. The Contrecior agrees to grant access to the data to the eulhorized representatives
of OHHS lor the purpose of Inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this

• Contract

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSIIfllSSION OF DATA

t. Application Ericryplion. If End User Is Iransmilling OHHS data containing
Conndential Data between appiicelions, ihe Contractor otiests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable In cyber security and thai said.
appncelion's encryption capabilities ensure aecure transmission via the iniernel.

Computer Disks end Portable Siorage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or poftabte storage devices, such as a thumb drive, es o method of transmitting OHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Emeil. End User may only employ email-to transmit Conrideniial Data If
email is encrvoted and being seni to and being received by email addresses of
persons aulhorized to receive such Informalion.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User Is employing the Wob lo transmit Confidential-
Data. the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and ihe web site musi be
secure. SSL encrypts date (ronsmiiied via e Website.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as Filo Shoring Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such es Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Ccnfidontial Data.

6. ground Mail S.ervice. End User rnay only transmit Confidential Dale via cerfiffod ground
mall within the continental U.S. and when senI to" a named individual.

7. Laptops end PDA. If End User Is employing portable devices to transmit
ConfidehUaJ Data said devices musi be encrypted and password-^otected."

' *8'. Open Wireless Networks. End User may nol transmit Ccnfidontial Data via en open
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wtrele&s network. End User musi employ a virtual privoie network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User CommuAlca.lion. If End User Is employing remote communlcetjon to
eccees or tronsmli Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
Inslatled on the End User's moblte device(s) or laptop from which information will" be
transmitted or accessed.

■  10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. H
End User is envioyii^ an SFTP to transrrkt Cor>ridentiai'Data. End User will
slAJCture the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate- disdosure of
In^ormaliort. SFTP folders and sutvfoWers used for irarumitting Confidentiei Oats will
be coded for S^-hour autodetelion cyde (i.e. Corrfidenlial Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

•  11. Wreless Devioes. If End User Is transmuting Confldentiol Data via wireless "devices, ell
data'must be encr^led to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of information. .

III. RETENTION AND DISPOStTION OF lOENTlFIABLE RECORDS

The Contraclor will only retain the dele end eny derivat'ive of the deia for the duration of this
Contrect. Aftef such lima, the Contractor will hevo 30 days to destroy (he data end-any-
dofivdtivo. In whatever forrn it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1.' The Contractor agrees ii will not store, transfer or process date collected In
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical locotlon requirement shall, also apply In the Implemenlelion of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities,, end iQpludes backup
data end Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor egrees to ensure proper security monlloring capabilities are In
place to detect polentiai security events thai can Impaci. State of NH systems
and/or Department confrdentiel information for contractor provided systems.

. 3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its ErkJ
Users in support of protecting Depertment confidential Infonmatibn.

4. The Contractor egrees to retain at) electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure locaiion and identified in section IV. A.2

5. "The Controclor agrees Conndential Data stored In a Cloud rnusi bo In a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant sotution end comply with all applicable slatutos ond
regulations regarding the privacy ond security. All servers 'and devices must have
currenlly-supported end herdoncd operallng systems., (he latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, onli-spem. anil-spyware. and anii matwarp ulililles. The cnvlronm8n|.,05 a
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mu8l have epgressrve inituslon-eeiection end fi/owan protedion.

6  The Conuoptof aareos to and ensyres lis compleio cooperaHon with the Stale's
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vutne/ebilrty of the hosting
inlrasiructure.

B. Dtsposit'ion

If the Conuoctof vMi mainioln any ConfidenUal information on its systems (or Its
aub-contractor systems), the Coniractoi wiD maintain a documented process for
securely disposing-of such data upon reqyesi or contract lefmlnatlon; and will
obtain written certification for any Slate ol Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractw or any subconifBctorj as a part of ongoing, emorgericy. end or disaster
recovery"opcralions. When no longer in.use, electronic media cortlainlng Stale of
New Hampshjre data' shell be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure delation and media
sanUizalion. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) es described In NIST Special Publicalipn 600-68. Rev 1. Guidelines
■for Media Sanllizalion, Nallonil institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Oepartment of Commerce. The Contractor will document end certify in writing el
time of the dote destruction, and win provide written certification to the Oepartment

^ upon request, the written certifrcaiion will include all'details necessary to
' demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where, appDcabto.

regulatory and professional sundards for rotontion requirements -will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. lirilcss otherwise speclfted. within thirty (30) days of the termination ol this
Contract. CpnlfBCtor agrees to destroy eD hard copies ol Conndenliel Data using e
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless olhervrisa specified, within 'thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract! Corttraclor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Conuacior agrees lo aefeguard ihe DHHS Data received under this Coniraci. and any
derivative data or foes, as foHows:

1. The Contractor will molmein proper security controls to protect Oepartment
confidential Informalion coUocted. processed, managed, .and/or stored in the dctrvery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies "and procedures to protect Ooportment
confWentiai informel'ron throughout the Information lifecyde. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media u^d to store the daia (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor wi!) maintain appropriate authentication and access conirots to
conlractdr systems that collect, transmit, or store Depanment conrideniial infdrmetloo
where applicable.

I  . •

4. The Contreclor win ensure proper security monilorlnQ capoblUties ore In place lo
detect pot'er>tlal security events that can impact Slate of NH systems and/or
Depanmenl conndcntial information tor cor^tractor provided systems. ■

5. The Conirocior win-provide reguier security awareness ond educetion for lis End
Users In. support of protecting .Depailment confidenlial information.

6. .U the Contractor wiQ be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
' 'supporting the services for Stale of Now Hampshire, ibo Contractor will maintain a

program of an internal process or processes that defines epecific security
expectotions. and monitoring compilanco to security requirements that at.e minimum
match those for (he Contreclor, including breach nolincation requirements.

7. The Contractor will vrork wilh (he Oepdiiment to sign and comply with aD appEcable
State of'New Hampshire and Oeparlmeni system access end authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part ol
obtaining and maintaining access to any Oepartmen) systemfs). Agreements wtl) be
corhpleted and sfgned by (ho Contractor and any applicable Sut^ontractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associale pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor win execute a HIPAA-Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Oepadment and Is responsible for maintaining compliance with (he
agreement.

9. The Contractor wilt wodt with (he Department at its request lo complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of (he survey is to enable (he Department end .
Confractor to monitor for any changes-in rislis. threats, and vulnerablliiies (hat may
occur over (he tile of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be compiotod
annually, or an ailernate time frame et the Departments discretion with agreement by
(he Conlrector. or (he Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between (he Oeparlmeni and the Conirabtor changes.

10. The Cpntraclor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any Stale of New Hempshirp
or Department'data offshore or outside the boundaries of (he United Stales unless
prior express written consent is obleincd from 4he Information Security OKice
leadership member wiihln the Department.

n. Data Security Breach (.lability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shalj
maiio efforts to Investigate the causes ot (he breach, promptly uke measures to
prevent future breach and minimize eny damage or loss resulting from (he* brooch.
The Stale shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, indudlr^o but not limited to; credit monitoring services. maitinQ costs end
costs associated with website and telephone call center-services r^ecessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, compty with all applicable statutes or^ regutaiions regorolr>g the
prrvocy orvd security of ConftOanlial lAiormalion. ond must in on other respects
motntoin the ̂ vacy ond socurity'of PI and PHI at 8 level and scope that is not less
than the level end scope of requiremenis appiicebie to federal egencies, IrKtuding.
but not lUnUed to, provlstons of lha Privacy Act of' 1670 (5 U.S.C. § SS2a), OMHS
Privecy Act Regulations {05 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (05
C.F.R. Parts 160 end 160) (hat govern protections for individually Identifiable heelth
information end as appiicabio under State law.

13. Contractor agrees (o establish and maintain oppropriate administrative, technical, end
. physical safeguards to protect trio conndentiallty of (he Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or'accoss to H. The safeguards must provide o level end
scope of security that.is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of information.Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at hitpsi/Awww.nh.gov/dolVvendof/index.hlm
for the OepartrrienI of information Techr>ology poiicibs. guidelines, standards, and
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breech noUTfcation and incident
response process. Tt>€ Conliacior will notify the Slate's Privacy Officer, and
edditlona) email addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within ̂
(2) hours of (he time that the Contractor learns of Its occurrence. This includes a
conrfdential information breach.- computer- security incident, or suspected breach
which aNects or includes any Steto of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire riotworh.

16. Contractor must restrict occess to the Confidential Dale obtained under this' -
Contract to 'only those authorized End Users who need such OHHS Data to
perform their official duties In conrtoction with purposes Identified In this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that dl End Users:

a. comply with such oafcgoarOs as referenced in Section IV A. atMve.
implemented to' protect Confidential information that is furnished by OHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure. •

b. safeiguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other oloctronic devices/media containing PHf. PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Infofmatlon only if encrvoted and being
sent (0 end being received by email addresses of pqrsons euthorlzod to
receive such Information.
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e.. limil disclosure ol Ihe Confidential Infomialion to (ha extent permitted by taw.

t. ConndenUai Informslion ' received under this Contract end IndrviduBlty
Identiftoble data derived from DHHS Dale, must be aiored in en area that is
physically end technologically secure from access by .unauihoritod persons
during duty hours as wen es non-duty hours (e.g.. door locke. card keys,
biometric Idenliners, etc.).

g. onty authorized End users may transmit the Confldeniial Data. Inctuding any
derivative fdes contalning personoDy Identinable information, and In ell cases.
Such data must be encrypted at sD times when In transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable rnedia as requirod in section IV above.

h. in all. other instances Conndentiai Oats must be mainlained. used ar^l
disclosed using appropriate -safeguards, es determined by a risk'besed'
assessrhent of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) musi nol be
shared with anyone. End Users wiD keep their credential information eecure.
This appties to credenliats used to access the site directly or Indirectty through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for overslghl and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
rosorves the right to conduct onsiie inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract. Including the privacy and security roqulrcmenis provided h herein, HIPAA,
and other epplicabla laws end Federal reguieiiohs until such time the ConTideniiai Date
is disposed of In accordance with this Coniracl.

V. LOSSftEPORTIMG

The Contractor musi notify tho State's Privacy Officer. Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security incidents and B.reaches within two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents ond .Breaches involving PHl In
accordanco with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breech Notification
procedures and In accordance wiih 42 C.P.R..§§ 431.300 • 306. In oddHion to. and '
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all oppllcoblo obligalions and procodures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

•' 1.. Identify Inddanis;

2. Determine if personalty identifiable informaiion is involved in incidents;

3. Report suspects or confrrmed Incidents as roquired-in Ihis.ExhibIt or P<37:

. 4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine (he risk level of Incidents
and doterrrtine risk-based responses to incidents; end

> pf
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S. Determine wtiether Breach ooiiTication is required., end. if so. idemify eppropriate
B/eech notificetlon methods, liming, source, and contents from among differen!
options, end bear costs associated with ihe &each notlco os well ss any miilgallon
measures.

Incidents or>d/or Breschos thot Impiicete PI musi be addressed and reported, as
appUcoble, In accordance with NH RSA 35d-C:20.

Vl! PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. OHHS contact for Data Mansgemeni or Oaia Exchanga issues:

' OHHSinformationSecurityOtriceiSdhhs.nh.gov

8. OHHS contacts lor Privacy issues:

DHHSPflvacyOfftcer@dhhs.nh.Qov

C. OHHS conlaci for information Security Issues:

OHHSinfor.malionSecurllyOfrice@dhhs.nh.gov

D. OHHS contact for Breech noiincations:

-OHHSinrormationSecurityOfrico@dhhs.nh.gov

DHHSPrlvacy.0fficef@dhh8.nh.gov
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